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CCE SPINCO, INC.

Cross-Reference Sheet Between the Information Statement and Items of Form 10

Information Included in the Information Statement and Incorporated by Reference
into the Registration Statement on Form 10

Our information statement may be found as Exhibit 99.1 to this Form 10. For your convenience, we have provided below a cross-
reference sheet identifying where the items required by Form 10 can be found in the information statement.

Item
No. Caption Location in Information Statement
1. Business “Summary;” “Risk Factors;” and “Business”
2. Financial Information “Summary — Summary Historical and Pro Forma Financial
and Other Data;” “Capitalization;” “Unaudited Pro Forma
Condensed Combined Financial Data;” “Selected Combined
Financial Data;” and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation”
3. Properties “Business — Properties and Facilities”
4. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management Management”
5. Directors and Executive Officers “Management”
6. Executive Compensation “Management”
7. Certain Relationships and “Our Relationship with Clear Channel Communications
Related Transactions After the Distribution”
8. Legal Proceedings “Business — Legal Proceedings”
9. Market Price of Dividends on the Registrant’s Common “Summary;” “Risk Factors;” “The Distribution;”
Equity and Related Stockholder Matters “Capitalization;” “Dividend Policy;” and “Description of Our
Capital Stock”
10. Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities None
11. Description of Registrant’s Securities to be Registered “Description of Our Capital Stock”
12. Indemnification of Directors and Officers “Description of Our Capital Stock;” and “Our Relationship
with Clear Channel Communications After the Distribution”
13. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data “Summary — Summary Historical and Pro Forma Financial
and Other Data;” “Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed
Combined Financial Data;” “Selected Combined Financial
Data;” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations;” and “Index to
Combined Financial Statements and Schedule” including the
Combined Financial Statements and Schedule
14. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on
Accounting and Financial Disclosure None
15. Financial Statements and Exhibits “Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial

Data;” and “Index to Combined Financial Statements and
Schedule” including the Combined Financial Statements and
Schedule




(a) List of Combined Financial Statements and Schedule.

The following financial statements are included in the Information Statement and filed as part of this Registration Statement on
Form 10:

(1) Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Data of CCE Spinco, Inc.; and
(2) Combined Financial Statements of CCE Spinco, Inc., including Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

The following financial statement schedule for fiscal years 2002, 2003 and 2004 is included in the Information Statement and filed
as part of this Registration Statement:

Schedule IT — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Schedules not mentioned above have been omitted because the information required to be set forth therein is not applicable or the
information is otherwise included in the Financial Statements or notes thereto.

(b) Exhibits. The following documents are filed as exhibits hereto:

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description
2.1%* Form of Master Separation and Distribution Agreement between Clear Channel Communications, Inc. and CCE
Spinco, Inc.
3.1%* Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of CCE Spinco, Inc.
32 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of CCE Spinco, Inc.
4.1 Specimen common stock certificate of CCE Spinco, Inc.
4.2% Form of Rights Agreement between CCE Spinco, Inc. and The Bank of New York, as rights agent
4.3% Form of Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock (attached as Annex A to the
Rights Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.2 hereto)
4.4* Form of Right Certificate (attached as Annex B to the Rights Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.2 hereto)
10.1* Form of Transition Services Agreement between CCE Spinco, Inc. and Clear Channel Management Services, L.P.
10.2 Form of Tax Matters Agreement between CCE Spinco, Inc. and Clear Channel Communications, Inc.
10.3* Form of Employee Matters Agreement between CCE Spinco, Inc. and Clear Channel Communications, Inc.
10.4* Form of Trademark and Copyright License Agreement between CCE Spinco, Inc. and Clear Channel Identity, L.P.
10.5%* Form of CCE Spinco, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan
10.6* Form of CCE Spinco, Inc. 2006 Annual Incentive Plan
10.7* Employment Agreement, dated August 17, 2005, by and between SFX Entertainment, Inc., d/b/a Clear Channel
Entertainment and Michael Rapino
10.87* Service Agreement, dated October 5, 2000, as amended January 12, 2005 and July 1, 2005, by and between Clear
Channel Entertainment UK (Theatrical Productions) Limited and David Ian Lane
10.91* Personal Services Agreement, dated December 3, 2002, as amended January 2005, by and between SFX
Entertainment, Inc., d/b/a Clear Channel Entertainment, and Arthur Fogel
10.10%* Executive Agreement, dated October 1, 2004, by and between EMA Telstar Gruppen AB and Thomas Johansson
10.11 Employment Agreement, dated November 28, 2005, by and between SFX Entertainment, Inc., d/b/a Clear Channel
Entertainment, and Alan Ridgeway
21.1 List of Subsidiaries of CCE Spinco, Inc.
99.1 Information Statement of CCE Spinco, Inc., subject to completion dated November 29, 2005

* Previously filed.

1 Certain portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for an order granting confidential treatment by the Securities and
Exchange Commission.




SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this registration
statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CCE SPINCO, INC.

By: /s/ Randall T. Mays

Randall T. Mays
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Dated: November 29, 2005
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* Previously filed.

1 Certain portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for an order granting confidential treatment by the Securities and
Exchange Commission.
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TAX MATTERS AGREEMENT

BY AND AMONG

CLEAR CHANNEL COMMUNICATIONS, INC.,

CCE SPINCO, INC.

AND

HOLDCO #2, INC.

Dated as of , 2005
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TAX MATTERS AGREEMENT

This Tax Matters Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of ___, 2005, by and among Clear Channel Communications, Inc., a
Texas corporation (“Distributing”), CCE Spinco, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Distributing
(“Controlled”), and Holdco #2, a Delaware corporation (‘Holdco #2”).

Recitals

Whereas, as of the date hereof, Distributing is the common parent corporation of an affiliated group (as defined in Section 1504 of the
Code) of corporations (the “Distributing Consolidated Group”) that has elected to file consolidated U.S. federal income tax returns;

Whereas, the Distributing Consolidated Group currently includes Controlled, SFX Entertainment, Inc., a Delaware corporation
(“SEXE”), and their respective direct and indirect eligible domestic Subsidiaries;

Whereas, Distributing and an unrelated investor have formed Holdco #2, with (i) Distributing receiving all of the Holdco #2 common
stock and all of the Holdco #2 Series B redeemable non-voting preferred stock (the “Series B Preferred Stock™) in exchange for
Distributing’s contribution to Holdco #2 of all of the outstanding stock of SFXE (the “SFXE Exchange”) and (ii) the unrelated investor
receiving all of Holdco #2 Series A redeemable voting preferred stock (the “Series A Preferred Stock™);

Whereas, prior to the Distribution, Distributing will contribute all of the common stock of Holdco #2 to Controlled in exchange for
common stock of Controlled;

Whereas, following the SFXE Exchange, SFXE and its eligible domestic direct and indirect Subsidiaries will cease to be members of
the Distributing Consolidated Group;

Whereas, pursuant to a pre-existing binding commitment entered into prior to the SFXE Exchange, Distributing will sell (the “Sale™)
the Series B Preferred Stock to an unrelated third party investor, and Distributing will recognize a capital loss for U.S. federal income tax
and other applicable Tax purposes (the “SFXE Loss”);

Whereas, following the Sale and prior to the Distribution, Controlled will contribute the Holdco #2 common stock to one of its wholly-
owned Subsidiaries (the “Holdco # 2 Contribution”);

Whereas, Distributing and Controlled have entered into the Distribution Agreement setting forth the corporate transactions pursuant to
which Distributing will distribute all of the outstanding shares of common stock of Controlled to Distributing’s stockholders in a
transaction intended to qualify as a tax-free distribution under Section 355 and Section 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code;

Whereas, as a result the Distribution, Controlled and its direct and indirect eligible domestic Subsidiaries will cease to be members of
the Distributing Consolidated Group;




Whereas, following the SFXE Exchange, Holdco #2 will be a common parent corporation of an affiliated group of corporations,
including SFXE and its direct and indirect eligible domestic Subsidiaries, which will elect to file consolidated U.S. federal income tax
returns (the “Holdco #2 Consolidated Group”), and following the Distribution, Controlled will be the common parent corporation of an
affiliated group of corporations, including its direct and indirect eligible domestic Subsidiaries, but excluding any member of the Holdco
#2 Consolidated Group, which will elect to file consolidated U.S. federal income tax returns; and

Whereas, in contemplation of the SFXE Exchange and the Distribution, the Companies desire to enter into this Agreement to provide
for the allocation among them of the liabilities for Taxes arising prior to, as a result of and subsequent to the SFXE Exchange and the
Distribution, and to provide for and agree upon other matters relating to Taxes;

Agreements

Now, Therefore, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, the Companies hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. Definition and Construction.

Section 1.1. Definitions of Capitalized Terms.

For purposes of this Agreement (including the recitals hereof), the following capitalized terms shall have the meanings set forth
below:

“Accounting Cutoff Date” means, with respect to Controlled, any date as of the end of which there is a closing of its financial
accounting records.

“Additional Tax” means:

(a) with respect to Post-Deconsolidation Events that result, directly or indirectly, in Distributing not being able to utilize the SFXE
Loss, an amount equal to the sum of:

(1) the amount of any Tax refund that the Distributing Consolidated Group would have otherwise received under applicable Tax
Law if the SFXE Loss had otherwise been utilizable by the Distributing Consolidated Group and the Distributing
Consolidated Group could have carried back the SFXE Loss to one or more Tax Periods prior to the Tax Period during
which the SFXE Loss would have otherwise been incurred (the “Loss Year”); and

(2) the product of (i) the amount by which the consolidated capital net income (as defined in Treasury Regulations
Section 1.1502-22(a)) of the Distributing Consolidated Group for the Loss Year and each Tax Period thereafter (determined
without taking into account any Tax Assets of the Distributing Consolidated Group that may be carried forward or carried
back from other Tax Periods) would




have otherwise been reduced by the SFXE Loss (after taking into account any amount of the SFXE Loss which would have
been utilized in prior Tax Periods), multiplied by (ii) the highest marginal corporate Tax rate for the applicable Tax Period;

(b) subject to clause (a) above and without duplication, with respect to any Post-Deconsolidation Event that affects the amount of any
Tax imposed on or attributable to any Group Member for which Distributing is otherwise responsible under this Agreement, an
amount equal to the excess (if any) of (1) the cumulative amount of Tax for which Distributing is otherwise responsible under this
Agreement determined after taking into account any and all Post-Deconsolidation Events, over (2) the cumulative amount of Tax

that Distributing would otherwise be responsible for under this Agreement determined without taking into account any Post-
Deconsolidation Event; and

(c) subject to clause (a) and without duplication, with respect to any Post-Deconsolidation Event that affects a Tax Asset of any
Group Member, an amount equal to the Tax Benefits from such Tax Asset that Distributing would have otherwise recognized if
such Post-Deconsolidation Event had not occurred.

“Adjustment Request” means any formal or informal claim or request filed with any Tax Authority, or with any administrative agency
or court, for the adjustment, refund or credit of Taxes, including (i) any amended Tax Return claiming adjustment to the Taxes as
reported on the Tax Return or, if applicable, as previously adjusted, or (ii) any claim for refund or credit of Taxes previously paid.

“Affiliate” means any Person that directly or indirectly is “controlled” by the other Person in question. “Control” means the
possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether
through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise. Except as otherwise provided herein, the term Affiliate shall refer to
Affiliates of a Person as determined after the Distribution.

“Agreement” shall have the meaning provided in the preamble.
“AMG Broadcasting Business” means the AMG Broadcasting Business as that term is defined in the Ruling Request.

“Carryback Item” means any net operating loss, net capital loss, excess tax credit or other similar Tax item which may or must be
carried from one Tax Period to another Tax Period under the Code or other applicable Tax Law.

“CCB Group” means Clear Channel Broadcasting Inc., a Nevada corporation, and its Subsidiaries as of the time of the Distribution.
For purposes of clarification, the term “CCB Group” shall not include any member of either the Controlled Group or the CCO Group.
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“CCB International Assets” means those assets located outside the United States and equity interests in foreign Entities that were held
by Distributing and its Subsidiaries (including the members of the Controlled Group, the CCB Group and the CCO Group) before the
International Restructuring and are held by the CCB Group after the International Restructuring.

3

‘CCO Group” shall mean Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its Subsidiaries as of the time of the
Distribution. For purposes of clarification, the term “CCO Group” shall not include any member of either the Controlled Group or the
CCB Group.

“CCO International Assets” means those assets located outside the United States and equity interests in foreign Entities that were held
by Distributing and its Subsidiaries (including the members of the Controlled Group, the CCB Group and the CCO Group) before the
International Restructuring and are held by the CCO Group after the International Restructuring.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or any successor law.

“Combined Tax Return” means, with respect to any Tax, a Tax Return that is filed on a consolidated, combined or unitary basis and
includes at least one Distributing Group Member and at least one Controlled Group Member.

“Companies” means Distributing, Controlled and Holdco #2, collectively, and “Company” means, as the context requires, any one of
Distributing , Controlled or Holdco #2.

“Controlled Filed Returns” shall have the meaning provided in Section 4.2.

“Controlled Group” means, collectively, Controlled and its direct and indirect Subsidiaries, including the members of the Holdco #2
Consolidated Group.

“Controlled Group Member” means, individually, each member of the Controlled Group, and the term “Controlled Group Members”
means, collectively, as the context requires, all or less than all of the members of the Controlled Group.

“Controlled Indemnitees” shall have the meaning provided in Section 2.1(b).

“Controlled International Assets” means those assets located outside the United States and equity interests in foreign Entities that were
held by Distributing and its Subsidiaries (including the members of the Controlled Group, the CCB Group and the CCO Group) before
the International Restructuring and are held by the Controlled Group after the International Restructuring.

“Controlled Separate Return” means a Tax Return that includes one or more Controlled Group Members and does not include any
Distributing Group Member, including any such Tax Return filed for Federal Income Tax purposes by an affiliated group (as defined in
Section 1504 of the Code) of corporations the common parent of which is a Controlled Group Member or any other corporation that is not
a Distributing Group Member.

“Controlled’s Allocated Tax Liability™ shall have the meaning provided in Section 5.1(a).
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“Controlled’s Cumulative Tax Payment” shall have the meaning provided in Section 5.1(a).
“Controlled’s Redetermined Allocated Tax Liability” shall have the meaning provided in Section 5.1(c)(1).

“Controlling Company” shall have the meaning provided in Section 7.2(a).

“Deconsolidation Date” means, with respect to each Controlled Group Member, the date of an applicable Deconsolidation Event.

“Deconsolidation Event” means (i) with respect to each Controlled Group Member that is included in the Distributing Consolidated
Group for Federal Income Tax purposes as of the date hereof, any event or transaction occurring after the date hereof, including the
Distribution and the SFXE Exchange, that causes such Controlled Group Member to no longer be eligible to be included in the
Distributing Consolidated Group for Federal Income Tax purposes; (ii) with respect to each Controlled Group Member that is not eligible
to be included in the Distributing Consolidated Group for Federal Income Tax purposes as of the date hereof because it is not an
“includible corporation” as defined in Section 1504(b) of the Code, any event or transaction occurring after the date hereof, including the
Distribution and the SFXE Exchange, that would cause such Controlled Group Member to no longer be eligible to be included in the
Distributing Consolidated Group for Federal Income Tax purposes if such Controlled Group Member were an “includible corporation” as
defined in Section 1504(b) of the Code; and (iii) with respect to Holdco #2, the date of its incorporation under the laws of the State of

Delaware.

“Default Rate” means a rate of interest equal to the underpayment rate provided in Section 6621(c) of the Code, determined as of the
date any applicable payment required to be made under this Agreement is due.

“Distributing Filed Returns” shall have the meaning provided in Section 4.1(a).

“Distributing Consolidated Group” shall have the meaning provided in the recitals to this Agreement.

“Distributing Group” means, collectively, Distributing and its direct and indirect Subsidiaries, including Clear Channel Worldwide
Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, but excluding any Controlled Group Member.

“Distributing Group Member” means, individually, each member of the Distributing Group, and the term “Distributing Group
Members” means, collectively, as the context requires, all or less than all of the members of the Distributing Group.

“Distributing Indemnitees” shall have the meaning provided in Section 2.1(a).

“Distributing Separate Return” means, with respect to any Tax, a Tax Return that includes only Distributing Group Members.
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“Distributing’s Allocated Tax Liability” shall have the meaning provided in Section 5.1(b).

“Distributing’s Cumulative Tax Payment” shall have the meaning provided in Section 5.1(b).
“Distributing’s Redetermined Allocated Tax Liability” shall have the meaning provided in Section 5.1(c)(2).

“Distribution” means the distribution to Distributing stockholders on the Distribution Date of all of the outstanding stock of Controlled
owned by Distributing.

“Distribution Agreement” means that certain Master Separation and Distribution Agreement dated __, 2005, as amended from time to
time, between Distributing and Controlled setting forth the corporate transactions required to effect the distribution to the Distributing
stockholders of the outstanding stock of Controlled, and to which this Agreement is attached as an exhibit.

“Distribution Date” means the Distribution Date as that term is defined in the Distribution Agreement.

“Distribution Taxes” means (i) any Taxes, calculated without regard to any Tax Assets of the Distributing Group, imposed on any
Distributing Group Member resulting from, or arising in connection with the failure of the Distribution to be tax-free to such Distributing
Group Member under the Code, including any Tax resulting from the failure of the Distribution to qualify under Section 355 and
Section 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code or the application of Section 355(d) or Section 355(e) of the Code to the Distribution or corresponding
provisions of other Tax Laws, and (ii) any and all Losses relating to or arising from claims or lawsuits by stockholders of Distributing
resulting from the failure of the Distribution to be tax-free to such stockholders under the Code or corresponding provisions of other
applicable Tax Law.

“Entertainment Assets” means the Entertainment Assets as that term is defined in the Distribution Agreement.

“Entity” means a partnership (whether general or limited), a corporation, a limited liability company, an association, a joint stock
company, a trust, a joint venture, an unincorporated organization or any other entity, without regard to whether it is treated as a
disregarded entity for U.S. federal tax purposes.

“Federal Income Tax” means any Tax imposed by Subtitle A or F of the Code.

“Final Determination” means the final resolution of liability for any Tax, which resolution may be for a specific issue or adjustment or
for a Taxable Period, (a) by IRS Form 870 or 870-AD (or any successor forms thereto), on the date of acceptance by or on behalf of the
Controlling Company, or by a comparable form under the Tax Laws of a state, local or foreign taxing jurisdiction, except that a Form 870
or 870-AD or comparable form shall not constitute a Final Determination to the extent that it reserves (whether by its terms or by
operation of law) the right of the Controlling Company to file a claim for refund or the right of the Tax Authority
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to assert a further deficiency in respect of such issue or adjustment or for such Taxable Period (as the case may be); (b) by a decision,
judgment, decree, or other order by a court of competent jurisdiction, which has become final and unappealable; (c) by a closing
agreement or accepted offer in compromise under Sections 7121 or 7122 of the Code, or a comparable agreement under the Tax Laws of a
state, local or foreign taxing jurisdiction; (d) by any allowance of a refund or credit in respect of an overpayment of Tax, but only after the
expiration of all periods during which such refund may be recovered (including by way of offset) by the jurisdiction imposing such Tax;
(e) by a final settlement resulting from a treaty-based competent authority determination; or (f) by any other final disposition, including by
reason of the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations.

“Foreign Income Tax” means any Tax imposed by any foreign country or any possession of the United States, or by any political
subdivision of any foreign country or United States possession, which is an income tax as defined in Treasury Regulations Section 1.901-
2.

“Group” means the Distributing Group or the Controlled Group, as the context requires, and the term “ Groups” means the Distributing
Group and the Controlled Group.

“Group Member” means any Distributing Group Member or any Controlled Group Member.

“Holdco #2 Consolidated Group” shall have the meaning provided in the recitals.

“Holdco #2 Contribution” shall have the meaning provided in the recitals.

“Income Tax” means each of any Federal Income Tax, State Income Tax or Foreign Income Tax, as the context requires.

“Indemnification Expenses” shall have the meaning provided in Section 7.3.

“Indemnified Company” means (i) Distributing, in cases where it is entitled to be indemnified for Losses by Controlled and Holdco #2
under this Agreement, and (ii) Controlled, in cases where it is entitled to be indemnified for Losses by Distributing under this Agreement.

“Indemnifying Company” means (i) Distributing, in cases where it is obligated to indemnify Controlled for Losses under this
Agreement, and (ii) Controlled and Holdco #2, in cases where they are obligated to indemnify Distributing for Losses under this
Agreement.

“Independent Firm” means a recognized law or accounting firm; provided, however, that such term shall not include any accounting
firm that performs or has preformed audit services with respect to Distributing or Controlled.

“IRS” means the Internal Revenue Service.

“International Assets” means, collectively, the CCB International Assets, the Controlled International Assets and the CCO International
Assets.

“International Officer’s Certificates” means the letters executed by officers of Distributing and Controlled provided to either Skadden,
Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP or Ernst & Young, in connection with the International Tax Opinions.
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“International Restructuring” means the restructuring by Distributing of the International Assets to cause the CCB International Assets
to be held by CCB Group, the CCE International Assets to the held by Controlled Group and the CCO International Assets to be held by
the CCO Group.

“International Restructuring Taxes” means any and all Taxes imposed on or attributable to any Group Member that arise from or are
attributable to such Group Member’s distribution, transfer, assignment, other disposition, receipt, purchase or other acquisition of
International Assets pursuant to the International Restructuring, however effected.

“International Tax Opinions” means each of the opinions of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP and Ernst & Young,
addressing certain U.S. federal income tax consequences of the International Restructuring.

“Joint Taxes” shall have the meaning provided in Section 5.1.
“Letter Ruling” means the rulings by the IRS delivered to Distributing in connection with the Distribution.

“Loss” means any loss, cost, fine, penalty, fee, damage, obligation, liability, payment in settlement, Tax or other expense of any kind,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, but excluding any consequential, special, punitive or exemplary damages.

“Officer’s Certificate” means the letters executed by officers of Distributing and Controlled provided to Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher
& Flom LLP, in connection with the Tax Opinion.

“Other Tax” means any Tax that is not an Income Tax, including any value added tax, any real or personal property Tax, any flat
minimum dollar Tax, any withholding Tax or any capital duty tax.

“Payment Date” means (i) with respect to any Federal Income Tax, each of the due date for any required installment of estimated taxes
determined under Section 6655 of the Code, the due date (determined without regard to extensions) for filing any Tax Return determined
under Section 6072 of the Code and the date any Tax Return is filed, and (ii) with respect to any other Tax, the corresponding dates
determined under the applicable Tax Law.

“Payment Period” shall have the meaning provided in Section 5.5.
“Person” means an individual, any Entity or a governmental entity or any department, agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Post-Deconsolidation Events” shall have the meaning provided in Section 2.6(c).

“Post-Deconsolidation Period” means, with respect to any Income Tax, any Tax Period beginning after an applicable Deconsolidation
Date, and, in the case of any Straddle Period, the portion of such Straddle Period beginning on the day after the applicable
Deconsolidation Date.




“Pre-Deconsolidation Period” means, with respect to any Income Tax, any Tax Period ending on or before the applicable
Deconsolidation Date, and, in the case of any Straddle Period, the portion of such Straddle Period ending on and including the applicable
Deconsolidation Date.

“Prior Tax Allocation Agreements” means any written or oral agreement or any other arrangements relating to allocation of Taxes
existing between or among any Distributing Group Member and any Controlled Group Member as of the Distribution Date (other than
this Agreement).

“Reimbursement Statement” shall have the meaning provided in Section 7.3.

“Ruling\Opinion Documents” means the Ruling Request, the Letter Ruling, the Officer’s Certificate and the Tax Opinion, including
any and all any amendments and supplements to the foregoing.

“Ruling Request” means the letter filed by Distributing with the IRS requesting a ruling from the IRS regarding certain U.S. federal
income tax consequences of the Transactions (including all attachments, exhibits and other materials submitted with such ruling request
letter) and any amendment or supplement to such ruling request letter.

“Sale” shall have the meaning provided in the recitals to this Agreement.

“Separate Company Tax” means any Tax computed by reference to the assets and activities of a member or members of a single
Group.

“Series A Preferred Stock™ shall have the meaning provided in the recitals.

“Series B Preferred Stock” shall have the meaning provided in the recitals.

“SFXE Loss” shall have the meaning provided in the recitals.
“Straddle Period” means any Tax Period that begins on or before and ends after any applicable Deconsolidation Date.

“State Income Tax” means any Tax imposed by any state of the United States, the District of Columbia or any political subdivision of
the foregoing, which is imposed on or measured, in whole or in part, by income, capital or net worth or a taxable base in the nature of
income, capital or net worth, including franchise Taxes based on such factors.

“Subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person, each Entity that such Person directly or indirectly owns, beneficially or of record
(1) an amount of voting securities of other interests in such Entity that is sufficient to enable such Person to elect at least a majority of the
members of such Entity’s board of directors or other governing body or (ii) at least 50% of the outstanding equity or financial interests of
such Entity.

“Tax” or “Taxes” means any income, gross income, gross receipts, profits, capital stock, capital duty, franchise, withholding, payroll,
social security, workers compensation, unemployment, disability, property, ad valorem, stamp, excise, severance, occupation, service,
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sales, use, license, lease, transfer, import, export, value added, alternative minimum, estimated or other similar tax (including any fee,
assessment, or other charge in the nature of or in lieu of any tax) imposed by any governmental entity or political subdivision thereof, and
any interest, penalties, additions to tax or additional amounts in respect of the foregoing.

“Tax Asset” means any Tax Item that has accrued for Tax purposes, but has not been used during a Taxable Period, and that could
reduce a Tax in another Taxable Period, including a net operating loss, net capital loss, investment tax credit, foreign tax credit, research
and experimentation credit, charitable deduction or credit related to alternative minimum tax or any other Tax credit.

“Tax Authority” means, with respect to any Tax, the governmental entity or political subdivision thereof that imposes such Tax, and
the agency (if any) charged with the collection of such Tax for such governmental entity or political subdivision, including the IRS.

“Tax Benefit” means any refund, credit or other reduction in otherwise required Tax payments (including any reduction in estimated
Tax payments).

“Tax Contest” means an audit, review, examination or any other administrative or judicial proceeding with the purpose or effect of
redetermining Taxes of any member of any Group (including any administrative or judicial review of any claim for refund) for any Tax
Period.

“Tax Detriment” means an increase in the Tax liability of any Group Member for any Taxable Period or a decrease in a Tax Asset of
any Group Member. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, a Tax Detriment shall be deemed to have been realized from a Tax
Item in a Taxable Period only if and to the extent that the Tax liability of the Group Member for such Tax Period, after taking into account
the effect of the Tax Item on the Tax liability of such Group Member in the current Tax Period and all prior Tax Periods, is more than it
would have been if such Tax liability were determined without regard to such Tax Item.

“Tax Item” means, with respect to any Tax, any item of income, gain, loss, deduction or credit, or other attribute that may have the
effect of increasing or decreasing any Tax.

“Tax Law” means the law of any governmental entity or political subdivision thereof relating to any Tax, including the Code.

“Tax Opinion” means the opinion of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, addressing certain U.S. federal income tax
consequences of the Distribution under Sections 368 and 355 of the Code.

“Tax Period” means, with respect to any Tax, the period for which the Tax is reported as provided under the Code or other applicable
Tax Law.

“Tax Records” means Tax Returns, Tax Return workpapers, documentation relating to any Tax Contests and any other books of
account or records required to be maintained under the Code or other applicable Tax Laws or under any record retention agreement with
any Tax Authority.
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“Tax Return” means any report of Taxes due, any claims for refund of Taxes paid, any information return with respect to Taxes or any
other similar report, statement, declaration or document required to be filed under the Code or other Tax Law, including any attachments,
exhibits or other materials submitted with any of the foregoing, and including any amendments or supplements to any of the foregoing.

“Theater Business” means the Theater Business as that term is defined in the Ruling Request.
“Transactions” means the transactions contemplated by the Distribution Agreement.

Treasury Regulations” means the regulations promulgated from time to time under the Code as in effect for the relevant Tax Period.

Other capitalized terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement shall have the meanings given them.
Section 1.2. Construction.

Unless the context otherwise requires: (i) references to a Section (other than in connection with the Code or the Treasury Regulations)
refer to a section of this Agreement; (ii) the word “including” shall mean “including, but not limited to”’; and (iii) words used in the
singular shall also denote the plural, and words used in the plural shall also denote the singular. The headings contained in this Agreement
are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

Section 2. Indemnification; Allocation of Responsibility for Taxes.

Section 2.1. Indemnification.

(a) Distributing’s Indemnity of Controlled.

Distributing shall indemnify Controlled, each other Controlled Group Member and their respective directors, officers and employees

(collectively, the “Distributing Indemnitees”), and hold them harmless from and against any and all Losses that arise from or are
attributable to:

(1) any and all Taxes that are specifically allocated to or the responsibility of Distributing under this Agreement;
(2) any failure by Distributing to make a payment required by this Agreement to Controlled when due; and

(3) any breach or nonperformance by Distributing of any of its representations, warranties or covenants contained in this
Agreement.
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(b) Controlled’s and Holdco #2’s Indemnity of Distributing.

Controlled and Holdco #2 shall, jointly and severally, indemnify Distributing, each other Distributing Group Member and their
respective directors, officers and employees (collectively, the “Controlled Indemnitees’), and hold them harmless from and against any
and all Losses that arise from or are attributable to:

(1) any and all Taxes that are specifically allocated to or the responsibility of Controlled under this Agreement;
(2) any failure by Controlled to make a payment required by this Agreement to Distributing when due; and
(3) any breach or nonperformance by Controlled of any of its representations, warranties or covenants contained in this Agreement.

Section 2.2. Allocation of Federal Income Taxes.

Except as provided in Section 2.6, the responsibility for Federal Income Taxes imposed on or attributable to any Group Member shall
be allocated between Distributing and Controlled as follows:

(a) Distributing’s Responsibility for Federal Income Taxes.

Distributing shall be responsible for any and all Federal Income Taxes, including any adjustment to such Federal Income Taxes as a
result of a Final Determination, to the extent such Federal Income Taxes are imposed on or are attributable to (i) any Distributing Group
Member with respect to any Tax Period and (ii) any Controlled Group Member with respect to any Pre-Deconsolidation Period applicable
to such Controlled Group Member.

(b) Controlled’s Responsibility for Federal Income Taxes.

Controlled shall be responsible for any and all Federal Income Taxes, including any adjustment to such Federal Income Taxes as a
result of a Final Determination, that are imposed on or are attributable to any Controlled Group Member with respect to any Post-
Deconsolidation Period applicable to such Controlled Group Member.

Section 2.3. Allocation of State Income Taxes.

Except as provided in Section 2.6, the responsibility for any and all State Income Taxes imposed on or attributable to any Group
Member shall be allocated between Distributing and Controlled as follows:

(a) Distributing’s Responsibility for State Income Taxes.

Distributing shall be responsible for any and all State Income Taxes, including any adjustment to such State Income Taxes as a result
of a Final Determination, to the extent such State Income Taxes are imposed on or are attributable to (i) any Distributing Group Member
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with respect to any Tax Period and (ii) any Controlled Group Member with respect to any Pre-Deconsolidation Period applicable to such
Controlled Group Member.

(b) Controlled’s Responsibility for State Income Taxes.

Controlled shall be responsible for any and all State Income Taxes, including any adjustment to such State Income Taxes as a result of
a Final Determination, that are imposed on or are attributable to any Controlled Group Member with respect to any Post-Deconsolidation
Period applicable to such Controlled Group Member.

Section 2.4. Foreign Income Taxes.

Except as provided in Section 2.6, the responsibility for Foreign Income Taxes that are imposed on or are attributable to any Group
Member shall be allocated between Distributing and Controlled as follows:

(a) Distributing’s Responsibility for Foreign Income Taxes.

Distributing shall be responsible for any and all Foreign Income Taxes, including any adjustment to such Foreign Income Taxes as a
result of a Final Determination, to the extent such Foreign Income Taxes are imposed on or are attributable to any Distributing Group
Member with respect to any Tax Period.

(b) Controlled’s Responsibility for Foreign Income Taxes.

Controlled shall be responsible for any and all Foreign Income Taxes, including any adjustment to such Foreign Income Tax as a result
of a Final Determination, to the extent such Foreign Income Taxes are imposed on or are attributable to any Controlled Group Member
with respect to any Tax Period.

Section 2.5. Allocation of Other Taxes.

Except as provided in Section 2.6, the responsibility for Other Taxes imposed on or attributable to any Group Member shall be
allocated between Distributing and Controlled as follows:

(a) Distributing’s Responsibility for Other Taxes.

Distributing shall be responsible for any and all Other Taxes, including any adjustment to such Other Taxes as a result of a Final
Determination, to the extent such Other Taxes are imposed on or attributable to any Distributing Group Member with respect to any Tax
Period.

(b) Controlled’s Responsibility for Other Taxes.

Controlled shall be responsible for any and all Other Taxes, including any adjustment to such Other Taxes as a result of a Final
Determination, to the extent such Other Taxes are imposed on or are attributable to any Controlled Group Member with respect to any
Tax Period.
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(c) Other Taxes Imposed on Multiple Group Members.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 2.5(a) or (b), with respect to any Other Taxes for any Taxable Period that are
imposed under applicable Tax Law on one or more Distributing Group Members and one or more Controlled Group Members:

(1) Distributing shall be responsible for any and all such Other Taxes, including any adjustment to such Other Taxes as a result of a
Final Determination, to the extent any Distributing Group Member is primarily responsible for such Other Taxes under applicable Tax
Law; and

(2) Controlled shall be responsible for any and all such Other Taxes, including any adjustment to such Other Taxes as a result of a
Final Determination, to the extent any Controlled Group Member is primarily responsible for such Other Taxes under applicable Tax
Law.

Section 2.6. Distribution Taxes; International Restructuring Taxes:; Additional Taxes.
(a) Distribution Taxes.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the following provisions shall apply:

(1) Distributing’s Responsibility for Distribution Taxes. Distributing shall be responsible for one hundred percent (100%) of any
Distribution Taxes that result from one or more of the following:

(1) any act, failure to act or omission of or by any Distributing Group Member that is inconsistent with any material, information,
covenant or representation in the Officer’s Certificate or the Ruling Request;

(ii) any act, failure to act or omission of or by any Distributing Group Member after the Distribution Date, including a cessation,
transfer to Affiliates or disposition of the AMG Broadcasting Business, or an issuance of stock, stock buyback or payment of an
extraordinary dividend by any Distributing Group Member following the Distribution Date;

(iii) any acquisition of any stock or assets of any Distributing Group Member by one or more Persons prior to or following the
Distribution; or

(iv) any issuance by any Distributing Group Member, or change in ownership of stock of any Distributing Group Member, that
causes Section 355(d) or Section 355(e) of the Code to apply to the Distribution.
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(2) Controlled’s Responsibility for Distribution Taxes. Controlled shall be responsible for one hundred percent (100%) of any
Distribution Taxes that result from one or more of the following:

(i) any act, failure to act or omission of or by any Controlled Group Member that is inconsistent with any material, information,
covenant or representation in the Officer’s Certificate or the Ruling Request;

(i) any act, failure to act or omission of or by any Controlled Group Member after the Distribution Date, including a cessation,
transfer to Affiliates or disposition of the Theater Businesses, or an issuance of stock, stock buyback or payment of an
extraordinary dividend by any Controlled Group Member following the Distribution Date;

(iil) any acquisition of any stock or assets of any Controlled Group Member by one or more Persons prior to or following the
Distribution Date; or

(iv) any issuance by any Controlled Group Member, or change in ownership of stock of any Controlled Group Member, that
causes Section 355(d) or Section 355(e) of the Code to apply to the Distribution.

(3) Joint Responsibility for Distribution Taxes. The responsibility for any Distribution Taxes not allocated under Section 2.6(b)(1)
or (2) shall be borne fifty percent (50%) by Distributing and fifty percent (50%) by Controlled.

(b) International Restructuring Taxes.

Except as provided in Section 2.6(a), but notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the responsibility for
International Restructuring Taxes imposed on or attributable to any Group Member shall be allocated between Distributing and Controlled
as follows:

(1) Distributing’s Responsibility for International Restructuring Taxes. Except as provided in Section 2.6(b)(2), Distributing shall
be responsible for any and all International Restructuring Taxes, including any adjustment to such International Restructuring Taxes as
a result of a Final Determination, that are imposed on or attributable to any Group Member with respect to any Tax Period.

(2) Controlled’s Responsibility for International Restructuring Taxes. Notwithstanding Section 2.6(b)(1), Controlled shall be
responsible for any and all International Restructuring Taxes, including any adjustment to such International Restructuring Taxes as a
result of a Final Determination, one or more of the following: (i) that are imposed on or attributable to any Group Member to the
extent that such International Restructuring Taxes result from any act, failure to act or omission of or by any (ii) any act, failure to act
or omission of or by any Controlled Group Member after an applicable Deconsolidation Event; (iii) any acquisition of any stock or
assets of any Controlled Group Member by one or more Persons following an applicable Deconsolidation Event; or (iv) any issuance
by any Controlled Group Member, or change in ownership of stock of any Controlled Group Member, after an applicable
Deconsolidation Event that causes Section 355(d) or Section 355(e) of the Code to apply to the International Restructuring. Controlled
Group Member that is inconsistent with any material, information, covenant or representation in the International Officer’s
Certificates.
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(c) Additional Taxes.

Except as provided in Section 2.6(a) and (b), but notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, Controlled
shall be responsible for one hundred percent (100%) of any Additional Taxes, determined for each applicable Tax Period, imposed on any
Group Member that result or arise, in whole or in part, from any act, failure to act, event or transaction that relates to the stock, assets or
business of any Controlled Group Member that occurs after the applicable Deconsolidation Event of such Controlled Group Member or
any Controlled Group Member’s breach of any representation, covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement that occurs after the
applicable Deconsolidation Event of such Controlled Group Member (“Post-Deconsolidation Events”), including:

(1) Additional Taxes resulting or arising from Distributing not being able to utilize the SFXE Loss for Tax purposes as a result of
Post-Deconsolidation Events; and

(2) Additional Taxes resulting or arising from any Controlled Group Member failing to provide assistance and cooperation to
Distributing in accordance with Section 6.1 or failing to retain Tax Records in accordance with Section 6.2.

Section 3. Proration of Taxes; Allocation of Tax Items.

For purposes of apportioning Taxes and Tax Items between Pre-Deconsolidation Periods and Post-Deconsolidation Periods and for
purposes of preparing and filing Tax Returns under this Agreement, the following provisions shall apply:

Section 3.1. Proration of Tax Items.
(a) General Method.

Except as provided in Section 3.1(b), in the case of any Straddle Period, Tax Items shall be apportioned between Pre-Deconsolidation
Periods and Post-Deconsolidation Periods in accordance with the principles of Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-76(b) or an
applicable corresponding provision under the Tax Laws of any state, local or foreign jurisdiction, as such corresponding provision is
reasonably interpreted and applied by Distributing. No election shall be made under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-76(b)(2)(ii)
(relating to ratable allocation of a year’s items). If any applicable Deconsolidation Date is not an Accounting Cutoff Date, the principles of
Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-76(b)(2)(iii) will be applied to ratably allocate the Tax Items (other than extraordinary items) for the
month which includes the applicable Deconsolidation Date.
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(b) Transaction Tax Items.

In determining the apportionment of Tax Items between Pre-Deconsolidation Periods and Post-Deconsolidation Periods, any Tax
Items relating to the Transactions shall be treated as extraordinary items described in Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-76(b)(2)(ii)(C)
and shall be allocated to Pre-Deconsolidation Periods, and any Taxes related to such Tax Items shall be treated under Treasury
Regulations Section 1.1502-76(b)(2)(iv) as relating to such extraordinary item and shall be allocated to Pre-Deconsolidation Periods.

Section 3.2. Combined Tax Returns.

With respect to any Combined Tax Return that includes Tax Items of one or more Controlled Group Members that are allocable to any
Post-Deconsolidation Period in accordance with the other provisions of this Agreement, the Income Taxes that are treated as imposed on
or attributable to any such Controlled Group Members in the aggregate for purposes of this Agreement shall be deemed equal to the
amount of Income Taxes that would result if all Controlled Group Members for whom a Deconsolidation Event has occurred and included
in such Combined Tax Return had filed a consolidated, combined or unitary Tax Return based solely on their income, apportionment
factors and other Tax Items included in such Combined Tax Return that are allocable to a Post-Deconsolidation Period in accordance with
the other provisions of this Agreement.

Section 3.3. Allocation of Tax Assets and Earnings & Profits.

(a) Allocation of Tax Assets.

In connection with any Deconsolidation Event, Distributing shall determine in accordance with applicable Tax Laws the allocation of
any applicable Tax Assets among Distributing, each other Distributing Group Member, Controlled and each other Controlled Group
Member. The Companies hereby agree that in the absence of controlling legal authority or unless otherwise provided under this
Agreement, each Tax Asset shall be allocated to the Group Member who generated such Tax Asset (other than with respect to any Tax
Asset created by reason of a contribution to the capital of Controlled by Distributing on or before the Distribution Date, in which case
Distributing shall be permitted to retain such Tax Asset). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Companies agree that the SFXE Loss is a
Tax Asset of and shall be allocated to Distributing.

(b) Earnings and Profits.

Distributing shall advise Controlled in writing of the decrease in Distributing’s earnings and profits attributable to any Deconsolidation
Event under Section 312(h) of the Code on or before the first anniversary of the applicable Deconsolidation Date; provided, however, that
Distributing shall provide Controlled with estimates of such amounts (determined in accordance with past practice) prior to such
anniversary as reasonably requested by Controlled.
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Section 4. Preparation and Filing of Tax Returns.

Section 4.1. Distributing’s Responsibility.

(a) Distributing Filed Returns.

Distributing shall have the exclusive obligation and right to prepare and file, or to cause to be prepared and filed, all Tax Returns that
include any Group Member if Distributing is responsible under this Agreement for any portion of the Taxes reported on such Tax Returns
(“Distributing Filed Returns”), including (i) all Distributing Separate Returns, (ii) all Combined Tax Returns, (iii) all Controlled Separate
Returns for which Distributing is responsible for any portion of any Federal Income Tax, State Income Tax or International Restructuring
Tax reported on such Controlled Separate Return, and Distributing shall have the exclusive obligation and right to prepare and file, or to
cause to be prepared and filed, all Adjustment Requests made with respect to Distributing Filed Returns. Controlled and Holdco #2 shall,
and shall cause each other Controlled Group Member to, assist and cooperate with Distributing in accordance with Section 6 with respect
to the preparation and filing of all Distributing Filed Returns, including providing information required to be provided in Section 6. In the
case of any Distributing Filed Return which is required by applicable Tax Law to be signed by any Controlled Group Member (or by its
authorized representative), Controlled and Holdco #2 shall cause such Controlled Group Member (or its authorized representative) to sign
such Distributing Filed Tax Return.

(b) Election to Join Combined Returns.

Controlled and Holdco #2 shall cause each Controlled Group Member to elect and join in filing Combined Tax Returns with any
Distributing Group Member that Distributing reasonably determines are required to be filed under applicable Tax Laws or will result in
the minimization of the net present value of the aggregate Tax to the Group Members eligible to join in such Combined Tax Returns.

(c) Appointment as Agent.

Each of Controlled and Holdco #2 hereby irrevocably designates, and agrees to cause each other Controlled Group Member to so
designate, Distributing as its sole and exclusive agent and attorney-in-fact to take such action (including execution of documents) as
Distributing, in its sole discretion, may deem appropriate in any and all matters (including Tax Contests) relating to any Combined Tax
Return.

Section 4.2. Controlled Filed Returns.

Controlled shall have the exclusive obligation and right to prepare and file, or to cause to be prepared and filed, all Controlled Separate
Returns that are not Distributing Filed Returns (“Controlled Filed Returns”), and Controlled shall have the exclusive obligation and right
to prepare and file, or to cause to be prepared and filed, all Adjustment Requests made with respect to Controlled Filed Returns.
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Section 4.3. Tax Accounting Practices.

(a) In General.

Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.3(b), to the extent the Tax accounting practices or reporting position with respect to Tax
Items reported on any Controlled Filed Return might reasonably affect any Tax liability for which Distributing is responsible under this
Agreement, Controlled shall prepare such Controlled Filed Return and report such Tax Items in a manner that is consistent with
Distributing’s past Tax accounting practices and reporting positions with respect to such Tax Items (unless such past Tax accounting
practices or reporting positions are no longer permissible under the Code or other applicable Tax Law), and to the extent any Tax Items
are not covered by past Tax accounting practices or reporting positions (or in the event such past Tax accounting practices or reporting
positions are no longer permissible under the Code or other applicable Tax Law), in accordance with reasonable Tax accounting practices
and reporting positions selected by Distributing.

(b) Reporting of Transaction Tax Items.

The Tax treatment reported on any Tax Return of Tax Items relating to the Transactions shall be consistent with the treatment of such
Tax Items in the Ruling\Opinion Documents (unless such treatment is not permissible under the Code or other applicable Tax Law). To
the extent there is a Tax Item relating to the Transactions which is not covered by the Ruling\Opinion Documents, Distributing shall
determine the proper Tax treatment of any such Tax Item and the method for reporting such Tax Item on any Tax Return. Such treatment
and reporting method shall be used by Controlled in preparing and filing any Controlled Filed Return unless either (i) there is no
reasonable basis for such Tax treatment or (ii) such Tax treatment is inconsistent with the Tax treatment contemplated in the
Ruling\Opinion Documents. To the extent any Controlled Filed Return includes a Tax Item relating to the Transactions, Controlled shall
submit a copy of such Controlled Filed Return to Distributing for its review. Controlled shall use its reasonable best efforts to make such
Controlled Filed Return available for Distributing’s review sufficiently in advance of the due date for filing such Controlled Filed Return
to provide Distributing with a meaningful opportunity to analyze and comment on such Controlled Filed Return and have such Controlled
Filed Return modified before filing. Any dispute regarding the proper Tax treatment of any Tax Item relating to the Transactions shall be
referred for resolution pursuant to Section 9, sufficiently in advance of the filing date of such Controlled Filed Return (including
extensions) to permit the timely filing of the Controlled Filed Return.

Section 4.4. Right to Review Combined Tax Returns.

Distributing shall make any Combined Tax Return and related workpapers available for review by Controlled, if requested, to the
extent (i) such Combined Tax Return relates to Taxes for which Controlled may be responsible under this Agreement or (ii) Controlled
reasonably determines that it must inspect such Combined Tax Return to confirm its compliance with the terms of this Agreement.
Distributing shall use its reasonable best efforts to make such Combined Tax Return available for review as required under this paragraph
sufficiently in advance of the due date for filing such Combined Tax Return to provide Controlled with a
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meaningful opportunity to analyze and comment on such Combined Tax Return and have such Combined Tax Return modified before
filing. Distributing and Controlled shall attempt in good faith to resolve any issues arising out of the review of such Combined Tax
Returns.

Section 4.5. Adjustment Requests; Carrybacks; Utilization of Tax Assets.

(a) Adjustment Requests and Carrybacks Requiring Distributing’s Consent.

Except as otherwise required by applicable Tax Law or unless Distributing otherwise consents in writing, Controlled and Holdco #2
hereby agree to cause each Controlled Group Member (i) to not make any Adjustment Request with respect to any Income Tax for any
Pre-Deconsolidation Period applicable to such Controlled Group Member and (ii) to make any available elections to relinquish the right to
claim in any Pre-Deconsolidation Period any Carryback Items of any Controlled Group Member arising in a Post-Deconsolidation Period,
including making the election under Section 172(b)(3) of the Code (and any similar provision of any other applicable Tax Laws) to
relinquish the right to carry back net operating losses. With respect to any Adjustment Request to which Distributing grants its consent
under the preceding sentence, Controlled shall reimburse Distributing for its legal, accounting, administrative and other related expenses
incurred in preparing, filing and making any such Adjustment Request.

(b) Carrybacks to Pre-Deconsolidation Periods.

Notwithstanding Section 4.5(a), if any Controlled Group Member is required by applicable Tax Law to carry back a Carryback Item
arising in a Post-Deconsolidation Period to a Pre-Deconsolidation Period, the Companies agree that any Carryback Item of any
Distributing Group Member that may be carried back to the same Pre-Deconsolidation Period shall be deemed to be used before any
Carryback Item of any Controlled Group Member. If any Distributing Group Member receives a refund or realizes a Tax Benefit as a
result of a Carryback Item of any Controlled Group Member arising in a Post-Deconsolidation Period being carried back to a Pre-
Deconsolidation Period, Distributing shall make a payment to Controlled in an amount equal to such refund or the realized Tax Benefit
within 30 days following either the receipt of such refund or the filing of the Tax Return reflecting the realization of such Tax Benefit.

(c) Other Adjustment Requests Permitted.

With respect to any Tax imposed on or attributable to any Group Member for any applicable Pre-Deconsolidation Period, Distributing
may make an Adjustment Request with respect to such Tax, including carrying back a Carryback Item of any Distributing Group Member
arising in a Post-Deconsolidation Period to any Pre-Deconsolidation Period. Any refund or other Tax Benefit obtained as a result of any
such Adjustment Request pursuant to the preceding sentence shall be for the account of Distributing, and Distributing shall have no
obligation to compensate or make a payment to any Controlled Group Member in the event any such Adjustment Request results in a Tax
Detriment to any Controlled Group Member.
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(d) Utilization of Tax Assets.

With respect to each Combined Tax Return and any adjustment to the Income Taxes reflected on a Combined Tax Return as a result of
a Tax Contest, Adjustment Request or otherwise, each Group Member included in such Combined Tax Return shall be entitled to use, in
accordance with applicable Tax Laws, any and all Tax Assets of each other Group Member included in such Combined Tax Return.
Except as provided in Section 5.1(d) with respect to Joint Taxes, no Group Member that utilizes the Tax Assets of any other Group
Member shall be required to compensate or make any payment to such other Group Member with respect to the utilization of such Tax
Assets.

Section 5. Payments Under this Agreement.

Section 5.1. Joint Taxes.

With respect to any Tax for any Taxable Period for which Distributing and Controlled are each responsible for a portion of such Tax
under this Agreement (a “Joint Tax”), the following provisions shall apply:

(a) Joint Taxes Relating to Combined Tax Returns.

With respect to any Joint Tax that is reflected or reported on any Combined Tax Return, Distributing shall determine the amount of
such Joint Tax that Controlled is responsible for under Section 2 (“Controlled’s Allocated Tax Liability”). At least 15 days prior to an
applicable Payment Date, Distributing shall deliver to Controlled a statement setting forth in appropriate detail Distributing’s
determination of Controlled’s Allocated Tax Liability and the amount (if any) of the cumulative net payments made with respect to such
Joint Tax prior to the date of such statement by the Controlled Group (“Controlled’s Cumulative Tax Payment”). Not more than 30 days
after Controlled’s receipt of such statement, Controlled shall pay Distributing an amount equal to the excess (if any) of Controlled’s
Allocated Tax Liability, over Controlled’s Cumulative Tax Payment. If Controlled’s Cumulative Tax Payment is greater than
Controlled’s Allocated Tax Liability, then Distributing shall pay such excess to Controlled within 30 days of Distributing’s receipt of the
corresponding Tax Benefit (i.e., through either a reduction in Distributing’s otherwise required Tax payment or a refund of prior Tax
payments).

(b) Other Joint Taxes.

With respect to any Joint Tax not described in Section 5.1(a), Controlled shall determine the amount of such Joint Tax that Distributing
is responsible for under Section 2 (“Distributing’s Allocated Tax Liability™). At least 15 days prior to an applicable Payment Date,
Controlled shall deliver to Distributing a statement setting forth in appropriate detail Controlled’s determination of Distributing’s
Allocated Tax Liability and the amount (if any) of the cumulative net payments made with respect to such Joint Tax prior to the date of
such statement by the Distributing Group (“Distributing’s Cumulative Tax Payment”). Not more than 30 days after Distributing’s receipt
of such statement, Distributing shall pay Controlled an amount equal to the excess (if any) of Distributing’s Allocated Tax Liability, over
Distributing’s Cumulative Tax Payment. If Distributing’s Cumulative Tax Payment is greater than Distributing’s Allocated Tax Liability,
then Controlled shall pay such excess to Distributing within 30 days of Controlled’s receipt of the corresponding Tax Benefit (i.e.,
through either a reduction in Controlled’s otherwise required Tax payment or a refund of prior Tax payments).
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(c) Adjustments to Joint Taxes.

(1) If there is any adjustment to any Joint Tax described in this Section 5.1(a), whether as a result of a Tax Contest, Adjustment
Request or otherwise, Distributing shall redetermine Controlled’s Allocated Tax Liability (“Controlled’s Redetermined Allocated Tax
Liability”). After determining Controlled’s Redetermined Allocated Tax Liability, Distributing shall deliver to Controlled a statement
setting forth in appropriate detail Distributing’s determination of Controlled’s Redetermined Allocated Tax Liability and the amount
(if any) of Controlled’s Cumulative Tax Payments made with respect to such Joint Tax prior to the date of such statement. Not more
than 30 days after Controlled’s receipt of such statement, Controlled shall pay Distributing an amount equal to the excess (if any) of
Controlled’s Redetermined Allocated Tax Liability, over Controlled’s Cumulative Tax Payments. If Controlled’s Cumulative Tax
Payment is greater than Controlled’s Redetermined Allocated Tax Liability, then Distributing shall pay such excess to Controlled
within 30 days of Distributing’s receipt of the corresponding Tax Benefit (i.e., through either a reduction in Distributing’s otherwise
required Tax payment or a refund of prior Tax payments).

(2) If there is any adjustment to any Joint Tax described in this Section 5.1(b), whether as a result of a Tax Contest, Adjustment
Request or otherwise, Controlled shall redetermine Distributing’s Allocated Tax Liability (“Distributing’s Redetermined Allocated
Tax Liability”). After determining Distributing’s Redetermined Allocated Tax Liability, Controlled shall deliver to Distributing a
statement setting forth in appropriate detail Controlled’s determination of Distributing’s Redetermined Allocated Tax Liability and
the amount (if any) of Distributing’s Cumulative Tax Payments made with respect to such Joint Tax prior to the date of such
statement. Not more than 30 days after Distributing’s receipt of such statement, Distributing shall pay Controlled an amount equal to
the excess (if any) of Distributing’s Redetermined Allocated Tax Liability, over Distributing’s Cumulative Tax Payments. If
Distributing’s Cumulative Tax Payment is greater than Distributing’s Redetermined Allocated Tax Liability, then Controlled shall
pay such excess to Distributing within 30 days of Controlled’s receipt of the corresponding Tax Benefit (i.e., through either a
reduction in Controlled’s otherwise required Tax payment or a refund of prior Tax payments).

(d) Payments for Use of Tax Assets.

If a Distributing Group Member realizes a Tax Benefit with respect to any Joint Tax upon its utilization of a Tax Asset of a Controlled
Group Member, Distributing shall make a payment to Controlled equal to the Tax Benefit realized to the extent such utilized Tax Asset of
the Controlled Group Member arose or accrued during any Post-Deconsolidation Period applicable to such Controlled Group Member. If
a Controlled Group Member realizes a Tax Benefit with
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respect to any Joint Tax upon its utilization of a Tax Asset of a Distributing Group Member, Controlled shall make a payment to
Distributing equal to the Tax Benefit realized to the extent such utilization occurs during any Post-Deconsolidation Period applicable to
such Controlled Group Member. Any payment required to be made under this Section 5.1(d) shall be paid within 30 days following either
the receipt of a refund or the filing of the Tax Return reflecting the realization of such Tax Benefit.

Section 5.2. Payments to Tax Authority.

With respect to each Tax Return that a Company is required to prepare and file under this Agreement, such Company shall pay, or
cause to be paid, to the applicable Tax Authority when due (including extensions) all Taxes determined to be due and payable. With
respect to any Joint Taxes described in Section 5.1(a), Distributing shall pay, or cause to be paid, to the applicable Tax Authority when
due such Joint Taxes. With respect to any Joint Taxes described in Section 5.1(b), Controlled shall pay, or cause to be paid, to the
applicable Tax Authority when due such Joint Taxes.

Section 5.3. Timing of Payments.

In the event a Company is required to make a payment to the other Company under this Agreement and the time for making such
payment is not otherwise provided for in this Agreement, the first Company shall make such payment within 30 days of its receipt of such
other Company’s written demand for such payment, which written demand shall include in reasonable detail an explanation and
computation of the amount due.

Section 5.4. Tax Treatment of Payments.

Unless otherwise required by applicable Tax Law, the Companies agree that any payments made by one Company to the other
Companies (other than any reimbursement of expense pursuant to Section 4.5(a), payments for Joint Taxes pursuant to Section 5.1(b) and
interest payments pursuant to Section 5.5) pursuant to this Agreement shall be treated for all Tax and financial accounting purposes as
nontaxable payments (dividend distributions or capital contributions, as the case may be) made immediately prior to the Distribution and,
accordingly, as not includible in the Taxable income of the recipient Company or as deductible by the payor Company. If,
notwithstanding the previous sentence, there is a Final Determination that the recipient Company’s receipt of such payment is subject to
Tax, the payor Company shall pay to the recipient Company an additional amount that, when added to the prior payment, will result in the
recipient Company receiving an amount equal to such prior payment, after taking into account all Taxes that are payable by the recipient
Company with respect to the receipt of such prior payment and such additional amount.

Section 5.5. Interest.

Any payment that is not made within the period prescribed in this Agreement (the “Payment Period”) shall bear interest at the Default
Rate, compounded semiannually, for the period from and including the date immediately following the last date of the Payment Period
through and including the date of payment. Notwithstanding Section 5.4, the interest payment shall be treated as interest expense to the
payor (deductible to the extent provided by applicable Tax Law) and as interest income by the recipient (includible in income to the extent
provided by applicable Tax Law).
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Section 6. Assistance and Cooperation; Retention of Tax Records.

Section 6.1. Assistance and Cooperation.

Controlled and Holdco #2 shall cause each Controlled Group Member to cooperate with Distributing and its agents, including
accounting firms and legal counsel, in connection with Tax matters relating to Group Members including (i) the preparation and filing of
Tax Returns, (ii) determining the liability for and the amount of any Taxes due (including estimated Taxes) or the right to an amount of
any refund of Taxes and (iii) any Tax Contest. Such cooperation shall include making all information and documents, including Tax
Records, in any Controlled Group Member’s possession relating to any Group Member available to Distributing for inspection during
normal business hours upon reasonable notice and, upon request by Distributing, providing copies, at Controlled’s expense, of such
information and documents, including Tax Records. Controlled shall also make available to Distributing, as reasonably requested and
available, personnel (including each Controlled Group Member’s officers, directors, employees and agents) responsible for preparing,
maintaining and interpreting information and documents relevant to Taxes, and personnel reasonably required as witnesses or for
purposes of providing information or documents in connection with any Tax Contest. Any information or documents provided under this
Section 6 shall be kept confidential by Distributing, except as may otherwise be necessary in connection with the filing of Tax Returns or
in connection with any Tax Contest.

Section 6.2. Retention of Tax Records.

Each Company shall preserve and keep all Tax Records exclusively relating to Separate Company Taxes of their respective Groups for
Pre-Deconsolidation Periods, and Distributing shall preserve and keep all other Tax Records relating to Taxes of the Groups for Pre-
Deconsolidation Periods, for so long as the contents thereof may become material in the administration of any matter under the Code or
other applicable Tax Law, but in any event until the later of (i) the expiration of any applicable statutes of limitation, and (ii) seven years
after the date of the Distribution. If, prior to the expiration of the applicable statute of limitation and such seven-year period, a Company
reasonably determines that any Tax Records which it is required to preserve and keep under this Section 6.2 are no longer material in the
administration of any matter under the Code or other applicable Tax Law, such Company may dispose of such Tax Records upon 90 days
prior notice to the other Companies. Such notice shall include a list of the Tax Records to be disposed of describing in reasonable detail
each file, book or other record accumulation being disposed. The notified Company shall have the opportunity, at its cost and expense, to
copy or remove, within such 90-day period, all or any part of such Tax Records.

Section 7. Tax Contests.

Section 7.1. Notice.

Each of the Companies shall provide prompt notice to the other Companies of any pending or threatened Tax audit, assessment or
proceeding or other Tax Contest of which it becomes aware that could affect any Tax liability for which any of the other Companies may
be
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responsible under this Agreement, provided, however, that failure to give prompt notice shall not affect the indemnification obligations
hereunder except to the extent the Indemnifying Company is actually prejudiced thereby. Such notice shall contain factual information (to
the extent known) describing such matters in reasonable detail and shall be accompanied by copies of any notice and other documents
received from any Tax Authority in respect of any such matters.

Section 7.2. Control of Tax Contests.

(a) Tax Contests Relating to Tax Returns.

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Company responsible for preparing and filing a Tax Return pursuant to Section 4
of this Agreement (the “Controlling Company”) shall have the exclusive right, in its sole discretion, to control, contest and represent the
interests of each Group in any Tax Contest relating to such Tax Return and to resolve, settle or agree to any deficiency, claim or
adjustment proposed, asserted or assessed in connection with or as a result of any such Tax Contest. The Controlling Company’s rights
shall extend to any matter pertaining to the management and control of the Tax Contest, including execution of waivers, choice of forum,
scheduling of conferences and the resolution of any Tax Item.

(b) Additional Taxes, Distribution Taxes and International Restructuring Taxes.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, Distributing shall have the exclusive right, in its sole discretion,
to control, contest and represent the interests of each Group in any Tax Contest relating, in whole or in part, to Additional Taxes,
Distribution Taxes and International Restructuring Taxes and to resolve, settle or agree to any deficiency, claim or adjustment proposed,
asserted or assessed in connection with or as a result of any such Tax Contest. Distributing’s rights shall extend to any matter pertaining
to the management and control of the Tax Contest, including execution of waivers, choice of forum, scheduling of conferences and the
resolution of any Tax Item.

(c) Other Taxes.

In the case of any Tax Contest with respect to any Other Tax for which Controlled is solely responsible under Section 2.5, Controlled
shall have the exclusive right, in its sole discretion, to control, contest and represent the interests of the Controlled Group in such Tax
Contest and to resolve, settle or agree to any deficiency, claim or adjustment proposed, asserted or assessed in connection with or as a
result of any such Tax Contest. With respect to any Other Tax not described in the preceding sentence, Distributing shall have the
exclusive right, in its sole discretion, to control, contest and represent the interests of the Groups in such Tax Contest and to resolve, settle
or agree to any deficiency, claim or adjustment proposed, asserted or assessed in connection with or as a result of any such Tax Contest.

Section 7.3. Reimbursement of Expenses.

If the Indemnifying Company is not the Controlling Company, the Indemnifying Company shall reimburse the Controlling Company
for its costs (including accountant’s fees, investigatory fees and fees and disbursements of tax counsel) (“Indemnification Expenses”)
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incurred in any Tax Contest that are reasonably allocable to the portion of the contested Taxes that would be the responsibility of the
Indemnifying Company hereunder upon a Final Determination that such contested Taxes are due. The Controlling Company shall provide
the Indemnifying Company with a written statement (a “Reimbursement Statement”) periodically (but not more often than monthly) that
sets forth the amount of the Controlling Company’s Indemnification Expenses since the most recent Reimbursement Statement and due
hereunder. Within 15 days of the Indemnifying Company’s receipt of each Reimbursement Statement, the Indemnifying Company shall
pay to the Controlling Company the total amount of the Indemnification Expenses shown on such Reimbursement Statement.

Section 8. Continuing Covenants.

(a) In General.

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each of Distributing (for itself and each other Distributing Group Member),
Controlled (for itself and each other Controlled Group Member) and Holdco #2 agrees (i) not to take any action reasonably expected to
result in an increased Tax liability to another Company, a reduction in a Tax Asset of another Company or an increased liability to another
Company under this Agreement, (ii) not to take any action, fail to take any action or commit any omission that would result in Additional
Taxes or Distribution Taxes and (iii) to take any action reasonably requested by a Company that would reasonably be expected to result in
a Tax Benefit or avoid a Tax Detriment to such Company; provided, that such action does not result in any additional direct or indirect
cost not fully compensated for by the requesting Company.

(b) Consistency.

Each of Distributing (for itself and each other Distributing Group Member) and Controlled (for itself and each other Controlled Group
Member) agrees that it will not take or fail to take any action where such action or failure to act would be inconsistent with any material,
information, covenant or representation contained in the Officer’s Certificate or Ruling Request. For this purpose, an action is considered
inconsistent with a representation if the representation states that there is no plan or intention to take such action. Each of Distributing (for
itself and each other Distributing Group Member) and Controlled (for itself and each other Controlled Group Member) agrees that it will
not take any position on a Tax Return that is inconsistent with the treatment of (i) the transfer of the Entertainment Assets by members of
the Distributing Group to members of the Controlled Group pursuant to the Holdco #2 Contribution or as otherwise contemplated by the
Distribution Agreement as a tax-free reorganization under Section 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code, or (ii) the Distribution as tax-free under
Sections 355 and 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code.

(c) Certain Distributing Actions following the Distribution.

Distributing agrees that during the 2 year period following the Distribution, without first obtaining a tax opinion from an Independent
Firm that the following actions or combination of such actions will not result in Distribution Taxes: (1) Distributing shall not sell or
transfer all or substantially all of the assets comprising the AMG Broadcasting Business; (2) Distributing shall not merge with another
Entity, without regard to which Entity survives, except in a
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reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(A), (C) or (D), or an exchange under Section 351, of the Code where the
stockholders of Distributing own more than 50 percent of the stock of the surviving Entity (for this purpose any shares of Distributing
acquired by any Person after the Distribution shall not be considered to be held by a stockholder of Distributing); and (3) Distributing
shall not issue stock of Distributing (or any instrument that is convertible or exchangeable into any such stock) in an acquisition or public
or private offering (excluding any issuance pursuant to the exercise of employee stock options or other employment related arrangements
having customary terms and conditions and that satisfy the requirements of Treasury Regulations Section 1.355-7(e)(4)(ii)), unless
following such issuance of stock, the stockholders of Distributing continue to own more than 50 percent of the stock of Distributing (for
this purpose any shares of Distributing acquired by any Person after the Distribution shall not be considered to be held by a stockholder of
Distributing).

(d) Certain Controlled Actions Following the Distribution.

During the 2 year period following the Distribution, without first obtaining the prior written consent of Distributing, which may be
granted or withheld in its sole discretion: (1) Controlled shall not sell or transfer any material asset of or comprising the Theater Business
or any interest in any Entity that conducts the Theater Business; (2) Controlled shall not, and shall not permit any Controlled Group
Member which conducts the Theater Business to, merge with another Entity, without regard to which party is the surviving Entity; and
(3) Controlled shall not issue or cause to be issued stock of any Controlled Group Member (or any instrument that is convertible or
exchangeable into any such stock) in an acquisition or public or private offering, and shall not issue stock of Controlled (or any instrument
that is convertible or exchangeable into any such stock) in an acquisition or public or private offering (excluding any issuance pursuant to
the exercise of employee stock options or other employment related arrangements having customary terms and conditions and that satisfy
the requirements of Treasury Regulations Section 1.355-7(e)(4)(ii)).

(e) Certain Actions of Controlled and Holdco #2 Following the Sale.

During the 6 year period following the Sale, without first obtaining the prior written consent of Distributing, which may be granted or
withheld in its sole discretion, neither Controlled nor Holdco #2 shall acquire, however effected, or permit or cause any Controlled Group
Member to acquire, however effected, any shares of either the Series A Preferred Stock or the Series B Preferred Stock.

(f) Notice of Specified Transactions.

Not later than 20 days prior to entering into any oral or written contract or agreement, and not later than 5 days after it first becomes
aware of any negotiations, plan or intention (regardless of whether it is a party to such negotiations, plan or intention), regarding any of
the transactions described in Section 8(c), (d) or (e), each Company shall provide written notice of its intent to consummate such
transaction or the negotiations, plan or intention of which it becomes aware, to the other Companies.
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Section 9. Dispute Resolution.

In the event that the Companies disagree as to the amount or calculation of any payment to be made under this Agreement, or the
interpretation or application of any provision under this Agreement, the Companies shall attempt in good faith to resolve such dispute. If
such dispute is not resolved within 60 days following the commencement of the dispute, the Companies shall jointly retain an
Independent Firm, reasonably acceptable to the Companies, to resolve the dispute; provided, however, that in order to pursue any such
dispute resolution under this Section 9, the Indemnifying Company must first pay to the Indemnified Company, or place in an escrow
reasonably satisfactory to the Indemnified Company pending resolution of such dispute, an amount equal to the payment which is the
subject of such dispute. The Independent Firm shall act as an arbitrator to resolve all points of disagreement and its decision shall be final
and binding upon the Companies. Following the decision of the Independent Firm, the Companies shall take, or cause to be taken, any
action necessary to implement the decision of the Independent Firm. The fees and expenses relating to the Independent Firm shall be
borne by the Company that does not prevail in the dispute resolution proceeding. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, the dispute resolution provisions set forth in this Section 9 shall not be applicable to any disagreement between the Companies
relating to Distribution Taxes, the SFXE Loss, International Restructuring Taxes or any matter relating to any Tax Contest.

Section 10. General Provisions.

Section 10.1. Effectiveness: Termination of Prior Tax Allocation Agreements.

This Agreement shall be effective on the date first written above. Immediately prior to the close of business on the date hereof (i) all
Prior Tax Allocation Agreements shall be terminated, and (ii) amounts due under such Prior Tax Allocation Agreements as of the date
hereof shall be settled. Upon such termination and settlement, no further payments by or to any Distributing Group Member or by or to
any Controlled Group Member, with respect to such Prior Tax Allocation Agreements, shall be made, and all other rights and obligations
resulting from such Prior Tax Allocation Agreements between the Companies and their Affiliates shall cease at such time. Any payments
pursuant to such Prior Tax Allocation Agreements shall be ignored for purposes of computing amounts due under this Agreement.

Section 10.2. Survival of Obligations.

The representations, warranties, covenants and agreements set forth in this Agreement shall be unconditional and absolute and shall
remain in effect without limitation as to time.

Section 10.3. Addresses and Notices.

All notices, consents, requests, instructions, approvals, statements, reports and other communications provided for herein shall be
validly given, made or served, if in writing and delivered personally or sent by registered mail, postage prepaid, or by facsimile
transmission:

If to Distributing:
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Clear Channel Communications, Inc.
200 E. Basse Road

San Antonio, Texas 78209

Attn: Chief Executive Officer

If to Controlled:

CCE Spinco, Inc.

9348 Civic Center Drive
Beverly Hills, California 90210
Attn: Chief Executive Officer

If to Holdco #2:

Holdco #2, Inc.

9348 Civic Center Drive
Beverly Hills, California 90210
Attn: Chief Executive Officer

or to such other address that a Company may, from time to time, designate in a written notice to the other Company given in a like
manner. Notice delivered personally shall be deemed delivered when received by the recipient. Notice given by mail as set out above
shall be deemed delivered five calendar days after the date the same is mailed. Notice given by facsimile transmission shall be deemed
delivered on the day of transmission provided telephone confirmation of receipt is obtained promptly after completion of transmission.

Section 10.4. Binding Effect.
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Companies and their successors and assigns.
Section 10.5. Waiver.

No failure by any Company to insist upon the strict performance of any obligation under this Agreement or to exercise any right or
remedy under this Agreement shall constitute waiver of any such obligation, right or remedy or any other obligation, rights or remedies
under this Agreement.

Section 10.6. Invalidity of Provisions.

If any provision of this Agreement is or becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and
enforceability of the remaining provisions contained herein shall not be affected thereby.
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Section 10.7. Further Action.

Each Company shall execute and deliver all documents, provide all information and take or refrain from taking action as may be
necessary or appropriate to achieve the purposes of this Agreement, including the execution and delivery to the other Companies and their
Affiliates and representatives of such powers of attorney or other authorizing documentation as is reasonably necessary or appropriate in
connection with Tax Contests under the control of any such other Company in accordance with Section 7.

Section 10.8. Integration.

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among the Companies pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement and
supersedes all prior agreements and understandings pertaining thereto. In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and the
Distribution Agreement or any other agreements relating to the transactions contemplated by the Distribution Agreement, the provisions
of this Agreement shall control.

Section 10.9. Construction.

The language in all parts of this Agreement shall in all cases be construed according to its fair meaning and shall not be strictly
construed for or against any Company.

Section 10.10. No Double Recovery.

No provision of this Agreement shall be construed to provide an indemnity or other recovery for any costs, damages or other amounts
for which the damaged Company has been fully compensated under any other provision of this Agreement or under any other agreement
or action at law or equity. Unless expressly required in this Agreement, a Company shall not be required to exhaust all remedies available
under other agreements or at law or equity before recovering under the remedies provided in this Agreement.

Section 10.11. Setoff.

All payments to be made by any Company under this Agreement may be netted against payments due to such Company under this
Agreement, but otherwise shall be made without setoff, counterclaim or withholding, all of which are hereby expressly waived.

Section 10.12. Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which taken
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Section 10.13. No Third Party Rights.

This Agreement is only intended to allocate the responsibility for certain Taxes between Distributing and Controlled and to address the
other Tax matters stated herein. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended or shall confer any right, benefit or remedy of
any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement upon any Group Member or Person
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other than Distributing and Controlled. Distributing and Controlled acknowledge and agree that the respective rights of the Distributing
Indemnitees and the Controlled Indemnitees expressly provided under this Agreement may only be enforced by Controlled and

Distributing, respectively.

Section 10.14. Governing Law.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware applicable to contracts
executed in and to be performed in the State of Delaware.

[Signature Page Follows]
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In Witness Whereof, the Companies have caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective officers as of the date set forth
above.

CLEAR CHANNEL COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
By:

Name: Mark P. Mays
Its: President and Chief Executive Officer

CCE SPINCO, INC.

By:
Name: Michael Rapino
Its: Chief Executive Officer

HOLDCO #2, INC.

By:
Name: Michael Rapino
Its: Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 10.11

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Employment Agreement is entered into this 2gth day of November, 2005 between SFX Entertainment, Inc., d/b/a Clear Channel
Entertainment (the “Company”) and Alan Ridgeway (the “Employee”) and effective the 20th day of September, 2005 (“Effective Date”).

WHEREAS, the Company and the Employee desire to enter into an employment relationship under the terms and conditions set forth
in this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. TERM OF EMPLOYMENT.

The Employee’s term of employment starts on the Effective Date of this Agreement and ends on the close of business on
December 31, 2006 (the “Employment Period” or “Term of Employment”). However, beginning on December 31, 2006, the Employment
Period shall be automatically extended from day to day for twelve months, so that commencing on January 1, 2007 and continuing for so
long thereafter as Employee is employed hereunder, there will always be exactly one year remaining in the Term of Employment
hereunder, until either party terminates in accordance with Section 7. The term “Employment Period” or Term of Employment shall refer
to the Employment Period if and as so extended. Upon the closing of the proposed spin-off of the Entertainment business from Clear
Channel Communications, Inc., as announced on April 29, 2005, this Agreement shall automatically be assigned by Company to, and
assumed by CCE Spinco, Inc. (or other name as such entity may assume, and referred herein as “CCE Spinco”), the parent entity for the
newly independent, publicly traded company.

2. TITLE AND DUTIES.

(a) The Employee’s title is Chief Financial Officer. The Employee will perform job duties that are usual and customary for this
position, and will perform additional services and duties that the Company may from time to time designate that are consistent with the
usual and customary duties of this position. The Employee will report to the President and CEO of Company, currently Michael Rapino.
The Employee will devote his full working time and efforts to the business and affairs of Company.

(b) Exclusive Services. During employment with the Company, Employee shall not be employed elsewhere, nor shall he engage in
any competitive activity and, except as set forth in the preceding clause (a) of this Section 2, shall not render any services to any other
person or business, or acquire any interest of any type in any other business which is in competition with Company, provided, however,
that the foregoing shall not be deemed to prohibit Employee from acquiring, solely as an investment, (i) up to 10% of any securities of a
partnership, trust, corporation or other entity so long as Employee remains a passive investor in such entity and such entity is not, directly
or indirectly, in competition with Company or (ii) up to 5.0% of the outstanding equity interests of any publicly held company.

3. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS




(a) Employee shall remain on the Clear Channel Entertainment (Theatrical) UK Limited payroll and will continue to be paid by Clear
Channel Entertainment (Theatrical) UK Limited from the Effective Date to the 31st day of December, 2005. During this time period,
Employee will continue to be entitled to the same salary and United Kingdom benefits as under his previous contract with Clear Channel
Entertainment (Theatrical) UK Limited.

(b) Base Salary. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company will pay the Employee an annual base salary of $400,000.00 (“Base
Salary”). The Employee will be eligible for annual raises of his Base Salary commensurate with Company policy. All payments of Base
Salary will be made in installments according to the Company’s regular payroll practice, prorated monthly or weekly where appropriate,
and subject to any increases that are determined to be appropriate by the Company’s Board of Directors or its Compensation Committee.

(c) Base Salary Bonus. Employee will be eligible to receive a base salary bonus (“Base Salary Bonus”) during calendar years 2006
and 2007. The Base Salary Bonus shall be calculated as follows:

(1) For calendar year 2006, Employee shall receive additional compensation in the amount of $40,000.00, which constitutes 10% of
his 2006 Base Salary. This 2006 Base Salary Bonus shall be paid in installments with Employee’s 2006 Base Salary according to the
Company’s regular payroll practice, prorated monthly or weekly where appropriate.

(ii) For calendar year 2007, Employee shall receive additional compensation in the amount of 10% of his 2007 Base Salary. This
2007 Base Salary Bonus shall be paid in installments with his 2007 Base Salary according to the Company’s regular payroll practice,
prorated monthly or weekly where appropriate.

(ii1) Employee is entitled to a pro rated Base Salary Bonus if his employment is terminated in either calendar year 2006 or 2007; the
amount (if any) of the Base Salary Bonus for that particular calendar year will be pro rated based upon the number of months during
such calendar year that the Employee provided full-time services for the Company pursuant to this Agreement. Employee, however,
shall not be entitled to a pro rated Base Salary Bonus if his employment is terminated by Company for Cause.

(c¢) Performance Bonus. Beginning with calendar year 2006, Employee will be eligible to receive a performance bonus as set forth in
the Performance Bonus Calculation attached as “Exhibit A” to this Employment Agreement. Employee’s Target Bonus is $320,000.00.
Employee is not required to be employed by Company on date of bonus payment in order to receive it. Employee is entitled to a pro rata
bonus for any year in which his employment is terminated; the amount (if any) of the Performance Bonus for that calendar year will be
pro rated based upon the number of months during such calendar year that the Employee provided full-time services for the Company
pursuant to this Agreement. However, Employee shall not be entitled to a pro rata bonus if his employment is terminated by the Company
for Cause. The Company reserves the right to modify the Performance Bonus Plan, on terms which are no less favorable to the Employee,
due to business circumstances such as business acquisition, business sale, accounting or non-operational circumstances.




(d) Employment Benefit Plans. Effective January 1, 2006, the Employee will be entitled to participate in all pension, profit sharing,
and other retirement plans, all incentive compensation plans, and all group health, hospitalization and disability or other insurance plans,
paid vacation, sick leave and other employee welfare benefit plans in which other similarly situated employees of the Company in the
United States may participate as stated in the Employee Guide.

(e) Vacation. Employee will be entitled to accrue 25 days of paid vacation per calendar year, with such accrual pro-rated for partial
years and suspended for periods of unpaid leave, and subject to the Company’s policy, as amended from time to time.

(f) Relocation Expenses. Employee’s relocation expenses to Los Angeles, California from the United Kingdom will be paid for by
Company pursuant to the Enhanced Relocation Benefits package. In addition, Company will provide Employee with temporary housing
from the Effective Date through December 31, 2005 in Los Angeles, California.

(g) Travel. Company agrees to pay for two (2) round-trip coach flights per year of this Agreement from Los Angeles to the United
Kingdom for Employee’s spouse and two (2) children, either directly through invoice or upon submission by Employee of appropriate
documentation and/or receipts.

(h) Expenses. The Company will pay or reimburse the Employee for all normal and reasonable travel and entertainment expenses
incurred by the Employee in connection with the Employee’s responsibilities to the Company upon submission of proper vouchers in
accordance with the Company’s expense reimbursement policy. The Company will provide the Employee with access to a credit card,
subject to the approval of the credit card company and based on the Employee’s credit history, and which should only be used for business
purposes. Payment is the responsibility of the Employee. Additionally, the Company will reimburse the Employee for the annual
membership fee to the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW).

(i) Stock Options. Employee shall receive a grant of 50,000 stock options for shares of common voting stock in CCE Spinco. Such
grant shall be contingent on the closing of the spin-off of Company from its current parent, Clear Channel Communications, Inc. and
issued within five (5) days after the closing of the spin-off transaction. The option price shall be the fair market value on the grant date.
Any future stock option grants will be granted based upon the performance of the Employee, which will be assessed in the sole discretion
of the Company and the Compensation Committee of the Board. All option grants shall be made under the terms and conditions set forth
in the applicable plan under which they are issued. The Company reserves the right to modify any future Company stock option plan with
respect to the change of control or any other provision of said plan. The Company’s obligations under this Agreement to the Employee in
the area of stock options are conditioned upon and subject to the Company’s decision, in its sole discretion, to: 1) alter, suspend or
discontinue its stock option grant program; or 2) replace the program with an alternative form or method of compensation.

4. NONDISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

During the course of the Employee’s employment with the Company, the Company will provide the Employee with access to certain
confidential information, trade secrets, and other




matters which are of a confidential or proprietary nature, including but not limited to the Company’s customer lists, pricing information,
production and cost data, compensation and fee information, strategic business plans, budgets, financial statements, and other information
the Company treats as confidential or proprietary (collectively the “Confidential Information”). The Company provides on an ongoing
basis such Confidential Information as the Company deems necessary or desirable to aid the Employee in the performance of his duties.
The Employee understands and acknowledges that such Confidential Information is confidential and proprietary, and agrees not to
disclose such Confidential Information to anyone outside the Company except to the extent that (i) the Employee deems such disclosure
or use reasonably necessary or appropriate in connection with performing his duties on behalf of the Company; (ii) the Employee is
required by order of a court of competent jurisdiction (by subpoena or similar process) to disclose or discuss any Confidential
Information, provided that in such case, the Employee shall promptly inform the Company of such event, shall cooperate with the
Company in attempting to obtain a protective order or to otherwise restrict such disclosure, and shall only disclose Confidential
Information to the minimum extent necessary to comply with any such court order; or (iii) such Confidential Information becomes
generally known to and available for use in the industries in which the Company does business, other than as a result of any action or
inaction by the Employee. The Employee further agrees that he will not during employment and/or at any time thereafter use such
Confidential Information in competing, directly or indirectly, with the Company. At such time as the Employee shall cease to be
employed by the Company, he will immediately turn over to the Company all Confidential Information, including papers, documents,
writings, electronically stored information, other property, and all copies of them, provided to or created by him during the course of his
employment with the Company. This nondisclosure covenant is binding on the Employee, as well as his heirs, successors, and legal
representatives, and will survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason, or end of employment, regardless of the reason or
circumstance.

5. NONSOLICITATION OF COMPANY EMPLOYEES OR VENDORS.

To further preserve the rights of the Company pursuant to the nondisclosure covenant discussed above, and for the consideration
promised by the Company under this Agreement, during the term of the Employee’s employment with the Company and for a period of
12 months thereafter, regardless of the reason for the termination or end of employment, the Employee will not, directly or indirectly,

(1) hire any current or prospective employee or vendor of the Company, or any subsidiary or affiliate of the Company (including, without
limitation, any current or prospective employee of the Company within the 6-month period preceding the Employee’s last day of
employment with the Company or within the 12-month period of this covenant) who worked, works, has been offered employment by, or
provided services to the Company; (ii) solicit or encourage any such employee to terminate their employment or any vendor to terminate
its business relationship with the Company, or any subsidiary or affiliate of the Company; or (iii) solicit or encourage any such employee
or vendor to accept employment or a contract with any business, operation, corporation, partnership, association, agency, or other person
or entity with which the Employee may be associated. This nonsolicitation covenant is binding on the Employee and will survive the
expiration or termination of this Agreement, or the end of employment for any reason.

6. NON-COMPETITION DURING TERM.




To further preserve the rights of the Company pursuant to the nondisclosure covenant discussed above, and for the consideration
promised by the Company under this Agreement, during the Employee’s employment with the Company the Employee will not, directly
or indirectly, as an owner, director, principal, agent, officer, employee, partner, consultant, servant, or otherwise, carry on, operate,
manage, control, or become involved in any manner with any business, operation, corporation, partnership, association, agency, or other
person or entity which is in the same business as the Company in any location in which the Company, or any subsidiary or affiliate of the
Company, operates or has plans or has projected to operate during the Employee’s employment with the Company, including any area
within a 50-mile radius of any such location. The foregoing shall not prohibit the Employee from owning up to 5.0% of the outstanding
stock of any publicly held company.

The Company and the Employee agree that the restrictions contained in this noncompetition covenant are reasonable in scope and
duration and are necessary to protect the Company’s business interests and Confidential Information.

7. TERMINATION.
The Employee’s employment with the Company may be terminated under the following circumstances:
(a) Death. The Employee’s employment with the Company shall terminate upon his death.

(b) Disability. The Company may terminate the Employee’s employment with the Company if, as a result of the Employee’s
incapacity due to physical or mental illness, the Employee is unable to perform his duties under this Agreement on a full-time basis for
more than 90 days in any 12 month period, as determined by the Company.

(c) Termination by the Company. The Company may terminate the Employee’s employment with the Company without cause at
any time after December 31, 2006. The Company may also terminate his employment for Cause. For purposes of the Agreement, “Cause”
shall mean: (i) conduct by the Employee constituting a material act of willful misconduct in connection with the performance of his
duties, including, without limitation, violation of the Company’s policy on sexual harassment, misappropriation of funds or property of
the Company or any of its affiliates other than the occasional, customary and de minimis use of Company property for personal purposes,
or other willful misconduct as determined in the sole discretion of the Company; (ii) continued, willful and deliberate non-performance by
the Employee of his duties hereunder (other than by reason of the Employee’s physical or mental illness, incapacity or disability); (iii) the
Employee’s refusal or failure to follow lawful directives consistent with his title and position and the terms of this Agreement; (iv) a
criminal or civil conviction of the Employee, a plea of nolo contendere by the Employee, or other conduct by the Employee that, as
determined in the sole discretion of the Board, has resulted in, or would result in if he were retained in his position with the Company,
material injury to the reputation of the Company, including, without limitation, conviction of fraud, theft, embezzlement, or a crime
involving moral turpitude; (v) a breach by the Employee of any of the provisions of this Agreement; or (vi) a violation by the Employee
of the Company’s employment policies. The Employee will be given 30 days to cure any of the “Cause” provisions that the Company
deems, in its sole discretion, to be susceptible to cure.




(d) Termination By The Employee For Good Reason. Employee may terminate this Agreement at any time for “Good Reason,”
which is defined as one of the following: (i) a repeated failure of the Company to comply with a material term of this Agreement after
written notice by the Employee specifying the alleged failure; or (ii) a substantial and unusual change in Employee’s position, duties,
responsibilities, and authority without an offer of additional reasonable compensation as determined by Company in light of compensation
levels for similarly situated employees; or (iii) a substantial and unusual reduction in Employee’s duties, responsibilities and authority.

(e) Termination by the Employee Without Cause. The Employee may provide notice at any time after December 31, 2006 of his
intent to terminate his employment with Company without cause. Employee must provide Company with 12 months advance written
notice of his intent to terminate the employment relationship. If Employee terminates under this section, the Company may determine an
earlier termination date on which employment will end. The Company shall not be required to continue employment during the notice
period. If the Company elects to terminate prior to the expiration of the twelve month notice period, such termination shall be deemed a
termination by the Company without cause and Section 8(d) shall apply.

8. COMPENSATION UPON TERMINATION.

(a) Death. If the Employee’s employment with the Company terminates by reason of his death, the Company will, within 90 days, pay
in a lump sum amount to such person as the Employee shall designate in a notice filed with the Company or, if no such person is
designated, to the Employee’s estate, the Employee’s accrued and unpaid Base Salary, prorated bonus(es), if any (See Section 3(c)(iii) and
Exhibit A), unreimbursed expenses, and any payments to which the Employee’s spouse, beneficiaries, or estate may be entitled under any
applicable employee benefit plan (according to the terms of such plans and policies).

(b) Disability. If the Employee’s employment with the Company terminates by reason of his disability, the Company shall, within
90 days, pay in a lump sum amount to the Employee his accrued and unpaid Base Salary, prorated bonus(es), if any (See Section 3(c)(iii)
and Exhibit A), unreimbursed expenses, and any payments to which he may be entitled under any applicable employee benefit plan
(according to the terms of such plans and policies).

(¢) Termination By The Company For Cause. If the Employee’s employment with the Company is terminated by the Company for
Cause, the Company will, within 90 days, pay in a lump sum amount to the Employee his accrued and unpaid Base Salary and any
payments to which he may be entitled under any applicable employee benefit plan (according to the terms of such plans and policies).

(d) Termination By The Company Without Cause or Termination by Employee for Good Reason. If the Employee’s
employment with the Company is terminated by the Company without Cause, or by Employee for Good Reason, the Company will,
within 90 days, pay in a lump sum amount to the Employee his accrued and unpaid Base Salary, prorated bonus(es), if any (See
Section 3(c)(iii) and Exhibit A), unreimbursed expenses, and any payments to which he may be entitled under any applicable employee
benefit plan (according to the terms of such plans and policies). Additionally, in lieu of a termination of employment,




Employee has the option of continuing employment by electing, within ten (10) days from notice by Company, to become a part-time
consultant to Company in exchange for (i) severance pay, (ii) payment of reasonable expenses for repatriation of Employee and his
dependants to the United Kingdom (“Repatriation Expenses™), and (iii) costs for any penalties due for early termination of housing and
automobile leases (“Lease Expenses”). In that event, Company will pay Employee the Employee’s Base Salary (“Severance Pay”) as set
forth in Section 3(b) for a twelve month period, in periodic payments in accordance with ordinary payroll practices and deductions,
Repatriation Expenses, and Lease Expenses, provided that Employee: (i) will serve as an exclusive part-time consultant during the
severance payout period; (ii) agrees not to compete with Employer, directly or indirectly, during the payment and consulting period in
accordance with Section 2(b); and (iii) agrees to and signs a general release of claims in a form and manner satisfactory to the Company. If
Employee makes the foregoing election, Employee may subsequently opt out of the consulting arrangement and noncompete, and waive
any right to further severance payments, by giving Company at least 60 days’ written notice. In the event that Employee is re-hired and
employed by the Company in any capacity prior to the conclusion of the severance payout, Employee’s entitlement to receive severance
pay will immediately end and no severance payments will be made after the date of re-employment.

(e) Termination by the Employee Without Cause. If the Employee terminates his employment with the Company in accordance
with Section 7(e), and Company determines an earlier termination date on which employment will end, Company will pay to Employee in
a lump sum amount to the Employee his accrued and unpaid base salary through the termination date, prorated bonus(es), if any (See
Section 3(c)(iii) and Exhibit A), unreimbursed expenses, and any payments to which he may be entitled under any applicable employee
benefit plan (according to the terms of such plans and policies).

(f) Effect Of Compliance With Compensation Upon Termination Provisions. Upon complying with Subparagraphs 8(a) through
8(e) above, as applicable, the Company will have no further obligations to the Employee except as otherwise expressly provided under
this Agreement, provided that such compliance will not adversely affect or alter the Employee’s rights under any employee benefit plan of
the Company in which the Employee has a vested interest, unless, otherwise provided in such employee benefit plan or any agreement or
other instrument attendant thereto.

9. CHANGE OF CONTROL. In the event of a Change in Control, all of the Employee’s stock options for shares of common voting
stock in CCE Spinco pursuant to subparagraph 3(i) of this Agreement and future stock option grants of CCE Spinco that are outstanding
on the date of such Change in Control shall become immediately and fully exercisable in accordance with the terms and conditions set
forth in the applicable plan under which they are issued. For purposes of this Agreement, “Change in Control” means: (i) any “person,” as
such term is used in Sections 3(a)(9) and 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (other than the Executive or entities controlled by
the Executive), becomes a beneficial owner of 50% or more of the voting power of the Company; (ii) all or substantially all of the assets
or business of the Company are disposed of pursuant to a merger, consolidation, sale or other transaction (unless the shareholders of the
Company, immediately prior to such merger, consolidation or other transaction beneficially own, directly or indirectly, in substantially
the same proportion as they owned the voting power of the Company, all of the voting power or other ownership interests of the entity or
entities, if any, that succeed to the business of the Company); (iii) the Company combines with another company and, immediately after
such combination, (A) the shareholders of the Company immediately prior to the combination do not hold, directly or indirectly, more
than 50% of the voting power of the combined company or (B) the members of the Board immediately prior to the Board’s




approval of the merger transaction do not constitute a majority of the combined company’s board of directors; or (vi) the liquidation or
dissolution of the Company. “Change in Control” does not include the spin-off of the Company announced on April 29, 2005.

10. PARTIES BENEFITED; ASSIGNMENTS.

This Agreement shall be binding upon the Employee, his heirs and his personal representative or representatives, and upon the
Company and its respective successors and assigns. Neither this Agreement nor any rights or obligations hereunder may be assigned by
the Employee, other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution.

11. GOVERNING LAW.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Texas without giving effect to
any choice of law or conflict provisions or rule (whether of the State of Texas any other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of
the laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of Texas and the Employee hereby expressly consents to the personal jurisdiction of the
state and federal (Western District of Texas) courts located in the State of Texas for any lawsuit arising from or relating to this
Agreement.

11. DEFINITION OF COMPANY.

As used in this Agreement, the term “Company” shall include SFX Entertainment, Inc., d/b/a Clear Channel Entertainment and any of
its past, present and future divisions, operating companies, subsidiaries and affiliates.

13. LITIGATION AND REGULATORY COOPERATION.

During and after the Employee’s employment, the Employee shall reasonably cooperate with the Company in the defense or
prosecution of any claims or actions now in existence or which may be brought in the future against or on behalf of the Company which
relate to events or occurrences that transpired while the Employee was employed by the Company; provided, however, that such
cooperation shall not materially and adversely affect the Employee or expose the Employee to an increased probability of civil or criminal
litigation. The Employee’s cooperation in connection with such claims or actions shall include, but not be limited to, being available to
meet with counsel to prepare for discovery or trial and to act as a witness on behalf of the Company at mutually convenient times. During
and after the Employee’s employment, the Employee also shall cooperate fully with the Company in connection with any investigation or
review of any federal, state or local regulatory authority as any such investigation or review relates to events or occurrences that transpired
while the Employee was employed by the Company. The Company will pay the Employee on an hourly basis (to be derived from his base
salary) for requested litigation and regulatory cooperation that occurs after his termination of employment, and reimburse the Employee
for all costs and expenses incurred in connection with his performance under this paragraph, including, but not limited to, reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs.

14. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE; LEGAL EXPENSES.

The Company shall indemnify the Employee to the fullest extent permitted by law, in effect at the time of the subject act or omission,
and shall advance to the Employee reasonable




attorneys’ fees and expenses as such fees and expenses are incurred (subject to an undertaking from the Employee to repay such advances
if it shall be finally determined by a judicial decision which is not subject to further appeal that the Employee was not entitled to the
reimbursement of such fees and expenses), and the Employee will be entitled to the protection of any insurance policies that the Company
may elect to maintain generally for the benefit of its directors and officers against all costs, charges and expenses incurred or sustained by
him in connection with any action, suit or proceeding to which he may be made a party by reason of his being or having been a director,
officer or employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or his serving or having served any other enterprise as a director, officer or
employee at the request of the Company (other than any dispute, claim or controversy arising under or relating to this Agreement). The
Company covenants to maintain during the Employee’s employment for the benefit of the Employee (in his capacity as an officer and
director of the Company) Directors and Officers Insurance providing benefits to the Employee no less favorable, taken as a whole, than
the benefits provided to the other similarly situated employees of the Company by the Directors and Officers Insurance maintained by the
Company on the date hereof; provided, however, that the Board may elect to terminate Directors and Officers Insurance for all officers
and directors, including the Employee, if the Board determines in good faith that such insurance is not available or is available only at
unreasonable expense.

15. ARBITRATION.

The parties agree that any dispute, controversy or claim, whether based on contract, tort, statute, discrimination, retaliation, or
otherwise, relating to, arising from or connected in any manner to this Agreement, or to the alleged breach of this Agreement, or arising
out of or relating to Employee’s employment or termination of employment, shall, upon timely written request of either party be
submitted to and resolved by binding arbitration. The arbitration shall be conducted in San Antonio, Texas. The arbitration shall proceed
in accordance with the National Rules for Resolution of Employment Disputes of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) in effect
at the time the claim or dispute arose, unless other rules are agreed upon by the parties. Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties in
writing, the arbitration shall be conducted by one arbitrator who is a member of the AAA and who is selected pursuant to the methods set
out in the National Rules for Resolution of Employment Disputes of the AAA. Any claims received after the applicable/relevant statute of
limitations period has passed shall be deemed null and void. The award of the arbitrator shall be a reasoned award with findings of fact
and conclusions of law. Either party may bring an action in any court of competent jurisdiction to compel arbitration under this
Agreement, to enforce an arbitration award, and to vacate an arbitration award. However, in actions seeking to vacate an award, the
standard of review to be applied by said court to the arbitrator’s findings of fact and conclusions of law will be the same as that applied by
an appellate court reviewing a decision of a trial court sitting without a jury. The Company will pay the actual costs of arbitration
excluding attorney’s fees. Each party will pay its own attorneys fees and other costs incurred by their respective attorneys.

16. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE EMPLOYEE.

The Employee represents and warrants to the Company that he is under no contractual or other restriction which is inconsistent with
the execution of this Agreement, the performance of his duties hereunder or the other rights of Company hereunder. The Employee also
represents and warrants to the Company that he is under no physical or mental disability that would hinder the performance of his duties
under this Agreement.




17. MISCELLANEOUS.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes any prior
written or oral agreements or understandings between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. No modification or amendment of
this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed by or on behalf of the parties hereto. The failure of a party to require
performance of any provision of this Agreement shall in no manner affect the right of such party at a later time to enforce any provision of
this Agreement. A waiver of the breach of any term or condition of this Agreement shall not be deemed to constitute a waiver of any
subsequent breach of the same or any other term or condition. This Agreement is intended to be performed in accordance with, and only to
the extent permitted by, all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations. If any provision of this Agreement, or the application
thereof to any person or circumstance, shall, for any reason and to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity and
unenforceability shall not affect the remaining provisions hereof or the application of such provisions to other persons or circumstances,
all of which shall be enforced to the greatest extent permitted by law. The headings in this Agreement are inserted for convenience of
reference only and shall not be a part of or control or affect the meaning of any provision hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed and delivered this Agreement as of the date first written above.
EMPLOYEE:

DATE: 11/28/05 BY:/s/Alan Ridgeway
ALAN RIDGEWAY

SFX ENTERTAINMENT, INC.,
D/B/A CLEAR CHANNEL ENTERTAINMENT

DATE: 11/28/05 BY:/s/Michael Rapino

MICHAEL RAPINO
President and CEO




Subsidiaries of CCE Spinco, Inc.

Exhibit 21.1

The following is a list of entities expected to be subsidiaries of CCE Spinco, Inc. upon the effectiveness of the distribution, along with

each entity’s expected place of incorporation or organization.

Domestic

A.H. Enterprises, Inc.

Addicted LLC

AKG, Inc.

American Artists Limited, Inc.
American Broadway, Inc.
American Theatre License, LLC
Amphitheater Entertainment Partnership
Ardee Festivals N.J., Inc.
Atlanta Concerts, Inc.

Audrey & Jane, Inc.

Avalon Acquisition Corp.

Avalon/Anaheim Acquisition Corporation, LLC
Bayou Place Performance Hall General Partnership

Beach Concerts, Inc.

BG Presents, Inc.

BGE Yuba LLC

BGP Acquisition, LL.C

BGP Denver, Inc.

Bill Graham Enterprises, Inc.
Bill Graham Presents, Inc.
Blues Clues Touring, LLC
Boston Opera House Development, LL.C
Boston Playhouse Realty, Inc.
Boyd Development, Inc.

Boyd Development, LP

Boylston Street Theatre Corp.
Bristow, LLC

Broadway Concerts, Inc.
Broadway in Chicago, LLC
Broadway Series Associates, Inc.

Broadway Series Management Group, Inc.

Cat’s-Eye, LLC

CC Entertainment Theatrical — LV, LLC
CCE Access Group, LLC

CCE Australia, LLC

CCE Denver, LLC

State or Jurisdiction of
Incorporation or Organization

Massachusetts
Delaware
California

Massachusetts

Texas
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
Delaware
Delaware

Texas
New York
California
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
California
Delaware
Delaware

Massachusetts
Delaware
Delaware

Massachusetts
Delaware

New York
Illinois
Indiana

Ohio
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware




CCE Foundation for the Arts

CCE Tour I (USA), Inc.

CCE/HOB Dallas Concerts, LL.C

CCE/RLE Special Purpose Venture, LLC
CCE-Televisa Music Promotions, LL.C

CDC Amphitheater/I, Inc.

CDP, Inc.

Cellar Door Amphitheater, Inc.

Cellar Door Concerts of Florida, Inc.

Cellar Door Concerts of the Carolinas, Inc.

Cellar Door Holding Company

Cellar Door North Central, Inc.

Cellar Door of North Carolina Limited Partnership
Cellar Door Productions of Michigan, Inc.

Cellar Door Productions of Virginia, Inc.

Cellar Door Venues, Inc.

CG Productions, LLC

Chastain Ventures JV

Chesapeake Concerts, Inc.

Chicago Theater Company

Chuck Morris Presents, LL.C

Chuckwho, Inc.

Clear Channel Entertainment Mexico, LLC

Clear Channel Entertainment Motor Sports-France, LLC
Clear Channel Entertainment Motor Sports-Switzerland, LLC

Clear Channel Entertainment Television Holdings, Inc.
Clear Channel Entertainment-Exhibits, Inc.

Clear Channel Movement, Inc.

Col Arts Associates, Inc.

Concert Southern Chastain Promotions

Concerts, Inc.

Conn Ticketing Company

Connecticut Amphitheater Development Corporation
Connecticut Concerts Incorporated

Connecticut Performing Arts Partners

Connecticut Performing Arts, Inc.

Contemporary Concert Productions Incorporated
Contemporary Group Acquisition Corp.
Contemporary Group, Inc.

Contemporary Sports Incorporated

Cooley and Conlon Management Co.

Deer Creek Amphitheater Concerts, Inc.

Deer Creek Amphitheater Concerts, L.P.

Delirium Concert, L.P.

Delirium General Partner, LLC

2-

Texas
Delaware
Delaware

Texas
Delaware

North Carolina
Maryland
Virginia
Florida
North Carolina
Delaware
Wisconsin
North Carolina
Michigan
Virginia
Florida
Delaware

Joint Venture (No State)

Maryland
Delaware
Colorado
Delaware
New York
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Texas
Delaware
Maryland

Georgia
Nevada
Connecticut
Connecticut
Connecticut
Connecticut
Connecticut
Missouri
Delaware
Missouri
Missouri
Georgia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware




Delsener/Slater Enterprises, Ltd.
Delsener/Slater Presents, Inc.

DLC Corp.

DLC Funding Corp.

Dora Touring, LLC

Dumb Deal, Inc.

E.F.C. Tours, Inc.

Eagle Eye Entertainment USA Inc.
Electric Factory Concerts, Inc.
EMI Acquisition Sub, Inc.

Entertainment Performing Arts, Inc.

ESP-Nevada, Inc.

Evening Star Productions, Inc.
Event Merchandising, Inc.

Exit 116 Revisited, Inc.

Field Consulting LLC

Fillmore Corporation

Fillmore Fingers, Inc.

Fillmore Theatrical Services, Inc.
Fosse NY LLC

Fosse Touring LLC

Fury Advertising, Inc.

G.A.M.E., LLC

Germain Amphitheater
Graham/Gund Partners

Greater Detroit Theatres, Inc.
GSAC Partners

Haymon Holdings, Inc.

Hedwig Productions LL.C

Henry Cardenas & Associates, Inc.
High Cotton, Inc.

HOB Concerts/PACE Amphitheatres Group Limited Partnership

ICON Doll Touring, LLC
In House Tickets, Inc.

InstantLive, LLC

International Hot Rod Association, L.L.C.

Irvine Meadows Amphitheater
Irving Plaza Concerts, Inc.

J&H Touring Company Limited Partnership (The)

JJB & DHW, Inc.

JJJ Amphitheater Limited Partnership

Journal Pavilion

Jujamcyn Productions Company, LLC

KSE-CCE Promotions, LL.C

New York
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

New York

Pennsylvania
Delaware
Pennsylvania
Delaware
Texas
Nevada
Arizona

California

New Jersey
Delaware
Delaware
California
California
Delaware
Delaware

District of Columbia
Delaware
Delaware

Gen’l Partnership (No State)

New Jersey
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Illinois
Georgia
Delaware
Delaware

New York
Massachusetts
Texas
California
Delaware
Texas
District of Columbia
Virginia
New Mexico
Minnesota
Colorado




Lake Front Operators, LLC
LRW Theatre Corp.

LV Theatrical Group, Inc
Magicworks Concerts, Inc.
Matters of The Heart, LLC
Mediaright Communications, Inc.
Michigan Licenses, LLC

Murat Center Concerts, Inc.
Murat Center Concerts, L.P.
Musical Rights, Inc.

NBC-CC Ventures, LLC

Ned Prop Joint Venture

NEJA Group, L.L.C.

Networks Presentations, LL.C
New Avalon, Inc.

New Era Promotions, Inc.

New Urban Entertainment, LL.C
New York Metro Concerts, LLLC
New York Theater Company
NEXT Ticketing, LLC

NOC, Inc.

Northeast Ticketing Company
NOTWORKS Touring, LLC
NTC Holdings, Inc.

Oakdale Theater Concerts, Inc.
Odeon, LLC

Ohio Arena Partners, LLC
PACE AEP Acquisition, Inc.
PACE Amphitheatres, Inc.
PACE Concerts GP, Inc.

PACE Concerts, Ltd.

PACE Entertainment Corporation
PACE Entertainment Group, Ltd.
Pace Events, Inc.

PACE Music Group, Inc.
PACE Theatrical Group, Inc.

Palace Theatre Operating Group, LLC

Pavilion Partners
PCMT, Inc.
PEC, Inc.

Performing Arts Management of North Miami, Inc.
Pier 6 Concert Pavilion Partners, LLC

Plaza Mexico, Inc.

Delaware
California
Delaware
Florida
Delaware
Arizona
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Illinois
Delaware
Texas
California
Alabama
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Connecticut
Connecticut
Delaware
New Jersey
Delaware
Delaware
Ohio
Texas
Texas
Texas
TX
Texas
Texas
Delaware
Texas

Texas
Delaware
Delaware

Illinois
Nevada
Florida
Maryland
Illinois




Portland Pavilion LLC

Proserv, LLC

PTG-Florida, Inc.

PTG-Florida, Inc./BSMG Joint Venture
Pure Cotton, Inc.

QBQ Entertainment, Inc.

QN Corp.

Ragtime NY LLC

Rainbow Concert Productions, Inc.
Rhyme Time LLC

Ritual, Inc.

Ritual-Minnesota, LL.C
Roadrunner Staging, Inc.
Rosemont Consulting, Inc.

RZO Tours, Inc.

Scottish Play, LLC

Selma Amphitheater, LLC

SFX Arena Management, LLC
SFX Arena Ventures, Inc.

SFX Baseball Group, LLC

SFX Basketball Group, LLC

SFX Bogart, LLC

SFX Broadway, Inc.

SFX Chicago, Inc.

SFX Cincinnati, LLC

SFX Club Management, LL.C

SFX Concerts of the Midwest, Inc.
SFX Concerts, Inc.

SFX Electric Factory, Inc.

SFX Entertainment, Inc.

SFX Family Entertainment of New Jersey, Inc.
SFX Family Entertainment Operations, Inc.
SFX Family Entertainment, Inc.
SFX Family Holdings, Inc.

SFX Festivals, Inc.

SFX Financial Advisory Management Enterprises, Inc.

SFX Golf Events, LLC
SFX Interactive, Inc.

SFX Internet Seller, Inc.
SFX Las Vegas, Inc.

SFX Marketing, Inc.

SFX Media Group, LLC
SFX Media Marketing, Inc.
SFX Motor Sports, Inc.
SFX Multimedia Group, LLC
SFX Music Cleveland, LLC
SFX Music Group, Inc.

Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Joint Venture (No State)
Georgia
Delaware
Connecticut
Delaware
New Jersey
Delaware
Michigan
Delaware
Arizona
Delaware
New Jersey
Delaware
Delaware
Ohio
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Michigan
Ohio
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Michigan
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Texas
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware




SFX Odeon License, LLC

SFX of New Mexico, LL.C

SFX Orbitz License, LL.C

SFX Post The Winners, LLC

SFX Productions and Publishing, Inc.
SFX Radio Network, Inc.

SFX Realty Company of Illinois, Inc.
SFX Record Investments, Inc.

SFX Rights, LLC

SFX Saratoga Concerts, LLC

SFX Shared Services, Inc.

SFX Sports Group, Inc.

SFX Sports Group, LLC

SFX Sports Holdings, Inc.

SFX Theatrical Group, Inc.

SFX Theatrical Merchandising, Inc.
SFX Tour I (USA), Inc.

SFX Tour II (USA), Inc.

SFX Touring, Inc.

SFX Transportation, Inc.

SFX TV Residuals, Inc.

SFX Ventures, Inc.

SFX.com Incorporated
SFX/NEDCO, Inc.

SFX-FE Touring Artists Group, Inc.
SFX-FEI (Germany), Inc.

Shelli Meadows, Inc.

Shoreline Amphitheater Partners
Shoreline Amphitheater, Ltd.
SM/PACE, Inc.

Sound Investors Amphitheater
Sound Investors, LLC

Southeast Ticketing Company

Southern Promotions, Inc.
Speaker Series, LLC

Sports & Entertainment Media Services, Inc.

Sunshine Concerts, L.L.C.
Sunshine Designs, Inc.
Sunshine Designs, L.P.
Suntex Acquisition, Inc.
Suntex Acquisition, L.P.
TBA Media, Inc.

TCN Theater Group, Inc.
Texas Tarps

The Album Network, Inc.
The Area Festival, LLC
The Boathouse Food Service Company, Inc.

-6-

Delaware
New Mexico
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Pennsylvania
Illinois
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
California
California
Texas
Florida
Delaware

Connecticut
Georgia
Delaware
Illinois
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
Delaware
Texas
California
Delaware
Virginia




The Booking Group L.L.C.

The Entertainment Group, Inc.

The Horton Company Limited Partnership

The Jekyll Company Limited Partnership

The Seven Hundred Sundays Company

The Shaggy Company, LL.C

The Short Project, LLC

The SuCCEss Company Limited Partnership
The Tallulah Company

The Wedding Tour Company

Theatre League of Philadelphia

Theatre Magazine, LLC

Theatre Management Group — Canada, Inc.
Theatre Management Group — Chicago, L.L.C.
Theatre Management Group — Maryland, LLC

Theatre Management Group — New York, L.L.C.

Theatre Management Group Boston, LLC
Theatre Management Group, Inc.
Theatrical Services, L.L.C.

TMG Hippodrome, LLC

TNA (USA) Inc.

TNA Tour I (USA) Inc.

TNA Tour II (USA) Inc.

Tollin/Robbins Management, LL.C

Tollin/Robbins Productions

Tremont Street Theatre Corporation II, Inc.
Universal/PACE Amphitheatres Group, L.P.
Urban Broadway Series, L.L.C.

Urban Entertainment, L.L.C.

VGL Properties, LLC

Vivelo, Inc.

West 42nd Street Music, LLC

West Coast Amphitheater Corp.

Westbury Music Fair, L.L.C.

Wiltern Renaissance LLC

International

Clear Channel Entertainment Emea Holdings Bv (fka-Clear Channel International Radio

Holdings Bv)
SFX Sports Group Pty Limited (Australia)

SFX Sports Golf (Australia) Pty Ltd. (fka — Tony Roosenburg Productions Pty Ltd)

New York
Illinois
New York
New York
New York
Delaware
Delaware
New York
New York
New York
Pennsylvania
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Texas
Delaware
Delaware
Texas
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
Gen’l Partnership (No State)

Massachusetts
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Illinois
Delaware
California
Delaware
Delaware

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation or Organization

Netherlands
Australia
Australia




CCE Belgium Holdings Company Sprl

CCE Belgium (fka — Make It Happen Nv)

Events Management & Consulting Nv

CCE Belgium — Festival Products Nv (fka — Stageco Products N.V.)

On Line Management N.V.

Belgian Concerts Sprl

International Music Limited (fka — Tna International Ltd.)

International Music Tour I Limited (fka — Tna Tour I Limited Bermuda)
International Music Tour Ii Limited (fka — Tna Tour Ii Limited Bermuda)
SFX Entertainment Of Brazil Ltda.

3471276 Canada, Inc.

Toronto Theatre Ltd

Phantom Touring Ltd

Eagle Eye Entertainment

TNA International Ltd.

CCE Touring (Canada) Inc. (fka — SFX Touring Canada Inc. (1392044 Ontario Inc.)
SFX/Core Inc.

SFX Events Partnership

Theatre Management Group — Toronto Corporation

3471276 Canada, Inc.

2037004 Ontario Limited

1283220 Ontario Inc.

Interkoncerts Culture And Sport Group Sro
Clear Channel Entertainment Germany Gmbh
Marek Lieberberg Konzertagentur Holding Gmbh
Dkb Management Holding Aps

Dkb Management Aps

Dkb Motor (fka — Dkb Concert Promotions Aps)
Broadway UK Limited

Clear Channel (Gibraltar) Limited

Clear Channel Entertainment Facilitation Limited
Fanbase Co. UK Limited

Grincind Limited

International Talent Booking Limited
Networks Presentations Limited (JV)

Park Associates Limited

Point Promotions Limited

Tony Stephens Associates Limited

Touring Design Limited

SFX Espectaculos, S.L.

Ema Telstar Oy

Welldone Agency & Promotion Oy

Welldone Productions Oy

Welldone Lr Oy

Welldone Concerts Oy

Lcb France

SFX Family Entertainment Asia Limited
Multimedia Harmony Kft

Music Multimedia Kft

Point Exhibition Co. Ltd.

Point Promotions Ltd.

Point Presentation Ltd.

CCE Ireland Holdings Ltd.

Clear Channel Entertainment Italia
Friends & Partners Italia
The Entertainment Group Sa De Cv

Belgium
Belgium
Belgium
Belgium
Belgium
Belgium
Bermuda
Bermuda
Bermuda
Brazil
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada

Canada
Czech Republic
Germany
Germany
Denmark
Denmark
Denmark
England/Wales
England/Wales
England/Wales
England/Wales
England/Wales
England/Wales
England/Wales
England/Wales
England/Wales
England/Wales
England/Wales
Spain
Finland
Finland
Finland
Finland
Finland
France
Hong Kong
Hungary
Hungary
Ireland
Ireland
Ireland

Ireland
Italy
Italy

Mexico




SFX Family Entertaiment Sa De Cv

Clear Channel Entertainment International Holdings Bv (fka — SFX Netherlands Holding, B.V.)

CCE Netherlands Holdings Bv (fka — SFX Netherlands B.V.)
Mojo Works B.V.

Mojo Concerts B.V.

Vof Agents Afterall

De Nationale Theaterkassa B.V.

The Security Company Utrecht Holland Holding B.V.

The Event Support Company B.V.

Straight International Security B.V.

North Sea Jazz South Africa Bv

Festival Management Bv

Mojo Esp Cv (fka -?- Capetown Events Cv)

Mojo Theater B.V.

Anti-Concerts Investments N.V.

Anti-Concerts Holding B.V.

Anti-Concerts B.V.

Mail 2 Me Vof

Gunnar Eide Concerts As

QOdyssey Spolka Zo.0.

Ema Holdings Ab

Ema Telstar Gruppen Ab

Ema Telstar Ab

Moondog Entertainment Ab

Lugerinc Ab

Cirkus Arena & Restaurang Pa D. Ab

Forvaltningsbolaget Cirkus Pa K.D. Hb

Ema Telstar Management Ab

Eventum Ab

Clear Channel Entertainment U.K. Holdings Ltd. (fka — SFX Uk Holdings Ltd.)
Mecp Promotions Group Ltd.

Clear Channel Entertainment (Music) Uk Ltd. (fka - Mcp Promotions Limited)
Donington Park Leisure Limited

Touring Design Limited (fka — Venue And Event Management)
Publicity Wise Limited

Northcane Limited

Apollo Leisure Group Ltd.

Apollo Dominion Investments Ltd.

Nederlander Dominion Ltd.

Clear Channel Entertainment (Theatrical) Uk Ltd. (fka-Apollo Leisure (Uk) Ltd.)
Barry Clayman Corporation Ltd.

Back Row Production

Gumboots Dances Ltd

Mexico
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands

Norway

Poland

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom




CCE UK (Theatrical Productions) Limited (fka David Ian Productions (Dip))

King & I Management Ltd

The Security Company (Uk) Holdings Ltd
Showsec Holding Ltd

Showsec International Ltd

SFX Sports Group (Europe) Ltd.

Gricind Limited

International Talent Booking Ltd

Uk Sx Limited (fka — Planit Promotions)
Solo Events Ltd.

Solo Enterprises Ltd.

Solo Agency Ltd.

Solo Concerts Ltd.

Solo Presents Ltd.

Solo Management Uk

Solo Promoters

SFX (Ireland) Ltd

Showsec Special Events Limited
Broadway Uk Limited

Clear Channel Entertainment Facilitation Limited
Network Presentations Limited (fka — Networks (Uk))
The Three Mad Monkeys Limited
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United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom




Other International

Producciones Artisticas Inchicos S1
We Will Rock You Spain SI
Concierto Latino S1

Spiderman Live SI

Teatro Mayor De Madrid 2003 Sl
Entl

Ent2

Scg (Players) Limited
Hamsard 2786 Ltd.

Mean Fiddler Music Group Plc
Annestown Limited

Mean Fiddler Holdings Limited
Union-Undeb Ltd.

Mean Fiddler Events Limited
Finlaw 279 Ltd.

Finlaw 271 Ltd

Reading Festival Ltd.

The Forum Club Ltd
Rangepost Ltd

Sidezone Ltd

Astoria Venues Ltd.

Mf Clubs & Live Ltd.

Mf Management Limited
Mean Fiddler Media Ltd.
Manto Soho Ltd.

Elfcrown Ltd.

Adventure Sport Events Ltd.
Homelands Festival Ltd.
Windfield Promotions Ltd.
Glastonbury Festival 2005 Ltd.
Subterrania Limited

Mfmp Festival & Events Gmbh
Mean Fiddler Spain Sl

Clear Channel Sports And Entertainment Management Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Entertainment Cv

Jurisdiction of

Incorporation or Organization
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Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
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Netherlands
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
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United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Spain
China
Netherlands
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EXHIBIT 99.1

Clear Channel Communications, Inc.
200 East Basse Road
San Antonio, Texas 78209

CJ) CLEARCHANNEL

, 2005

Dear Clear Channel Communications, Inc. Stockholder:

We are pleased to inform you that on , 2005, the Board of Directors of Clear Channel Communications, Inc. approved the
spin-off of CCE Spinco, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Clear Channel Communications, which we believe is one of the world’s largest
diversified promoters and producers of, and venue operators for, live entertainment events.

The spin-off of CCE Spinco will occur on , 2005 by way of a pro rata dividend to Clear Channel Communications’
stockholders. Each Clear Channel Communications stockholder will be entitled to receive a dividend of one share of CCE Spinco common
stock (and a related stock purchase right) for every eight shares of Clear Channel Communications common stock held at the close of
business on the record date of the spin-off, , 2005. The dividend will be paid in book-entry form, and physical stock
certificates will be issued only upon request. No fractional shares of CCE Spinco common stock will be issued. If you would be entitled to a
fractional share of CCE Spinco common stock in the distribution, you will receive its net cash value instead.

Stockholder approval of the spin-off is not required, and you are not required to take any action to receive your CCE Spinco common
stock.

Following the spin-off, you will own shares in both Clear Channel Communications and CCE Spinco. Clear Channel Communications
common stock will continue to trade on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “CCU.” CCE Spinco’s common stock has been
approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “LYV.”

The enclosed information statement, which is being mailed to all Clear Channel Communications stockholders, describes the spin-off
in detail and contains important information about CCE Spinco, including its financial statements.

We look forward to your continued support as a stockholder in both Clear Channel Communications and CCE Spinco.

Sincerely,

L. Lowry Mays Mark P. Mays Randall T. Mays
Chairman President and Executive Vice President and
Chief Executive Olfficer Chief Financial Officer
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CCE Spinco, Inc.
9348 Civic Center Drive
Beverly Hills, California 90210

Dear CCE Spinco, Inc. Stockholder:

It is my pleasure to welcome you as a stockholder of our new company, CCE Spinco, Inc. We believe we are one of the world’s largest
diversified promoters and producers of, and venue operators for, live entertainment events. For the year ended December 31, 2004, we
promoted or produced over 28,500 events, including music concerts, theatrical shows, specialized motor sports and other events, with total
attendance exceeding 61 million. In addition, we believe we operate one of the largest networks of venues used principally for music
concerts and theatrical performances in the United States and Europe. As of September 30, 2005, we owned or operated 117 venues,
consisting of 75 domestic and 42 international venues.

As a separate publicly-traded company, CCE Spinco will continue to provide high-quality, customer-oriented live entertainment
services to our clients. We plan to continue to focus our energies on producing and promoting compelling live entertainment events.

Our common stock has been approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “LYV” in connection with the
spin-off.

I invite you to learn more about CCE Spinco by reviewing the enclosed information statement. We look forward to our future as a
separate publicly-traded company and to your support as a holder of CCE Spinco common stock.

Sincerely,

Randall T. Mays
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Subject to Completion, dated November 29, 2005

INFORMATION STATEMENT

[LOGO]

CCE Spinco, Inc.

Common Stock
(Par Value $0.01 per share)

This information statement is being furnished in connection with the distribution of all the outstanding shares of CCE Spinco, Inc.
common stock by Clear Channel Communications, Inc. to holders of its common stock.

Shares of our common stock will be distributed to holders of Clear Channel Communications common stock of record as of the close of
business on , 2005, which will be the record date. These stockholders will be entitled to receive one share of our common stock
(and a related stock purchase right) for every eight shares of Clear Channel Communications common stock held on the record date. The
distribution will be effective at 11:59 p.m., New York City time, on , 2005. No fractional shares of our common stock will be
issued. Any stockholder that would be entitled to fractional shares will receive net cash in lieu of such shares. The distribution is intended
to be tax-free to Clear Channel Communications and its stockholders for U.S. federal income tax purposes, except for any cash received in
lieu of fractional shares.

No stockholder approval of the distribution is required or sought. We are not asking you for a proxy and you are requested not
to send us a proxy. Clear Channel Communications stockholders will not be required to pay for the shares of our common stock to be
received by them in the distribution, or to surrender or to exchange shares of Clear Channel Communications common stock in order to
receive our common stock or to take any other action in connection with the distribution. There is no current trading market for our
common stock. However, we expect that a limited market, commonly known as a “when-issued” trading market, for our common stock will
develop on or shortly before the record date for the spin-off, and we expect “regular way” trading of our common stock will begin the first
trading day after the spin-off. Our common stock has been approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol
“LYV.”

In reviewing this information statement, you should carefully consider the matters described under the
caption “Risk Factors” beginning on page 20.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved these
securities or determined if this information statement is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal
offense.

This information statement is not an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any securities.

The date of this information statement is ,2005.
Clear Channel Communications first mailed this document to its stockholders on ,2005.
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* See inside back cover for a map of our international venues.
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INDUSTRY DATA

This information statement includes industry data, forecasts and information that we have prepared based, in part, upon industry data,
forecasts and information obtained from independent industry publications and surveys and other information available to us. Some data
are also based on our good faith estimates, which are derived from management’s knowledge of the industry and independent sources. The
primary sources for third-party industry data and forecasts were Nielsen Media Research, Inc., Pollstar, Inc., The League of American
Theatres and Producers, Inc. and other industry reports and articles. These third-party publications and surveys generally state that they
believe the information contained therein was obtained from sources they believe to be reliable, but that they can give no assurance as to
the accuracy or completeness of included information. We have not independently verified any of the data from third-party sources nor
have we ascertained the underlying economic assumptions relied upon therein. Similarly, we believe our internal research is reliable, but it

has not been verified by any independent sources.
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SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this information statement and provides an overview of our company and
the material aspects of our spin-off from Clear Channel Communications, Inc. You should read this entire information statement
carefully, especially the risk factors discussed beginning on page 20 and our combined historical and pro forma financial statements and
notes to those statements appearing elsewhere in this information statement. References in this information statement to (i) “Clear
Channel Entertainment,” “CCE Spinco,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to CCE Spinco, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries and
(it) “Clear Channel Communications” refers to Clear Channel Communications, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (other than us),
unless the context otherwise requires.

We describe in this information statement the businesses to be transferred to us by Clear Channel Communications in connection with
the distribution as if the transferred businesses were our business for all historical periods described herein. However, we are a newly
formed entity that has not conducted any operations prior to the distribution. References in this information statement to our historical
assets, liabilities, products, businesses or activities of our business are generally intended to refer to the historical assets, liabilities,
services, businesses or activities of the transferred businesses as the businesses were conducted as a part of Clear Channel
Communications and its subsidiaries prior to the distribution. Following the distribution, we will be a separate publicly-traded company
and Clear Channel Communications will have no continuing stock ownership in us. Our historical financial results as part of Clear
Channel Communications contained herein may not reflect our financial results in the future as an independent company or what our
financial results would have been had we been operated as a separate publicly-traded company during the periods presented.

CCE Spinco, Inc.

Our Business

We believe we are one of the world’s largest diversified promoters and producers of, and venue operators for, live entertainment
events. For the year ended December 31, 2004, we promoted or produced over 28,500 events, including music concerts, theatrical
performances, specialized motor sports and other events, with total attendance exceeding 61 million. In addition, we believe we operate
one of the largest networks of venues used principally for music concerts and theatrical performances in the United States and Europe. As
of September 30, 2005, we owned or operated 117 venues, consisting of 75 domestic and 42 international venues. These venues include
39 amphitheaters, 58 theaters, 14 clubs, four arenas and two festival sites. In addition, through equity, booking or similar arrangements we
have the right to book events at 33 additional venues. For the year ended December 31, 2004, we generated revenues of approximately
$2.8 billion, net income of approximately $16.3 million, and operating income (loss) before depreciation, amortization, loss (gain) on sale
of operating assets and non-cash compensation expense, or OIBDAN, of approximately $130.5 million. Please read “— Summary
Historical and Pro Forma Financial and Other Data — Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for an explanation of OIBDAN and a
reconciliation of OIBDAN to operating income. Approximately 90% of our total revenues for 2004 resulted from our promotion or
production of music concerts and theatrical performances and from revenues related to our owned or operated venues.

Our Business Segments
We operate in two reportable business segments: global music and global theater. In addition, we operate in the specialized motor
sports, sport representation and other businesses, which are included under “other.”

Global Music. Our global music business principally involves the promotion or production of live music shows and tours by music
artists in our owned and operated venues and in rented third-party
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venues. For the year ended December 31, 2004, our global music business generated approximately $2.2 billion, or 78%, of our total
revenues. We promoted or produced over 10,000 events in 2004, including tours for artists such as Madonna, Sting, Dave Matthews Band
and Toby Keith. In addition, we produced several large festivals in Europe, including Rock Werchter in Belgium and the North Sea Jazz
Festival in Holland. Part of our growth strategy is to expand our promotion and production of festivals, particularly in Europe. While our
global music business operates year-round, we experience higher revenues during the second and third quarters due to the seasonal nature
of our amphitheaters and international festivals, which are primarily used during or occur in May through September.

Global Theater. Our global theater business promotes, which we commonly refer to as “presents,” and produces touring and other
theatrical performances. Our touring theatrical performances consist primarily of revivals of previous commercial successes and new
productions of theatrical performances playing on Broadway in New York City or the West End in London. For the year ended
December 31, 2004, our global theater business generated approximately $314.0 million, or 11%, of our total revenues. In 2004, we
presented or produced over 12,000 theatrical performances of productions such as The Producers, The Lion King, Mamma Mia! and
Chicago. We pre-sell tickets for our touring shows through one of the largest subscription series in the United States and Canada in
approximately 45 touring markets. While our global theater business operates year-round, we experience higher revenues during
September through April, which coincides with the theatrical touring season.

Other. We believe we are one of the largest promoters and producers of specialized motor sports events, primarily in North America.
In 2004, we held over 600 events in stadiums, arenas and other venues, including monster truck shows, supercross races, motocross races,
freestyle motocross events and motorcycle road racing. In addition, we own numerous trademarked properties, including monster trucks
such as Grave Diggertm and Blue Thundertm, which generate additional licensing revenues. While our specialized motor sports business
operates year-round, we experience higher revenues during January through March, which is the period when a larger number of
specialized motor sports events occur.

We also provide integrated sports marketing and management services, primarily for professional athletes. Our marketing and
management services generally involve our negotiation of player contracts with professional sports teams and of endorsement contracts
with major brands. As of September 30, 2005, we had approximately 600 clients, including Tracy McGrady (basketball), David Ortiz
(baseball), Tom Lehman (golf), Andy Roddick (tennis), Roy E. Williams (football) and Steven Gerrard (soccer).

We also promote and produce other live entertainment events, including family shows such as Dora the Explorer and Blue’s Clues, as
well as museum and other exhibitions, such as Saint Peter and The Vatican: The Legacy of the Popes. In addition, we produce and
distribute television shows and DVDs, including programs such as A&E Biographies: Rod Stewart and HBO Sports’ The Curse of the
Bambino.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, businesses included under “other” generated approximately $291.1 million, or 11%, of our
total revenues.

Our Business Activities
We principally act in the following capacities, performing one, some or all of these roles in connection with our events and tours:

Promotion. As a promoter, we typically book performers, arrange performances and tours, secure venues, provide for third-party
production services, sell tickets and advertise events to attract audiences. We earn revenues primarily from the sale of tickets and pay
performers under one of several formulas, including a fixed guaranteed amount and/or a percentage of ticket sales. For each event, we
either use a venue we own or operate, or rent a third-party venue. In our global theater business, we generally refer to promotion as
“presentation.” Revenues related to promotion activities represent the majority of our combined revenues. These revenues are generally
related to the volume of ticket sales and ticket prices. Event costs, included in divisional operating expenses, such as artist and production
service expenses, are
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typically substantial in relation to the revenues they generate. As a result, significant increases or decreases in promotion revenue do not
typically result in comparable changes to operating income.

Production. As a producer, we generally develop event content, hire directors and artistic talent, develop sets and costumes, and
coordinate the actual performances of the events. We produce tours on a global, national and regional basis. We generate revenues from
fixed producer fees and by sharing in a percentage of event or tour profits primarily related to the sale of tickets, merchandise and event
and tour sponsorships.

Venue Operation. As a venue operator, we contract with promoters to rent our venues for events and provide related services such as
concessions, merchandising, parking, security, ushering and ticket-taking. We generate revenues primarily from rental income, ticket
service charges, premium seating and venue sponsorships, as well as sharing in percentages of concessions, merchandise and parking. Our
outdoor entertainment venues are primarily used, and our international festivals occur, during May through September. As a result, we
experience higher revenues during the second and third quarters. Revenues generated from venue operations, which are partially driven
by attendance, typically have a higher margin than promotion or production revenues and therefore typically have a more direct
relationship to operating income.

Sponsorships and Advertising. We actively pursue the sale of national and local sponsorships and placement of advertising, including
signage, promotional programs, naming of subscription series and tour sponsorships. Many of our venues also have name-in-title
sponsorship programs. We believe national sponsorships allow us to maximize our network of venues and to arrange multi-venue
branding opportunities for advertisers. Our national sponsorship programs have included companies such as American Express, Anheuser
Busch and Coca-Cola. Our local and venue-focused sponsorships include venue signage, promotional programs, on-site activation,
hospitality and tickets, and are derived from a variety of companies across various industry categories. Revenues generated from
sponsorships and advertising typically have a higher margin than promotion or production revenues and therefore typically have a more
direct relationship to operating income.

Our Strategy

We are pursuing the following key strategies:

* We seek to maximize cash flow from operations through the ownership and operation of a leading distribution network of live
entertainment venues.

» We seek to attract large audiences by securing, promoting and producing compelling live entertainment events in our own venues and
third party venues.

» We seek to use our venues, live events and customers to develop and maintain relationships with our sponsorship and marketing
partners, and sell an expanded line of products and services to our customers.

» We intend to selectively pursue investments and acquisitions that enhance our business where the returns and growth potential are
consistent with our goal of increasing stockholder value.

Our Challenges

We face a number of risks associated with our business and industry and must overcome a variety of challenges in implementing our
operating strategy in order to be successful. For instance:

» We will have substantial indebtedness and lease obligations after the spin-off and will not be able to rely on Clear Channel
Communications to fund our future capital requirements. Our total indebtedness for borrowed money will be approximately
$367.6 million. Our substantial indebted-
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ness could have adverse consequences on our business and results of operations. If our cash flow and capital resources are insufficient
to service our debt, we may be forced to sell assets, seek additional equity or debt capital or restructure our debt and business.

* The live entertainment industry is highly competitive and the success of our events are primarily dependent on public taste and our
ability to secure popular artists. Many events require substantial upfront costs before they generate any receipts and it is extremely
difficult to predict if an event will be a success. To be successful, we must promote and present live entertainment events that generate
significant receipts to offset fixed promotion and overhead costs.

» We have not operated as an independent company and have in the past relied on Clear Channel Communications for financing and
other services. We may be unable to make the changes necessary to operate as an independent company or to obtain necessary
financing and other services from unrelated third parties on reasonable terms or at all.

» We are subject to extensive governmental regulation. Regulations regarding permitting, health, safety, food and alcoholic beverage
service, working conditions, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and taxes, among others, may restrict our live entertainment
operations. From time to time, state and federal governmental bodies propose legislation that may introduce additional restrictions on
us.

For further discussion of these challenges and other risks that we face, see “Risk Factors” beginning on page 20.
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Why is Clear Channel
Communications separating CCE
Spinco and distributing its stock?

Why is the separation of the two
companies structured as a spin-off?

How will the separation and
distribution work?

What do stockholders need to do to
participate in the distribution?

Questions and Answers about CCE Spinco and the Distribution

The board of directors of Clear Channel Communications has determined that the separation of
CCE Spinco from Clear Channel Communications is in the best interests of Clear Channel
Communications, its stockholders and us, by providing each company with certain opportunities
and benefits, such as:

* The separation will allow us and Clear Channel Communications to better attract, retain and
motivate current and future employees through the use of equity-based compensation policies that
more directly link employee compensation with our respective financial performances.

* The separation will permit the independent management of each of Clear Channel
Communications and us to focus its attention and its company’s financial resources on its
respective distinct business and business challenges and to lead each independent company to
adopt strategies and pursue objectives that are appropriate to its respective business.

* Both we and Clear Channel Communications expect to have better access to the equity capital
markets in connection with acquisitions and financings after the separation as our investors will not
be forced to understand and make investment decisions with respect to Clear Channel
Communications’ business and Clear Channel Communications’ investors will not be forced to
understand and make investment decisions with respect to our business.

See “The Distribution.”

Clear Channel Communications believes that a tax-free distribution of shares in CCE Spinco offers
Clear Channel Communications and its stockholders long-term value in a tax efficient way to
separate the companies.

The separation and distribution will be accomplished through a series of transactions in which
substantially all of the assets and liabilities of Clear Channel Communications’ entertainment
business comprised of global music, global theater, specialized motor sports and sport
representation businesses will be transferred to us and all of the shares of our common stock will
be distributed by Clear Channel Communications to its stockholders on a pro rata basis.

Nothing. You are not required to take any action to receive CCE Spinco common stock in the
distribution, although we urge you to read this entire document carefully. You do not need to mail
in Clear Channel Communications common stock certificates to receive CCE Spinco common
stock. No stockholder approval of the distribution is required or sought. We are not asking you for
a proxy and you are requested not to send us a proxy. You will not be required either to pay
anything for the new shares or to surrender any shares of Clear Channel Communications common
stock. If you own Clear Channel Communications common stock as of the close of business on the
record date, a book-entry account statement reflecting your ownership of CCE Spinco shares will
be mailed to you, or your
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When will the distribution occur?

Can Clear Channel Communications
decide to cancel the distribution of
the common stock even if all the
conditions have been met?

Does CCE Spinco plan to pay
dividends?

What are the U.S. federal income
tax consequences of the distribution
to Clear Channel Communications
stockholders?

What will the relationship between
Clear Channel Communications and
CCE Spinco be following the
distribution?

brokerage account will be credited for the shares, on or about , 2005. Following the
distribution, stockholders whose shares are held in book-entry form may request that their shares
of our common stock be transferred to a brokerage or other account at any time as well as delivery
of physical stock certificates for their shares, in each case without charge.

We expect that Clear Channel Communications will distribute the shares of our common stock on
, 2005 to holders of record of Clear Channel Communications common stock on
, 2005, the record date.

Yes. The distribution is conditioned upon satisfaction or waiver of certain conditions. See “The
Distribution — Distribution Conditions and Termination.” Clear Channel Communications has the
right to terminate the stock distribution, even if all of these conditions are met, if at any time Clear
Channel Communications’ board of directors determines, in its sole discretion, that Clear Channel
Communications and CCE Spinco are better served being a combined company, thereby making
the distribution not in the best interest of Clear Channel Communications and its stockholders, or
that market conditions are such that it is not advisable to spin-off the entertainment business.

No. We do not expect to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Moreover, we anticipate
the terms of our credit agreement governing our senior secured credit facility and designations
governing Holdco #2’s preferred stock will limit the amount of funds which we will have available
to declare and distribute as dividends on our common stock. Payment of future cash dividends, if
any, will be at the discretion of our board of directors in accordance with applicable law. See
“Dividend Policy” and “Description of Indebtedness.”

The spin-off is conditioned upon Clear Channel Communications’ receipt of a private letter ruling
from the IRS and the opinion of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, in each case, to the
effect that the spin-off will qualify as a tax-free distribution for U.S. federal income tax purposes
under Sections 355 and 368(a)(1)(D) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code”). Assuming the spin-off so qualifies, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, no gain or loss
will be recognized by you, and no amount will be included in your income, upon the receipt of
shares of our common stock pursuant to the spin-off. You will generally recognize gain or loss
with respect to cash received in lieu of a fractional share of our common stock. See “The
Distribution — Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Distribution.”

After the distribution, Clear Channel Communications will not own any shares of our common
stock and we will not own any shares of Clear Channel Communications common stock. Three of
our directors will also be directors of Clear Channel Communications, and our chairman will
continue to serve as chief financial officer of Clear Channel Communications. In addition, in
connection with the distribution, we and Clear Channel Communications are entering into a
number of agree-
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What if I want to sell my Clear
Channel Communications common
stock or my CCE Spinco common
stock?

Where will I be able to trade shares
of CCE Spinco common stock?

Will the number of Clear Channel
Communications shares I own
change as a result of the
distribution?

What will happen to the listing of
Clear Channel Communications
common stock?

Will the distribution affect the
market price of my Clear Channel
Communications shares?

ments that will govern our spin-off from Clear Channel Communications and our future
relationship. We cannot assure you that these agreements will be on terms as favorable to us as
agreements with other third parties. See “Our Relationship with Clear Channel Communications
After the Distribution.” In addition, if Clear Channel Communications acquires knowledge of a
potential transaction or matter which may be a corporate opportunity for both us and Clear Channel
Communications, our certificate of incorporation provides that we will generally renounce our
interest in the corporate opportunity. See “Description of Capital Stock — Provisions of our
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation Relating to Related-Party Transactions and
Corporate Opportunities.”

You should consult with your own financial advisors, such as your stockbroker, bank or tax
advisor. Clear Channel Communications does not make any recommendations on the purchase,
retention or sale of shares of Clear Channel Communications common stock or CCE Spinco
common stock to be distributed.

If you do decide to sell any shares, you should make sure your stockbroker, bank or other nominee
understands whether you want to sell your Clear Channel Communications common stock or your
CCE Spinco common stock after it is distributed, or both.

There is not currently a public market for our common stock. Our common stock has been
approved for listing on the New York Stork Exchange, or NYSE, under the symbol “LYV.” We
anticipate that trading in shares of our common stock will begin on a “when-issued” basis on or
shortly before the record date and before the distribution date, and “regular way” trading will begin
on the first trading day following the distribution date. If trading does begin on a “when-issued”
basis, you may purchase or sell our common stock after that time, but your transaction will not
settle until after the distribution date. On the first trading day following the distribution date, when-
issued trading in respect of our common stock will end and regular way trading will begin. We
cannot predict the trading prices for our common stock before or after the distribution date.

No. The number of shares of Clear Channel Communications common stock you own will not
change as a result of the distribution.

Nothing. Clear Channel Communications common stock will continue to be traded on the NYSE
under the symbol of “CCU.”

Yes. As a result of the distribution, we expect the trading price of Clear Channel Communications
shares immediately following the distribution to be lower than immediately prior to the distribution
because the trading price should no longer reflect the value of the CCE Spinco businesses.
Furthermore, until the market has fully analyzed the operations of Clear Channel Communications
without these businesses, the price of Clear Channel Communications shares may fluctuate
significantly. In addition, the combined trading prices of Clear Channel Commu-




Table of Contents

Are there risks to owning CCE
Spinco common stock?

Where can Clear Channel
Communications stockholders get
more information?

Who will be the distribution agent,
transfer agent and registrar for our
common stock?

nications common stock and CCE Spinco common stock after the distribution may be less than the
trading price of Clear Channel Communications common stock prior to the distribution.

Yes. Our business is subject both to general and specific business risks relating to our leverage, our
business, our relationship with Clear Channel Communications and our being a separate publicly-
traded company, as well as risks related to the nature of the spin-off transaction itself. These risks
are described in the “Risk Factors” section of this information statement beginning on page 20. We
encourage you to read that section carefully.

Before the distribution, if you have any questions relating to the distribution, you should contact:

Clear Channel Communications, Inc.
Investor Relations

P.O. Box 659512

San Antonio, Texas 78265-9512
Tel: (210) 822-2828

Fax: (210) 822-2299
www.clearchannel.com

After the distribution, if you have any questions relating to our common stock, you should contact:

CCE Spinco, Inc.

Investor Relations

¢/o Brainerd Communicators, Inc.
521 5th Avenue

New York, New York 10175

Tel: (212) 986-6667

Fax: (212) 986-8302

The Bank of New York Company, Inc.

101 Barclay Street

New York, New York 10286

Toll-Free Shareholder Services Line: 1-800-524-4458
Email: shareowners@bankofny.com
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Distributing company

Distributed company

Securities to be distributed

Distribution ratio

Fractional shares

Record date

Distribution date

Summary of the Transactions

The following is a brief summary of the terms of the distribution and other concurrent transactions:

Clear Channel Communications, Inc. After the spin-off, Clear Channel Communications will not
own any shares of our capital stock.

CCE Spinco, Inc. is currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of Clear Channel Communications. After
the spin-off, CCE Spinco will be a separate publicly-traded company. However, three of our
directors will also be directors of Clear Channel Communications, and our chairman will continue
to serve as chief financial officer of Clear Channel Communications.

Shares of CCE Spinco common stock, which will constitute all of the outstanding shares of our
common stock immediately after the distribution.

Delivery of a share of our common stock in connection with the distribution also will constitute the
delivery of the preferred stock purchase right associated with the share. The existence of the
preferred stock purchase rights may deter a potential acquiror from making a hostile takeover
proposal or a tender offer. For a more detailed discussion of these rights, see “Description of Our
Capital Stock — The Rights Agreement.”

Each holder of Clear Channel Communications common stock will be entitled to receive a
dividend of one share of our common stock (and a related stock purchase right) for every

eight shares of Clear Channel Communications common stock held on the record date. Cash will
be distributed in lieu of fractional shares.

Fractional shares of our common stock will not be distributed. In lieu of fractional shares of our
common stock, stockholders of Clear Channel Communications will receive cash. Fractional
shares you would otherwise be entitled to receive will be aggregated and sold in the public market
by the distribution agent, who will determine in its sole discretion the timing and terms of such
sale. The aggregate net cash proceeds of these sales will be distributed ratably to those
stockholders who would otherwise have received fractional shares of our common stock in
accordance with their fractional share interests. If you own fewer than eight shares of Clear
Channel Communications common stock on the record date, you will not receive any shares of our
common stock in the distribution, but you will receive cash in lieu of a fractional share. The receipt
of cash in lieu of fractional shares will generally be taxable to the recipient stockholders. For more
information, see “The Distribution — Manner of Effecting the Distribution” and “The

Distribution — Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Distribution.”

The record date is the close of business on ,2005.

11:59 p.m., New York City time, on , 2005.
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Incurrence of debt

Prior to or concurrently with the completion of the distribution, one of our operating subsidiaries,
Holdco #3, will enter into a $575.0 million senior secured credit facility consisting of:

* a $325.0 million 7'/2-year term loan; and

* a2 $250.0 million 6!/2-year revolving credit facility, of which up to $200.0 million will be
available for the issuance of letters of credit and up to $100.0 million will be available for
borrowings in foreign currencies.

Subject to then market pricing and maturity extending longer than that of the senior secured credit
facility, we will be able to add additional term and revolving credit facilities in an aggregate
amount not to exceed $250.0 million. We anticipate that the senior secured credit facility will be
secured by a first priority lien on substantially all of our domestic assets (other than real property
and deposits maintained by us in connection with promoting or producing live entertainment
events) and a pledge of the capital stock of our domestic subsidiaries and a portion of the capital
stock of certain of our foreign subsidiaries. Borrowings in foreign currencies by our foreign
subsidiaries will, in addition, be secured by a first priority lien on substantially all of our foreign
assets (other than real property and deposits maintained by us in connection with promoting or
producing live entertainment events) and a pledge of the capital stock of all subsidiaries held by
such borrowing subsidiary.

After giving effect to the borrowings under the senior secured credit facility, we expect to have
approximately $367.6 million of indebtedness for borrowed money outstanding. We intend to use
$200.0 million of borrowings under the term loan portion of our senior secured credit facility and
the $20 million of proceeds from the issuance of the Series A redeemable preferred stock of
Holdco #2 to repay a portion of the indebtedness we owe Clear Channel Communications. We
intend to use the remaining $125.0 million of borrowings under the term loan portion of our senior
secured credit facility for general corporate purposes, including working capital, potential
acquisitions and stock repurchases. We expect that approximately $200.0 million of the revolving
credit facility will remain available for working capital and general corporate purposes of

Holdco #3 and its subsidiaries immediately following the completion of the distribution and after
the transfer of approximately $50.0 million of letters of credit previously issued under Clear
Channel Communications’ credit facilities on behalf of certain Holdco #3 subsidiaries. The
issuance of letters of credit will reduce this availability by the notional amount of issued letters of
credit. However, on or prior to the distribution date, we may draw advances under the senior
secured credit facility for working capital and other general corporate purposes. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Liquidity and Capital Resources” and “Description of Indebtedness.”

10




Table of Contents

Preferred stock issuance

Payment of intercompany note

The agreements governing the senior secured credit facility are subject to ongoing negotiation. We
cannot be certain the terms described herein will not change or be supplemented. See “Description
of Indebtedness.”

Prior to the completion of the distribution, third-party investors unrelated to Clear Channel
Communications will acquire all of the shares of Series A (voting) and Series B (non-voting)
mandatorily redeemable preferred stock of Holdco #2, the parent company of Holdco #3, one of
our operating subsidiaries, which operating subsidiary owns more than 95% of the gross value of
our assets. The preferred stock will have an aggregate liquidation preference of $40 million. We
expect the Series A redeemable preferred stock will have a liquidation preference of $20 million
and will be issued to a third-party investor for $20 million. We anticipate the Series B redeemable
preferred stock will have a liquidation preference of $20 million and will be issued to Clear
Channel Communications in connection with the Holdco #3 Exchange for no cash and immediately
resold to a third-party purchaser for $20 million. See “Our Relationship with Clear Channel
Communications After the Distribution — Tax Matters Agreement — Holdco #3 Loss.” We will
not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of the Series B redeemable preferred stock sold by
Clear Channel Communications. The issuance and sale of the Series A and Series B redeemable
preferred stock together with the Holdco #3 Exchange are structured to raise desired financing and
to facilitate the overall tax efficiency of the distribution.

The holders of Series A redeemable preferred stock will have the right to appoint one out of four
members to Holdco #2’s board of directors and to otherwise control 25% of the voting power of all
outstanding shares of Holdco #2. The Series B redeemable preferred stock will have no voting
rights other than the right to vote as a class with the Series A redeemable preferred stock to elect
one additional member to the board of directors of Holdco #2 in the event Holdco #2 breaches
certain terms of the designations of the preferred stock. The holders of Holdco #2 preferred stock
will not have the right to appoint or vote for any of our directors. Each of the Series A and Series B
preferred stock is expected to pay an annual cash dividend of approximately 10% and will be
mandatorily redeemable upon the six year anniversary of the date of issuance. Holdco #2 will be
required to make an offer to purchase the Series A and Series B redeemable preferred stock at
101% of each series liquidation preference in the event of a change of control. The terms of the
preferred stock are subject to ongoing negotiation. We cannot be certain the terms described in this
information statement will not change or be supplemented. See “Description of Subsidiary
Preferred Stock™ and “— Corporate Information and Structure” below.

Prior to the completion of the distribution, Clear Channel Communications will contribute to our
capital $383.0 million of

11
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Tax consequences to stockholders

Anti-takeover effects

the intercompany indebtedness owed by us. Prior to or concurrently with the completion of the
distribution, we intend to use all proceeds from borrowings from our term loan under our senior
secured credit facility and the $20 million of proceeds from the issuance of the Series A
redeemable preferred stock of Holdco #2 to repay the remaining portion of the intercompany note.

The spin-off is conditioned upon Clear Channel Communications’ receipt of a private letter ruling
from the IRS and the opinion of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, in each case to the
effect that the spin-off will qualify as a tax-free distribution for U.S. federal income tax purposes
under Sections 355 and 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code. Assuming the spin-off so qualifies, for

U.S. federal income tax purposes, no gain or loss will be recognized by, and no amount will be
included in the income of, a holder of Clear Channel Communications common stock upon the
receipt of shares of our common stock pursuant to the spin-off. A holder of Clear Channel
Communications common stock will generally recognize gain or loss with respect to cash received
in lieu of a fractional share of our common stock. See “The Distribution — Material U.S. Federal
Income Tax Consequences of the Distribution” for a more detailed description of the U.S. federal
income tax consequences of the spin-off.

Some provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, our amended and
restated bylaws, our rights plan and Delaware law may have the effect of making more difficult an
acquisition of control of us in a transaction not approved by our board of directors. We also will
indemnify Clear Channel Communications under the tax matters agreement we have entered into
in connection with the distribution for the tax, if any, resulting from any acquisition or issuance of
our stock that triggers the application of Section 355(e) of the Code, and this potential liability
could discourage, delay or prevent a change of control. See “Our Relationship with Clear Channel
Communications After the Distribution” and “Description of Our Capital Stock.”

Our Relationship with Clear Channel Communications

Since August 2000, our predecessor companies have been wholly-owned by Clear Channel Communications, Inc. In connection with
the distribution, we and Clear Channel Communications will be parties to a number of agreements that will govern our spin-off from
Clear Channel Communications and our future relationship. These agreements will be entered into with Clear Channel Communications
in the context of our relationship as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Clear Channel Communications. Accordingly, some of the terms and
provisions of these agreements may be considered more or less favorable to us than terms and provisions we could have obtained in arm’s
length negotiations with unaffiliated third parties.

In anticipation of the spin-off, we believe we have developed and implemented systems and infrastructure to support our operation as
a separate publicly-traded company. However, these newly developed systems and infrastructure may be inadequate and we may be
required to develop or otherwise acquire other systems and infrastructure, which could reduce our profitability. In the past, Clear Channel

12
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Communications has generally provided capital for our general corporate purposes and has at times guaranteed some of our contractual
obligations under contracts with some clients. We have also historically used cash from Clear Channel Communications to fund our
operations. After the distribution, Clear Channel Communications will not provide funds to finance our operations or guarantee our
contractual obligations. After the spin-off, we will initially have a nine member Board of Directors, and three of our directors will serve as
directors of Clear Channel Communications, and our chairman will continue to serve as chief financial officer of Clear Channel
Communications.

For a description of certain provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation concerning the allocation of business
opportunities that may be suitable for both us and Clear Channel Communications, see “Description of Our Capital Stock.” This policy is
not necessarily favorable to us.

For a further discussion of the spin-off and our relationship with Clear Channel Communications and the related risks, see “Our
Relationship with Clear Channel Communications After the Distribution” and “Risk Factors — Risk Factors Relating to Our Relationship
with Clear Channel Communications.”

Corporate Information and Structure

We were formed through acquisitions of various entertainment businesses and assets by our predecessors, and a number of our
businesses have been operating in the live entertainment industry for more than 30 years. On August 1, 2000, Clear Channel
Communications acquired our live entertainment business, which was initially formed in 1997. We were incorporated in our current form
as a Delaware corporation on August 2, 2005 to own substantially all of the entertainment business of Clear Channel Communications,
Inc. Our principal executive offices are located at 9348 Civic Center Drive, Beverly Hills, California 90210, and our telephone number is
(310) 867-7000. Our international executive offices are located at 220 West 42nd Street, New York, New York 10036, and our telephone
number at that location is (917) 421-4000. We maintain a Web site at www. .com. Our Web site and the information
contained on that site, or connected to that site, are not incorporated into this information statement. Various trademarks, copyrights,
service marks, and other types of marks are used throughout this information statement, including the trademarks Grave Digger™ and
Blue Thunder™, which are owned by us.
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The following diagram depicts our corporate structure after giving effect to the distribution and the other concurrent transactions
described in this information statement:

Public Stockholders

CCE Spinco,
Ine.
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(1) Holdco #1 owns certain theatrical property located in New York City, which represents less than 5% of the gross value of our assets.

(2) Holdco #1 will own 100% of Holdco #2’s common stock, will control 75% of the voting power of all outstanding shares of
Holdco #2 and, absent a breach by Holdco #2 of certain terms of the designations of the Holdco #2 preferred stock, will have the
ability to elect three out of four members of Holdco #2’s board of directors.

(3) The holders of Series A mandatorily redeemable preferred stock will have the right to appoint one out of four members to
Holdco #2’s board of directors and to otherwise control 25% of the voting power of all outstanding shares of Holdco #2.

(4) The Series B mandatorily redeemable preferred stock will have no voting rights other than the right to vote as a class with the
Series A redeemable preferred stock to elect one additional member to the board of directors of Holdco #2 in the event Holdco #2
breaches certain terms of the designations of the preferred stock.

(5) Holdco #3, together with its subsidiaries, represent more than 95% of the gross value of our assets.
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Summary Historical and Pro Forma Financial and Other Data

The table below presents our summary historical financial information prepared on a combined basis and has been derived from our
audited combined financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2002, December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2004, and our
unaudited combined interim financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 and September 30, 2005, each of which is
included elsewhere in this information statement. The unaudited combined interim financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the audited combined financial statements and, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments, consisting only of
normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of such data. The results for the nine months ended September 30, 2005
are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year.

The following table also presents our summary unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information, which has been
derived from our unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information included elsewhere in this information statement.

Our unaudited pro forma combined financial statements give pro forma effect to:

* the distribution of our common stock to the stockholders of Clear Channel Communications;

» the incurrence of debt and related debt issuance costs, comprised of a $325.0 million senior secured term loan under the
$575.0 million senior secured credit facility to be entered into prior to or concurrently with the completion of the distribution;

« the issuance of mandatorily redeemable Series A preferred stock by Holdco #2 having a liquidation preference of $20 million to a
third-party investor for $20 million;

» the issuance to Clear Channel Communications of mandatorily redeemable Series B preferred stock by Holdco #2 having a liquidation
preference of $20 million in connection with the Holdco #3 Exchange, for which we will not receive any cash;

« the contribution by Clear Channel Communications to our capital of $508.0 million of the intercompany debt owed to Clear Channel
Communications;

* the retention of $125.0 million of the proceeds from borrowings under the term loan portion of our senior secured credit facility to be
used for general corporate purposes, including working capital, potential acquisitions and stock repurchases; and

» the use of $200.0 million from borrowings under the term loan portion of our senior secured credit facility and $20 million of
proceeds from the sale of the Series A preferred stock offering to repay the remaining portion of intercompany debt owed to Clear
Channel Communications.

Each of the Series A and Series B preferred stock is expected to pay an annual cash dividend of approximately 10% and will be
mandatory redeemable upon the six year anniversary of the date of issuance.

The unaudited pro forma financial data presented as of the year ended December 31, 2004 and for the nine months ended
September 30, 2005 are derived from our unaudited pro forma combined financial statements. The pro forma balance sheet assumes the
items listed above occurred as of September 30, 2005. The unaudited pro forma income statement data for the year ended December 31,
2004, and the nine months ended September 30, 2005, assumes the items listed above occurred as of January 1, 2004. A more complete
explanation can be found in our unaudited pro forma combined financial statements included elsewhere in this information statement.

You should read the summary and unaudited pro forma combined financial information in conjunction with our audited and unaudited
combined financial statements and the notes to the audited and unaudited combined financial statements. You should also read the
sections “Selected Combined Financial Data,” “Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Data” and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” The summary historical and
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unaudited pro forma combined financial information is qualified by reference to these sections, the audited and unaudited combined
financial statements and the notes to the audited and unaudited combined financial statements that are included elsewhere in this
information statement.

The historical financial and other data have been prepared on a combined basis from Clear Channel Communications’ consolidated
financial statements using the historical results of operations and bases of the assets and liabilities of Clear Channel Communications
businesses and give effect to allocations of expenses from Clear Channel Communications. The unaudited pro forma combined financial
information is not indicative of our future performance or what our results of operations and financial position would have been if we had
operated as a separate company during the periods presented or if the transactions reflected therein had actually occurred as of January 1,
2004 or September 30, 2005, as the case may be. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of income does not reflect the
complete impact of one-time and ongoing incremental costs required to operate as a separate company. Clear Channel Communications
allocated to us $8.5 million in 2002, $9.2 million in 2003 and $9.8 million in 2004 of expenses incurred by it for providing us accounting,
treasury, tax, legal, public affairs, executive oversight, human resources and other services. Through September 30, 2005, Clear Channel
Communications allocated to us $6.9 million of expenses. By the end of 2005, we expect to have assumed responsibility for substantially
all of these services and their related expenses. We currently believe the estimate for the costs of these services could be approximately
$11.0 million to $13.0 million in 2006, our first full year as a separate publicly-traded company. However, the actual total costs of these
services associated with our transition to, and operation as, a separate publicly-traded company could be significantly greater than our
estimates.
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(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Results of Operations Data:
Revenue
Operating Expenses:
Divisional operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Loss (gain) on sale of operating
assets
Corporate expenses
Operating income
Interest expense
Intercompany interest expense
Equity in earnings (loss) of
nonconsolidated affiliates
Other income (expense) — net

Income before income taxes and

accounting principle
Income tax benefit (expense):

Current

Deferred

change in accounting principle

Cumulative effect of a change in

$198,640(1)
Net income (loss)

before cumulative effect of a

common share(2)

Segment Data:
Revenue:
Global Music
Global Theater
Other

Total revenue
Operating income (loss):

Global Music

Global Theater

Other

Corporate

Total operating income

The following table presents a non-GAAP financial measure, OIBDAN, which we use to evaluate segment and combined performance
of our business. OIBDAN is not calculated or presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP. In
Note 3 and “— Non-GAAP Financial Measure” below, we explain OIBDAN and reconcile it to operating income (loss), its most directly
comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP.

cumulative effect of a change in

Income before cumulative effect of a

accounting principle, net of tax of

Basic and diluted pro forma income

change in accounting principle per

Year Ended December 31, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2002 2003 2004 Pro Forma 2004 2005 Pro Forma
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
$ 2,473319 $2,707,902 $ 2,806,128 $ 2,806,128 $ 2,261,879 $ 2,184,588 $§ 2,184,588
2,302,707 2,506,635 2,645,293 2,645,293 2,107,785 2,050,631 2,050,631
64,836 63,436 64,095 64,095 47,499 46,392 46,392
(15,241) (978) 6,371 6,371 7,400 (426) (426)
26,101 30,820 31,386 31,386 19,977 38,391 38,391
94,916 107,989 58,983 58,983 79,218 49,600 49,600
3,998 2,788 3,119 28,374 2,198 2,671 21,612
58,608 41,415 42,355 — 32,550 35,719 —
(212) 1,357 2,906 2,906 3,231 157 157
332 3,224 (1,690) (1,690) (1,437) (4,157) (4,157)
32,430 68,367 14,725 31,825 46,264 7,210 23,988
(40,102) 68,272 55,946 49,106 42,633 11,975 5,264
11,103 (79,607) (54,411) (54,411) (37,808) (14,859) (14,859)
3,431 57,032 16,260 $ 26,520 51,089 4326 $ 14,393
(3,932,007) — — — —
$ (3,928,576) § 57,032 § 16,260 $ 51,089 § 4,326
$ 0.05 § 084 § 024 § 039 § 076 $ 0.06 § 0.21
$ 1,821,215 $ 2,069,857 $ 2,201,007 $ 1,793,072 $ 1,708,369
296,460 318,219 313,974 222,871 233,265
355,644 319,826 291,147 245,936 242,954
$ 2473319 $2,707,902 $ 2,806,128 $ 2,261,879 $ 2,184,588
$ 97,731 $§ 111,326 $ 85457 $ 94269 $ 85,604
30,352 22,714 20,996 12,973 2,742
(1,342) 10,156 (11,147) (4,281) 2,923
(31,825) (36,207) (36,323) (23,743) (41,669)
$ 94916 § 107,989 $ 58,983 $ 79,218 § 49,600
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Nine Months Ended

Year Ended December 31, September 30,
(In thousands) 2002 2003 2004 2004 2005
(unaudited)

Cash Flow Data:

Cash flows provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 142,237 $ 138,713 $ 119,898 $ 88,557 $ 2,203
Investing activities $  (31,329) $ (51,960 $  (84,076) $  (64,662) $ (72,603)
Financing activities $  (112,281) $ (56,894) $ 23,254 $ 44,331 $ 156,618

Capital expenditures $ 68,185 $ 69,936 $ 73435 $ 56,516 $ 71,997

Other Data:

OIBDAN:(3)

Global Music $ 127,881 $ 145,725 $ 119,062 $ 118412 $ 112,935
Global Theater 41,489 35,899 35,647 23,929 14,133
Other 1,242 19,643 6,126 11,753 6,889
Corporate (24,700) (29,518) (30,302) (19,216) (36,656)
Total OIBDAN(3) $ 145912 $ 171,749 $ 130,533 $ 134,878 $ 97301
As of December 31, As of September 30, 2005
2002 2003 2004 Historical Pro Forma
(in thousands)
(unaudited)

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 104,897 $ 116,360 $ 179,137 $ 273474 $ 398,474

Current assets 396,687 423,617 472,557 782,320 907,320

Property, plant and equipment —

net 745,239 782,154 793,316 815,270 815,270

Total assets 1,518,644 1,495,715 1,478,706 1,892,233 2,019,733

Current liabilities 530,314 547,751 579,345 799,778 803,028

Long-term debt, including current

maturities 622,831 617,838 650,675 768,079 367,584

Total liabilities 1,287,730 1,307,432 1,321,730 1,658,217 1,297,722

Owner’s equity 230,914 188,283 156,976 234,016 722,011

Total liabilities and owner’s equity 1,518,644 1,495,715 1,478,706 1,892,233 2,019,733

(1) Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for the year ended December 31, 2002, related to impairment of goodwill
recognized in accordance with the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets.”

(2) Basic and diluted income before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle per share is calculated by dividing income
before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. The
historic and pro forma basic and diluted income per share before cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles is based on
67,565,491 shares outstanding (based upon the number of outstanding shares of Clear Channel Communications’ common stock at
November 4, 2005).

(3) We evaluate segment and combined performance based on several factors, one of the primary measures of which is operating income

(loss) before depreciation, amortization, loss (gain) on sale of operating assets and non-cash compensation expense, which we refer to
as OIBDAN. See “— Non-GAAP Financial Measure” below, “Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Data” and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — OIBDAN” elsewhere herein.

Non-GAAP Financial Measure

In addition to operating income, we evaluate segment and combined performance based on other factors, one primary measure of
which is operating income (loss) before depreciation, amortization, loss
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(gain) on sale of operating assets and non-cash compensation expense, which we refer to as OIBDAN. We use OIBDAN as a measure of
the operational strengths and performance of our business and not as a measure of liquidity. However, a limitation of the use of OIBDAN
as a performance measure is that it does not reflect the periodic costs of certain capitalized tangible and intangible assets used in
generating revenues in our business. Accordingly, OIBDAN should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for, operating
income (loss), net income (loss) and other measures of financial performance reported in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Furthermore, this
measure may vary among other companies; thus, OIBDAN as presented below may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of
other companies.

We believe OIBDAN is useful to investors and other external users of our financial statements in evaluating our operating
performance because it helps investors more meaningfully evaluate and compare the results of our operations from period to period and
with those of other companies in the entertainment industry (to the extent the same components of OIBDAN are used), in each case
without regard to items such as non-cash depreciation and amortization and non-cash compensation expense, which can vary depending
upon the accounting method used and the book value of assets.

Our management uses OIBDAN (i) as a measure for planning and forecasting overall and individual expectations and for evaluating
actual results against such expectations, (ii) as a basis for incentive bonuses paid to certain employees and (iii) in presentations to our
board of directors to enable them to have the same consistent measurement basis of operating performance used by management.

The following table presents a reconciliation of OIBDAN to operating income, which is a GAAP measure of our operating results:

Nine Months Ended
Year Ended December 31, September 30,
2002 2003 2004 2004 2005
(In thousands)
Actual Actual
(unaudited)
Reconciliation of OIBDAN
to Operating Income:

OIBDAN $ 145912 $ 171,749 $ 130,533 $ 134,878 $ 97,301

Depreciation and amortization 64,836 63,436 64,095 47,499 46,392

Loss (gain) on sale of operating assets (15,241) (978) 6,371 7,400 (426)

Non-cash compensation expense* 1,401 1,302 1,084 761 1,735
Operating income $ 94916 $ 107,989 $ 58983 $ 79,218 $ 49,600

* Non-cash compensation expense, which is based on an allocation from Clear Channel Communications and is related to issuance of
Clear Channel Communications stock awards, is included in corporate expenses in our statement of operations.
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RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider each of the following risks and all of the other information set forth in this information statement. The
following risks relate principally to our leverage, our business, our relationship with Clear Channel Communications and our being a
separate publicly-traded company, as well as risks related to the nature of the spin-off transaction itself. The risks and uncertainties
described below are not the only ones facing our company. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we
currently believe to be immaterial may also adversely affect our business. If any of the following risks and uncertainties develop into actual
events, this could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. In that case, the trading price
of our common stock could decline.

Risks Associated with Our Leverage

Following the spin-off, we will have substantial debt and lease obligations that could restrict our operations and impair our
financial condition.

Historically, we have not had significant indebtedness for borrowed money, other than our intercompany promissory note to Clear
Channel Communications. Following the spin-off, we will have substantial indebtedness and lease obligations. Giving effect to borrowings
and advances anticipated to be made under the senior secured credit facility prior to or concurrently with the completion of the spin-off, our
total indebtedness for borrowed money will be approximately $367.6 million, and such prospective indebtedness is currently rated B1 by
Moody’s Investors Services, Inc. and B+ by Standards & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., which
is currently below the ratings given to Clear Channel Communications’ senior debt by such ratings agencies. We expect that available
borrowing capacity under the senior secured credit facility initially will be approximately $575.0 million, consisting of our $325.0 million
term loan facility, all of which will be borrowed at closing, and our $250.0 million revolving credit facility, of which $200.0 million will be
available for working capital and general corporate purposes immediately following its closing, with $200.0 million of such amount being
available for letters of credit; outstanding letters of credit, of which approximately $50.0 million will be initially outstanding, will reduce
borrowing availability under the revolving credit facility, and $100.0 million will be available for borrowings in foreign currencies. We
may also incur additional substantial indebtedness in the future.

Our substantial indebtedness could have adverse consequences, including:

* increasing our vulnerability to adverse economic, regulatory and industry conditions;

* limiting our ability to compete and our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry;
* limiting our ability to borrow additional funds; and

* requiring us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our debt, thereby reducing funds
available for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and other purposes.

In addition, as of September 30, 2005, we had approximately $760.5 million in operating lease agreements, of which approximately
$55.3 million is due in 2006 and $50.7 million is due in 2007.

If our cash flow and capital resources are insufficient to service our debt or lease obligations, we may be forced to sell assets, seek
additional equity or debt capital or restructure our debt. However, these measures might be unsuccessful or inadequate in permitting us to
meet scheduled debt or lease service obligations. We may be unable to restructure or refinance our obligations and obtain additional equity
financing or sell assets on satisfactory terms or at all. As a result, the inability to meet our debt or lease obligations could cause us to default
on those obligations. If we fail to meet any minimum financial requirements contained in instruments governing our debt, we would be in
default under such instruments,
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which, in turn, could result in defaults under other debt instruments. Any such defaults could materially impair our financial condition and
liquidity. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital
Resources” for a discussion of our obligations following the spin-off.

To service our debt, lease and preferred stock obligations and to fund potential capital expenditures, we will require a significant
amount of cash to meet our needs, which depends on many factors beyond our control.

Our ability to service our debt, lease and preferred stock obligations and to fund potential capital expenditures for venue construction,
expansion or renovation will require a significant amount of cash, which depends on many factors beyond our control. Our ability to make
payments on and to refinance our debt, including our senior secured credit facility, will also depend on our ability to generate cash in the
future. This, to an extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our
control.

We cannot assure you that our business will generate sufficient cash flow or that future borrowings will be available to us in an amount
sufficient to enable us to pay our debt, or to fund our other liquidity needs. As of December 31, 2004, on a pro forma basis, approximately
$4.5 million of total indebtedness (excluding interest) is due in 2005, $5.8 million is due in 2006 and 2007, $5.9 million is due in 2008 and
2009, and $330.6 million is due thereafter. See the pro forma table in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Contractual Obligations and Commitments — Firm Commitments.” If our future cash flow from operations and
other capital resources are insufficient to pay our obligations as they mature or to fund our liquidity needs, we may be forced to reduce or
delay our business activities and capital expenditures, sell assets, obtain additional equity capital or restructure or refinance all or a portion
of our debt, including the notes, on or before maturity. We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance any of our debt on a timely
basis or on satisfactory terms, if at all. In addition, the terms of our existing debt, including our senior secured credit facility, and other
future debt may limit our ability to pursue any of these alternatives. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

Our senior secured credit facility may restrict our ability to finance operations and capital needs and our operating flexibility.

We anticipate that our senior secured credit facility may include restrictive covenants that, among other things, restrict our ability to:

* incur additional debt;

* pay dividends and make distributions;

» make certain investments;

* repurchase our stock and prepay certain indebtedness;
* create liens;

* enter into transactions with affiliates;

* modify the nature of our business;

* enter into sale-leaseback transactions;

« transfer and sell material assets; and

* merge or consolidate.

In addition, we anticipate that the senior secured credit facility will include additional restrictions, including requirements to maintain
certain financial ratios. Our failure to comply with the terms and covenants in our indebtedness could lead to a default under the terms of
those documents, which would
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entitle the lenders to accelerate the indebtedness and declare all amounts owed due and payable. The agreements governing our senior
secured credit facility are subject to ongoing negotiations. We cannot be certain the terms described herein will not change or be
supplemented. See “Description of Indebtedness.”

We are a holding company and depend on our subsidiaries for repayment of our debt, which will be structurally subordinated to
the liabilities of our subsidiaries.

We conduct almost all of our business through subsidiaries of Holdco #3. As a result, our debt, the majority of which will be owed by
Holdco #3, will be effectively subordinated to all existing and future liabilities (including trade payables) of such subsidiaries. As of
September 30, 2005, we had current liabilities of $799.8 million and long-term liabilities, net of any debt to Clear Channel
Communications, of $132.9 million. All of these liabilities are held by subsidiaries of Holdco #3 except for current liabilities of
$5.7 million. Future acquisitions may be made through present or future subsidiaries; therefore, our cash flow from operations and
consequent ability to service our debt, is, in part, dependent upon the earnings of our subsidiaries and the distribution (through dividends or
otherwise) of those earnings to Holdco #3, or upon loans, advances or other payments of funds by those subsidiaries to Holdco #3.
Moreover, the payment of dividends and the making of loans or advances to us by our subsidiaries are subject to various state laws and
business considerations of the subsidiaries.

Our subsidiaries will have no obligation, contingent or otherwise, to make any funds available to us or Holdco #3 for payment of the
principal of or interest on our debt. To the extent our assets are or will be held by our subsidiaries, the claims of holders of our debt will, in
effect, be subordinated to the claims of creditors, including trade creditors, of such subsidiaries. As of September 30, 2005, substantially all
of our assets on a book value basis were held by operating subsidiaries and, for fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 and for the nine
months ended September 30, 2005, substantially all of our revenues came from the operations of our subsidiaries. We anticipate that under
the terms of instruments governing senior secured credit facility of Holdco #3, certain of its subsidiaries will be restricted in their ability to
incur debt in the future. See “Description of Indebtedness.”

Risk Factors Relating to Our Business

Our live entertainment business is highly sensitive to public tastes and dependent on our ability to secure popular artists and other
live entertainment events, and we may be unable to anticipate changes in consumer preferences, which may result in decreased
demand for our services.

Our ability to generate revenues from our entertainment operations is highly sensitive to rapidly changing public tastes and dependent
on the availability of popular artists and events. Our success depends in part on our ability to anticipate the tastes of consumers and to offer
events that appeal to them. Since we rely on unrelated parties to create and perform live entertainment content, any unwillingness to tour or
lack of availability of popular artists, touring theatrical performances, specialized motor sports talent and other performers could limit our
ability to generate revenues. In addition, we typically book our live music tours one to four months in advance of the beginning of the tour
and often agree to pay an artist a fixed guaranteed amount prior to our receiving any operating income. Therefore, if the public is not
receptive to the tour or we or a performer cancel the tour, we may incur a loss for the tour depending on the amount of the fixed guarantee
or incurred costs relative to any revenues earned, as well as foregone revenue we could have earned at booked venues. Furthermore,
consumer preferences change from time to time, and our failure to anticipate, identify or react to these changes could result in reduced
demand for our services, which would adversely affect our operating results and profitability.

We have incurred net losses and may experience future net losses; therefore, we may not sustain our profitability.

Our operating results have been adversely affected by, among other things, a global economic slowdown, increased cost of entertainers
and a decline in attendance at live entertainment events. We
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generated net income of approximately $4.3 million and $51.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, and net income of approximately $16.3 million and $57.0 million for the years ended 2004 and 2003, respectively, and
incurred a net loss of approximately $3.9 billion for the year ended 2002, primarily as a result of a $3.9 billion write-off of goodwill. Our
net income would have been $29.5 million for 2004 and $16.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2005, on a pro forma basis
after giving effect to the distribution and the concurrent transactions described in this information statement. We may face reduced demand
for our live entertainment events and other factors that could adversely affect our results of operations in the future. We cannot predict
whether we will achieve profitability in future periods.

In the 2002 to 2004 period, our global music revenues increased from $1.8 billion to $2.2 billion although our operating income
decreased from $97.7 million to $85.5 million. Our growth in revenues in global music during this period resulted primarily from increased
ticket prices and acquisitions. During the same period, our global theater revenues increased from $296.5 million to $314.0 million while
our operating income decreased from $30.4 million to $21.0 million. Our overall operating income decreased 45% from 2003 to 2004 due
primarily to a decline in attendance and the number of our events, a loss on sale of operating assets in 2004, as well as other economic and
geopolitical factors. In 2005, we instituted a ticket price and service charge reduction program. For the nine months ended September 30,
2005 and 2004, our global music revenues were $1.7 billion and $1.8 billion, respectively, and our operating income was $85.6 million and
$94.3 million, respectively. For the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and 2004, our global theater revenues were $233.3 million and
$222.9 million, respectively, and our operating income was $2.7 million and $13.0 million, respectively.

We have no operating history as a separate publicly-traded company and our historical and pro forma combined financial
information are not necessarily representative of the results we would have achieved as a separate publicly-traded company and
may not be a reliable indicator of our future results.

We are being spun-off from Clear Channel Communications, our parent company, and, therefore, we have no operating history as a
separate publicly-traded company. The historical and pro forma combined financial information included in this information statement does
not reflect the financial condition, results of operations or cash flows we would have achieved as a separate publicly-traded company during
the periods presented or those we will achieve in the future. This is primarily a result of the following factors:

* Our historical and pro forma combined financial results reflect allocations of corporate expenses from Clear Channel Communications.
Those allocations are less than the comparable expenses we would have incurred had we operated as a separate publicly-traded
company.

* Our working capital requirements and capital for our general corporate purposes, including acquisitions and capital expenditures, have
historically been satisfied as part of the corporate-wide cash management policies of Clear Channel Communications. Subsequent to
this distribution, Clear Channel Communications will not be providing us with funds to finance our working capital or other cash
requirements. Without the opportunity to obtain financing from Clear Channel Communications, we may need to obtain additional
financing from banks, or through public offerings or private placements of debt or equity securities, strategic relationships or other
arrangements. We initially expect to have a credit rating that is lower than Clear Channel Communications’ credit rating and, as a
result, will incur debt on terms and at interest rates that will not be as favorable as those generally enjoyed by Clear Channel
Communications.

* Currently, our business is integrated with the other businesses of Clear Channel Communications. We share economies of scope and
scale in costs, employees, vendor relationships and customer relationships. While we expect to enter into short-term transition
agreements that will govern certain commercial and other relationships with Clear Channel Communications after the spin-off, those
temporary arrangements may not capture the benefits our businesses have enjoyed as a result of common ownership prior to the spin-
off. The loss of these benefits as a consequence of the spin-
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off could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition following the spin-off.

» Significant changes may occur in our cost structure, management, financing and business operations as a result of our operating as a
company separate from Clear Channel Communications. These changes will result in increased costs associated with reduced
economies of scale, stand-alone costs for services currently provided by Clear Channel Communications, the need for additional
personnel to perform services currently provided by Clear Channel Communications and the legal, accounting, compliance and other
costs associated with being a public company with equity securities listed on a national stock exchange. We will temporarily continue
to use certain services of Clear Channel Communications under the transition services agreements and we may not be able to
adequately replace the services that Clear Channel Communications provides us in a timely manner or on comparable terms.

Prior to the spin-off, we will not have been an independent company and we may be unable to make, on a timely or cost-effective
basis, the changes necessary to operate as an independent company.

Prior to the spin-off, our business was operated by Clear Channel Communications as part of its broader corporate organization, rather
than as an independent company. Clear Channel Communications’ senior management oversaw the strategic direction of our businesses
and Clear Channel Communications performed various corporate functions for us, including, but not limited to:

« selected human resources related functions;

* tax administration;

* selected legal functions (including compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002), as well as external reporting;
« treasury administration, investor relations, internal audit and insurance functions; and

* selected information technology and telecommunications services.

Following the spin-off, neither Clear Channel Communications nor any of its affiliates will have any obligation to provide these
functions to us other than those services that will be provided by Clear Channel Communications pursuant to the transition services
agreement between us and Clear Channel Communications. See “Our Relationship with Clear Channel Communications After the
Distribution — Transition Services Agreement.” If, once our transition services agreement terminates, we do not have in place our own
systems and business functions, we do not have agreements with other providers of these services or we are not able to make these changes
cost effectively, we may not be able to operate our business effectively and our losses may increase. If Clear Channel Communications does
not continue to perform effectively the services that are required under the transition services agreement, we may not be able to operate our
business effectively after the spin-off.

Our separation from Clear Channel Communications could also adversely affect our ability to attract and retain dedicated employees.
We may be required to accept less favorable terms in contracts with entertainers, sponsors, professional athletes, performers and
independent sales intermediaries, increase our fees, change long-term selling and marketing agreements and take other action to maintain
our relationship with our sponsors, professional athletes, performers, independent sales intermediaries, entertainers, suppliers, customers
and dedicated sales specialists, all of which could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our operations are seasonal and our results of operations vary from quarter to quarter, so our financial performance in certain
financial quarters may not be indicative of or comparable to our financial performance in subsequent financial quarters.

We believe our financial results and cash needs will vary greatly from quarter to quarter depending on, among other things, the timing
of tours and theatrical productions, tour cancellations, capital
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expenditures, seasonal and other fluctuations in our operating results, the timing of guaranteed payments and receipt of ticket sales,
financing activities, acquisitions and investments and receivables management. Because our results may vary significantly from quarter to
quarter, our financial results for one quarter cannot necessarily be compared to another quarter and may not be indicative of our future
financial performance in subsequent quarters. Typically, our global music segment experiences its lowest financial performance in the first
and fourth quarters of the calendar year as our outdoor venues are primarily used during May through September. Our global theater
segment experiences its strongest demand in the first, second and fourth quarters of the calendar year as the theatrical touring season runs
during September through April.

The following table sets forth our operating income (loss) for the last seven fiscal quarters (in thousands):

Operating

Fiscal Quarter Income
March 31, 2004 $ 293
June 30, 2004 $ 8,056
September 30, 2004 $ 70,869
December 31, 2004 $ (20,235)
March 31, 2005 $ (27,526)
June 30, 2005 $ 15,258
September 30, 2005 $ 61,868

Our senior management team is new in their current positions, and there can be no assurance that it will be able to operate our
business effectively.

On August 18, 2005, Michael Rapino, who previously served as chief executive officer and president of Clear Channel Entertainment
— Global Music, was appointed our new chief executive officer, and most members of our management team are new to their positions.
Our success depends, in part, upon the contributions of our senior management and key employees, in particular, those that have long-
standing relationships with popular music performers, agents and other influential persons in the entertainment industry, which we depend
on to obtain bookings of popular performers and arrange tours. Therefore, losing the services of one or more members of our senior
management or our key employees could adversely affect our business and results of operations. In late 2004 and 2005, we reorganized our
management, and, as a result, the former chief executive officer, chief financial officer, general counsel and two co-heads of music are no
longer with the company or have different responsibilities. If our new management team is not able to develop and implement an effective
business strategy to optimize and grow our current business, our business and results of operations could be adversely affected.

We may be adversely affected by a general deterioration in economic conditions, which could affect consumer and corporate
spending and, therefore, significantly adversely impact our operating results.

A decline in attendance at live entertainment events has had an adverse effect on our revenues and operating income. In addition, during
the most recent economic slowdown in the United States, many consumers reduced their discretionary spending and advertisers reduced
their advertising expenditures. The impact of slowdowns on our business is difficult to predict, but they may result in reductions in ticket
sales, sponsorship opportunities and our ability to generate revenues. The risks associated with our businesses become more acute in
periods of a slowing economy or recession, which may be accompanied by a decrease in attendance at live entertainment events.

Our business depends on discretionary consumer and corporate spending. Many factors related to corporate spending and discretionary
consumer spending, including economic conditions affecting disposable consumer income such as employment, fuel prices, interest and tax
rates and inflation can significantly impact our operating results. Business conditions, as well as various industry conditions, including
corporate marketing and promotional spending and interest levels, can also significantly impact
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our operating results. These factors can affect attendance at our events, premium seats, sponsorship, advertising and hospitality spending,
concession and souvenir sales, as well as the financial results of sponsors of our venues, events and the industry. Negative factors such as
challenging economic conditions, public concerns over additional terrorism and security incidents, particularly when combined, can impact
corporate and consumer spending, and one negative factor can impact our results more than another. There can be no assurance that
consumer and corporate spending will not be adversely impacted by economic conditions, thereby possibly impacting our operating results
and growth.

Doing business in foreign countries creates certain risks not found in doing business in the United States.

Doing business in foreign countries involves certain risks that may not exist when doing business in the United States. For the nine
months ended September 30, 2005, and the year ended December 31, 2004, our international operations accounted for approximately 31%
and 28%, respectively, of our revenues during those periods. The risks involved in foreign operations that could result in losses against
which we are not insured include:

* exposure to local economic conditions;

* potential adverse changes in the diplomatic relations of foreign countries with the United States;
* hostility from local populations;

* restrictions on the withdrawal of foreign investment and earnings;

* government policies against businesses owned by foreigners;

* investment restrictions or requirements;

* expropriations of property;

* potential instability of foreign governments;

» risks of insurrections;

« risks of renegotiation or modification of existing agreements with governmental authorities;
* diminished ability to legally enforce our contractual rights in foreign countries;

« foreign exchange restrictions;

» withholding and other taxes on remittances and other payments by subsidiaries; and

* changes in foreign taxation structures.

In addition, we may incur substantial tax liabilities if we repatriate any of the cash generated by our international operations back to the
United States due to our current inability to recognize any foreign tax credits that would be associated with such repatriation. We are not
currently in a position to recognize any tax assets in the United States that are the result of payments of income or withholding taxes in
foreign jurisdictions.

Exchange rates may cause fluctuations in our results of operations that are not related to our operations.

Because we own assets overseas and derive revenues from our international operations, we may incur currency translation losses or
gains due to changes in the values of foreign currencies relative to the United States Dollar. We cannot predict the effect of exchange rate
fluctuations upon future operating results. For the nine months ended September 30, 2005, and the year ended December 31, 2004, our
international operations accounted for approximately 31% and 28%, respectively, of our revenues during those periods. Although we
cannot predict the future relationship between the United States Dollar and the currencies used by our international businesses, principally
the British Pound and the Euro, for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and
2004, we experienced foreign exchange rate net gains of $6.3 million, $7.6 million, $3.7 million, $0.3 million and

26




Table of Contents

$4.1 million, respectively, for those periods, which had a positive effect on our OIBDAN. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk — Foreign Currency Risk.”

We may be unsuccessful in our future acquisition endeavors, if any, which may have an adverse effect on our business. Our
compliance with antitrust, competition and other regulations may limit our operations and future acquisitions.

Our future growth rate depends in part on our selective acquisition of additional businesses. We may be unable to identify suitable
targets for acquisition or make acquisitions at favorable prices. If we identify a suitable acquisition candidate, our ability to successfully
implement the acquisition would depend on a variety of factors, including our ability to obtain financing on acceptable terms and requisite
government approvals.

Acquisitions involve risks, including those associated with integrating the operations, financial reporting, technologies and personnel of
acquired companies; managing geographically dispersed operations; the diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns;
the inherent risks in entering markets or lines of business in which we have either limited or no direct experience; unknown risks; and the
potential loss of key employees, customers and strategic partners of acquired companies. We may not successfully integrate any businesses
or technologies we may acquire in the future and may not achieve anticipated revenue and cost benefits. Acquisitions may be expensive,
time consuming and may strain our resources. Acquisitions may not be accretive to our earnings and may negatively impact our results of
operations as a result of, among other things, the incurrence of debt, one-time write-offs of goodwill and amortization expenses of other
intangible assets. In addition, future acquisitions that we may pursue could result in dilutive issuances of equity securities.

We are also subject to laws and regulations, including those relating to antitrust, that could significantly affect our ability to expand our
business through acquisitions. For example, the Federal Trade Commission and the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice
with respect to our domestic acquisitions, and the European Commission, the antitrust regulator of the European Union, with respect to our
European acquisitions, have the authority to challenge our acquisitions on antitrust grounds before or after the acquisitions are completed.
State agencies may also have standing to challenge these acquisitions under state or federal antitrust law. Comparable authorities in foreign
countries also have the ability to challenge our foreign acquisitions. Our failure to comply with all applicable laws and regulations could
result in, among other things, regulatory actions or legal proceedings against us, the imposition of fines, penalties or judgments against us
or significant limitations on our activities. In addition, the regulatory environment in which we operate is subject to change. New or revised
requirements imposed by governmental regulatory authorities could have adverse effects on us, including increased costs of compliance.
We also may be adversely affected by changes in the interpretation or enforcement of existing laws and regulations by these governmental
authorities.

In addition, restrictions contained in the tax matters agreement and the credit agreement for the senior secured credit facility may
restrict our ability to make acquisitions following the distribution.

There is the risk of personal injuries and accidents in connection with our live entertainment events, which could subject us to
personal injury or other claims and increase our expenses, as well as reduce attendance at our live entertainment events, causing a
decrease in our revenues.

There are inherent risks involved with producing live entertainment events. As a result, personal injuries and accidents have, and may,
occur from time to time, which could subject us to claims and liabilities for personal injuries. Incidents in connection with our live
entertainment events at any of our venues or venues that we rent could also result in claims, reducing operating income or reducing
attendance at our events, causing a decrease in our revenues. We are currently subject to wrongful death claims, as well as other litigation.
While we maintain insurance polices that provide coverage within limits that are sufficient, in management’s judgment, to protect us from
material financial loss for personal
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injuries sustained by persons at our venues or accidents in the ordinary course of business, there can be no assurance that such insurance
will be adequate at all times and in all circumstances.

Costs associated with, and our ability to, obtain adequate insurance could adversely affect our profitability and financial condition.

Heightened concerns and challenges regarding property, casualty, liability, business interruption and other insurance coverage have
resulted from the terrorist and related security incidents on and after September 11, 2001 in the United States, as well as the more recent
terrorist attacks in Madrid, London and Amman. We have been covered by Clear Channel Communications’ insurance policies. Following
the spin-off, we expect we may experience increased difficulty as an independent company obtaining high policy limits of coverage at
reasonable costs, including coverage for acts of terrorism. We have a material investment in property and equipment at each of our venues,
which are generally located near highly populated cities and which hold events typically attended by large numbers of fans. At
September 30, 2005, we had property and equipment with a net book value of approximately $815.3 million.

These operational, geographical and situational factors, among others, have resulted in, and may continue to result in, significant
increases in insurance premium costs and difficulties obtaining sufficiently high policy limits with deductibles that we believe to be
reasonable. We cannot assure you that future increases in insurance costs and difficulties obtaining high policy limits will not adversely
impact our profitability, thereby possibly impacting our operating results and growth.

We cannot guarantee that our insurance policy coverage limits, including insurance coverage for property, casualty, liability and
business interruption losses and acts of terrorism, would be adequate under the circumstances should one or multiple events occur at or
near any of our venues, or that our insurers would have adequate financial resources to sufficiently or fully pay our related claims or
damages. When we are independent from Clear Channel Communications, we cannot guarantee that adequate coverage limits will be
available, offered at reasonable costs, or offered by insurers with sufficient financial soundness. The occurrence of such an incident or
incidents affecting any one or more of our venues could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and future results of
operations if asset damage and/or company liability were to exceed insurance coverage limits or if an insurer were unable to sufficiently or
fully pay our related claims or damages.

Costs associated with capital improvements could adversely affect our profitability.

Growth or maintenance of our existing revenues depends in part on consistent investment in our venues. Therefore, we expect to
continue to make substantial capital improvements in our venues to meet long-term increasing demand, to increase entertainment value and
to increase revenues. We frequently have a number of significant capital projects under way. Numerous factors, many of which are beyond
our control, may influence the ultimate costs and timing of various capital improvements at our venues, including:

« availability of financing on favorable terms;

» unforeseen changes in design;

* increases in the cost of construction materials and labor;

« additional land acquisition costs;

« fluctuations in foreign exchange rates;

» litigation, accidents or natural disasters affecting the construction site;
* national or regional economic changes;

« environmental or hazardous conditions; and

* undetected soil or land conditions.
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The amount of capital expenditures can vary significantly from year to year. In addition, actual costs could vary materially from our
estimates if the factors listed above and our assumptions about the quality of materials or workmanship required or the cost of financing
such construction were to change. Construction is also subject to governmental permitting processes which, if changed, could materially
affect the ultimate cost.

We are subject to extensive governmental regulation, and our failure to comply with these regulations could adversely affect our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our live entertainment venue operations are subject to federal, state and local laws, both domestically and internationally, governing
matters such as construction, renovation and operation of our venues as well as:

* licensing and permitting;

* human health, safety and sanitation requirements;

» the service of food and alcoholic beverages;

* working conditions, labor, minimum wage and hour, citizenship and employment laws;
» compliance with The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990;

* sales and other taxes and withholding of taxes;

* historic landmark rules; and

* environmental protection.

While we believe that our venues are in material compliance with these laws, we cannot predict the extent to which any future laws or
regulations will impact our operations. The regulations relating to our food and support service in our venues are many and complex.
Although we generally contract with a third-party vendor for these services at our operated venues, we cannot assure you that we or our
third-party vendors are in full compliance with all applicable laws and regulations at all times or that we or our third-party vendors will be
able to comply with any future laws and regulations or that we will not be held liable for violations by third-party vendors. Furthermore,
additional or amended regulations in this area may significantly increase the cost of compliance.

We also serve alcoholic beverages at many of our venues during live entertainment events and must comply with applicable licensing
laws, as well as state and local service laws, commonly called dram shop statutes. Dram shop statutes generally prohibit serving alcoholic
beverages to certain persons such as an individual who is intoxicated or a minor. If we violate dram shop laws, we may be liable to third
parties for the acts of the patron. Although we generally hire outside vendors to provide these services at our operated venues and regularly
sponsor training programs designed to minimize the likelihood of such a situation, we cannot guarantee that intoxicated or minor patrons
will not be served or that liability for their acts will not be imposed on us. There can be no assurance that additional regulation in this area
would not limit our activities in the future or significantly increase the cost of regulatory compliance. We must also obtain and comply with
the terms of licenses in order to sell alcoholic beverages in the states in which we serve alcoholic beverages.

From time to time, state and federal governmental bodies have proposed legislation that could have an effect on our business. For
example, some legislatures have proposed laws in the past that would impose potential liability on us and other promoters and producers of
live entertainment events for entertainment taxes and for incidents that occur at our events, particularly relating to drugs and alcohol.

In addition, we and our venues are subject to extensive environmental laws and regulations relating to the use, storage, disposal,
emission and release of hazardous and non-hazardous substances, as well as zoning and noise level restrictions which may affect, among
other things, the hours of operations of our venues.
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We face intense competition in the live entertainment industry, and we may not be able to maintain or increase our current
revenues, which could adversely affect our financial performance.

Our business segments are in highly competitive industries, and we may not be able to maintain or increase our current live
entertainment revenues. We compete in the global music and global theater industries, and within such industries we compete with other
venues to book performers, and, in the markets in which we promote musical concerts, we face competition from other promoters, as well
as from certain performers who promote their own concerts. Our competitors also compete with us for key employees who have
relationships with popular music artists that have a history of being able to book such artists for concerts and tours. These competitors may
engage in more extensive development efforts, undertake more far-reaching marketing campaigns, adopt more aggressive pricing policies
and make more attractive offers to existing and potential artists. Our competitors may develop services, advertising options or
entertainment venues that are equal or superior to those we provide or that achieve greater market acceptance and brand recognition than
we achieve. It is possible that new competitors may emerge and rapidly acquire significant market share. Other variables that could
adversely affect our financial performance by, among other things, leading to decreases in overall revenues, the numbers of advertising
customers, event attendance, ticket prices or profit margins include:

» an increased level of competition for advertising dollars, which may lead to lower sponsorships as we attempt to retain advertisers or
which may cause us to lose advertisers to our competitors offering better programs that we are unable or unwilling to match;

» unfavorable fluctuations in operating costs, including increased guarantees to performers, which we may be unwilling or unable to pass
through to our customers;

* our competitors may offer more favorable terms than we do in order to obtain agreements for new venues;

« technological changes and innovations that we are unable to adopt or are late in adopting that offer more attractive entertainment
alternatives than what we currently offer, which may lead to reduction in attendance at live events, a loss of ticket sales or to lower
ticket prices;

* other entertainment options available to our audiences that we do not offer;
* unfavorable changes in labor conditions which may require us to spend more to retain and attract key employees; and

* unfavorable shifts in population and other demographics which may cause us to lose audiences as people migrate to markets where we
have a smaller presence, or which may cause sponsors to be unwilling to pay for sponsorship and advertising opportunities if the
general population shifts into a less desirable age or geographical demographic from an advertising perspective.

We believe that barriers to entry into the live entertainment promotion business are low and that certain local promoters are
increasingly expanding the geographic scope of their operations.

We depend upon unionized labor for the provision of some of our services and any work stoppages or labor disturbances could
disrupt our business.

The stagehands at some of our venues, and the actors, musicians and others involved in some of our business operations are subject to
collective bargaining agreements. Our union agreements typically have a term of three years and thus regularly expire and require
negotiation in the course of our business. Upon the expiration of any of our collective bargaining agreements, however, we may be unable
to negotiate new collective bargaining agreements on terms favorable to us, and our business operations may be interrupted as a result of
labor disputes or difficulties and delays in the process of renegotiating our collective bargaining agreements. A work stoppage at one or
more of our owned or operated venues or at our produced or presented events could have a material adverse effect on our business, results
of operations and financial condition. We cannot predict the effect that new collective bargaining agreements will have
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on our expenses or that caps on agents’ fees will have on the revenues and operating income of our sports representation business.

We are dependent upon our ability to lease, acquire and develop live entertainment venues, and if we are unable to do so on
acceptable terms, or at all, our results of operations could be adversely affected.

We require access to venues to generate revenues from live entertainment events. For these events, we use venues that we own, but we
also operate a number of our live entertainment venues under various agreements which include leases with third-parties or equity or
booking agreements, which are agreements where we contract to book the events at a venue for a specific period of time. Our long-term
success in the live entertainment business will depend in part on the availability of venues, our ability to lease these venues and our ability
to enter into booking agreements upon their expiration. As many of these agreements are with third parties over whom we have little or no
control, we may be unable to renew these agreements or enter into new agreements on acceptable terms or at all, and may be unable to
obtain favorable agreements with venues. Our ability to renew these agreements or obtain new agreements on favorable terms depends on a
number of other factors, many of which are also beyond our control, such as national and local business conditions and competition from
other promoters. If the cost of renewing these agreements is too high or the terms of any new agreement with a new venue are unacceptable
or incompatible with our existing operations, we may decide to forgo these opportunities. There can be no assurance that we will be able to
renew these agreements on acceptable terms or at all, or that we will be able to obtain attractive agreements with substitute venues, which
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

We plan to continue to expand our operations through the development of live entertainment venues and the expansion of existing live
entertainment venues, which poses a number of risks, including:

» construction of live entertainment venues may result in cost overruns, delays or unanticipated expenses;
« desirable sites for live entertainment venues may be unavailable or costly; and

» the attractiveness of our venue locations may deteriorate over time.

Additionally, the market potential of live entertainment venues sites cannot be precisely determined, and our live entertainment venues
may face competition in markets from unexpected sources. Newly constructed live entertainment venues may not perform up to our
expectations. We face significant competition for potential live entertainment venue locations and for opportunities to acquire existing live
entertainment venues. Because of this competition, we may be unable to add to the number of our live entertainment venues on terms we
consider acceptable.

Our separation from Clear Channel Communications could adversely affect our business and profitability due to Clear Channel
Communications’ strong brand and reputation. In addition, our new brand will not be immediately recognized, which will cause us
to spend significant amounts of time and resources to build a brand identity.

As a subsidiary of Clear Channel Communications, some of our businesses have marketed many of their products and services using
the “Clear Channel” brand name and logo, and we believe our association with Clear Channel Communications has provided many
benefits, including:

« an established brand associated with trust, integrity and longevity;

* perception of high-quality products and services;

* preferred status among our customers, suppliers, sponsors, performers, independent sales intermediaries, entertainers and employees;
* a strong capital base and financial strength; and

» established relationships with U.S. federal and state and non-U.S. regulators.
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Our business will be conducted under our new brand name following completion of the distribution, which may not be immediately
recognized by our customers and suppliers or by potential employees we are trying to recruit. In addition, Clear Channel Communications
may engage in activities that overlap our business, such as its local radio stations continuing to promote concerts and other events that are
similar to those customarily promoted by our entertainment business, which would increase the risks associated with our establishing a new
strong brand in the live entertainment industry. We will need to expend significant time, effort and resources to establish our new brand
name in the marketplace, particularly in our industry. We cannot guarantee that this effort will ultimately be successful. If our efforts to
establish our new brand identity is unsuccessful, our business, financial condition and results of operations may suffer.

Our revenues depend on the promotional success of our marketing campaigns, and there can be no assurance that such advertising,
promotional and other marketing campaigns will be successful or will generate revenues or profits.

Similar to many companies, we spend significant amounts on advertising, promotional and other marketing campaigns for our live
entertainment events and other business activities. Such marketing activities include, among others, promotion of ticket sales, premium seat
sales, hospitality and other services for our events and venues and advertising associated with our wholesale and retail distribution of
related souvenir merchandise and apparel. In the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and September 30, 2004, we spent approximately
5.4% and 6.4%, respectively, of our revenues on marketing, including advertising, and there can be no assurance that such advertising,
promotional and other marketing campaigns will be successful or will generate revenues or profits.

Our sports representation business can be significantly adversely affected by factors beyond our control.

The amount of endorsement and other revenues that our sports representation clients generate is a function of, among other things, our
clients’ professional performances and public appeal. Factors beyond our control, such as injuries to such clients, declining skill, labor
unrest or limits on agent fees by the sports leagues, among others, could have an adverse effect on the results of operations of our sports
representation business. Representation agreements with clients vary by sport but generally are for a term of three years with automatic
renewal options. A significant number of the representation agreements are terminable on 15 days’ notice, although we would continue to
be entitled to certain of the revenue streams generated during the remaining term of such terminated agreements.

Poor weather adversely affects attendance at our live entertainment events, which could negatively impact our financial
performance from period to period.

We promote many live entertainment events. Weather conditions surrounding these events affect sales of tickets, concessions and
souvenirs, among other things. Poor weather conditions can have a material effect on our results of operations particularly because we
promote a finite number of events. Due to weather conditions, we may be required to reschedule an event to the next available day or a
different venue, which would increase our costs for the event and could negatively impact the attendance at the event, and food, beverage
and merchandise sales. Poor weather can affect current periods as well as successive events in future periods. If we are unable to reschedule
events due to poor weather, we are forced to refund the tickets for those events.

We may be adversely affected by the occurrence of extraordinary events, such as terrorist attacks.

The occurrence and threat of extraordinary events, such as terrorist attacks, intentional or unintentional mass-casualty incidents, natural
disasters or similar events, may substantially decrease the use of and demand for our services and the attendance at live entertainment
events, which may decrease our revenues or expose us to substantial liability. The terrorism and security incidents of September 11, 2001,
military actions in Iraq, and periodic elevated terrorism alerts have raised numerous challenging operating factors, including public
concerns regarding air travel, military actions and additional national or local catastrophic incidents, causing a nationwide disruption of
commercial and leisure activities.
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Following September 11, 2001, some artists refused to travel or book tours, which adversely affected our music business, and many
people did not travel to New York City, which caused us to experience lower attendance levels at our theatrical performances playing on
Broadway in New York City and adversely affected our theatrical business. The occurrence of the recent terrorist attacks in London,
England, also caused us to experience lower attendance levels at our theatrical performances playing on the West End in London. The
occurrence or threat of future terrorist attacks, military actions by the United States, contagious disease outbreaks, natural disasters such as
earthquakes and severe floods or similar events cannot be predicted, and their occurrence can be expected to negatively affect the
economies of the United States and other foreign countries where we do business generally, specifically the market for live entertainment.

Risk Factors Relating to Our Relationship with Clear Channel Communications

We will not be able to rely on Clear Channel Communications to fund our future capital requirements, and financing from other
sources may not be available on favorable terms or at all.

In the past, our capital requirements have been funded by Clear Channel Communications. However, following our separation, Clear
Channel Communications will not provide funds to finance our working capital or other cash requirements. We believe our capital
requirements will vary greatly from quarter to quarter depending on, among other things, capital expenditures, seasonal and other
fluctuations in our operating results, financing activities, acquisitions and investments and receivables management. We believe that the
amounts under our credit facility, along with our future cash flow from operations, will be sufficient to satisfy our working capital and
capital expenditure requirements for the foreseeable future. However, we may require or choose to obtain additional debt or equity
financing in order to finance acquisitions or other investments in our business. Future equity financings would be dilutive to the existing
holders of our common stock. Future debt financings could involve restrictive covenants. We do not expect to be able to obtain financing
with interest rates or debt ratings as favorable as those that Clear Channel Communications could obtain, and our current debt ratings are
below those of Clear Channel Communications.

Contflicts of interest may arise between us and Clear Channel Communications that could be resolved in a manner unfavorable to
us.

Questions relating to conflicts of interest may arise between us and Clear Channel Communications in a number of areas relating to our
past and ongoing relationships. After the spin-off, three of our directors will continue to serve as directors of Clear Channel
Communications, and our chairman will continue to serve as chief financial officer and a director of Clear Channel Communications.

Areas in which conflicts of interest between us and Clear Channel Communications could arise include, but are not limited to, the
following:

* Cross Directorships, Officerships and Stock Ownership. Ownership interests of our directors or officers in the common stock of Clear
Channel Communications or service as a director or officer of both us and Clear Channel Communications could create, or appear to
create, potential control issues or conflicts of interest when directors and officers are faced with decisions that could have different
implications for the two companies. For example, these decisions could relate to:

« the nature, quality and cost of services rendered to us by Clear Channel Communications;
* competition for potential acquisition opportunities; or
 employee retention or recruiting.

* Our intercompany agreements were negotiated when we were a subsidiary of Clear Channel Communications. We have entered into
agreements with Clear Channel Communications pursuant to which Clear Channel Communications will provide to us certain
management,
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administrative, accounting, tax, legal and other services, for which we will reimburse Clear Channel Communications on a cost basis.
In addition, we have entered into a number of intercompany agreements covering matters such as tax sharing and our responsibility
for certain liabilities previously undertaken by Clear Channel Communications for certain of our businesses. The terms of these
agreements were established while we were a wholly-owned subsidiary of Clear Channel Communications, and hence were not the
result of arms’ length negotiations. In addition, conflicts could arise in the interpretation or any extension or renegotiation of the
foregoing agreements after the spin-off. See “Our Relationship with Clear Channel Communications After the Distribution.”

* Intercompany Transactions. From time to time, Clear Channel Communications or its affiliates may enter into transactions with us or
our subsidiaries or other affiliates. Although the terms of any such transactions will be established based upon negotiations between
employees of the transacting companies and, when appropriate, subject to the approval of the independent directors on our board or a
committee of disinterested directors, there can be no assurance that the terms of any such transactions will be as favorable to us or our
subsidiaries or affiliates as would be the case where the parties were completely at arms’ length.

If Clear Channel Communications engages in the same type of business we conduct or takes advantage of business opportunities
that might be attractive to us, our ability to successfully operate and expand our business may be hampered.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, subject to any contractual provision to the contrary, Clear Channel
Communications will have no obligation to refrain from:

* engaging in the same or similar business activities or lines of business as us; or

* doing business with any of our clients, customers or vendors.

Clear Channel Communications’ radio business conducts concert events from time to time. In the event Clear Channel Communications
expands its operations in this area, it may compete with us.

In addition, the corporate opportunity policy set forth in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation addresses potential
conflicts of interest for officers and directors of Clear Channel Communications who are also officers or directors of our company. The
policy provides that if one of our directors or officers who is also a director or officer of Clear Channel Communications learns of a
potential transaction or matter that may be a corporate opportunity for both us and Clear Channel Communications, we will have renounced
our interest in the corporate opportunity unless that opportunity is expressly offered to that person in writing solely in his or her capacity as
our director or officer. If one of our officers or directors, who also serves as a director or officer of Clear Channel Communications, learns
of a potential transaction or matter that may be a corporate opportunity for both us and Clear Channel Communications, our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation provides that the director or officer will have no duty to communicate or present that corporate
opportunity to us and will not be liable to us or our stockholders for breach of fiduciary duty by reason of Clear Channel Communications’
actions with respect to that corporate opportunity. This policy could interfere with our ability to take advantage of certain corporate
opportunities.

By becoming a stockholder in our company, you will be deemed to have notice of and have consented to these provisions of our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation. The principles for resolving such potential conflicts of interest are described under
“Description of Our Capital Stock — Provisions of Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation Relating to Related-Party
Transactions and Corporate Opportunities.”

The spin-off could result in significant tax liability to our initial public stockholders.

Clear Channel Communications has requested a private letter ruling from the IRS substantially to the effect that the distribution of our
common stock to its stockholders will qualify as a tax-free distribution for U.S. federal income tax purposes under Sections 355 and 368(a)
(1)(D) of the Code. Although a
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private letter ruling from the IRS generally is binding on the IRS, if the factual representations or assumptions made in the letter ruling
request are untrue or incomplete in any material respect, we will not be able to rely on the ruling.

Furthermore, the IRS will not rule on whether a distribution satisfies certain requirements necessary to obtain tax-free treatment under
Section 355 of the Code. Rather, the ruling will be based upon representations by Clear Channel Communications that these conditions
have been satisfied, and any inaccuracy in such representations could invalidate the ruling. Therefore, in addition to obtaining the ruling
from the IRS, Clear Channel Communications has made it a condition to the spin-off that Clear Channel Communications obtain an
opinion of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP that the distribution will qualify as a tax-free distribution for U.S. federal income
tax purposes under Sections 355 and 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code. The opinion will rely on the ruling as to matters covered by the ruling. In
addition, the opinion will be based on, among other things, certain assumptions and representations as to factual matters made by Clear
Channel Communications and us, which if incorrect or inaccurate in any material respect would jeopardize the conclusions reached by
counsel in its opinion. The opinion will not be binding on the IRS or the courts, and the IRS or the courts may not agree with the opinion.

Notwithstanding receipt by Clear Channel Communications of the ruling and opinion of counsel, the IRS could assert that the
distribution does not qualify for tax-free treatment for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If the IRS were successful in taking this position,
our initial public stockholders could be subject to significant U.S. federal income tax liability. In general, our initial public stockholders
could be subject to tax as if they had received a taxable distribution equal to the fair market value of our common stock that was distributed
to them. For a more complete discussion of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the distribution, see “The Distribution — Material
U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Distribution.”

The spin-off could result in significant tax-related liabilities to us.

As discussed above, notwithstanding receipt by Clear Channel Communications of the ruling and the opinion of counsel, the IRS could
assert that the distribution does not qualify for tax-free treatment for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If the IRS were successful in taking
this position, Clear Channel Communications could be subject to significant U.S. federal income tax liability. In general, Clear Channel
Communications would be subject to tax as if it had sold the common stock of our company in a taxable sale for its fair market value. In
addition, even if the distribution otherwise were to qualify under Section 355 of the Code, it may be taxable to Clear Channel
Communications as if it had sold the common stock of our company in a taxable sale for its fair market value under Section 355(e) of the
Code, if the distribution were later deemed to be part of a plan (or series of related transactions) pursuant to which one or more persons
acquire directly or indirectly stock representing a 50% or greater interest in Clear Channel Communications or us. For this purpose, any
acquisitions of Clear Channel Communications stock or of our stock within the period beginning two years before the distribution and
ending two years after the distribution are presumed to be part of such a plan, although we or Clear Channel Communications may be able
to rebut that presumption. For a more complete discussion of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the distribution, see “The
Distribution — Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Distribution.”

Although such corporate-level taxes, if any, resulting from a taxable distribution generally would be imposed on Clear Channel
Communications, we have agreed in the tax matters agreement to indemnify Clear Channel Communications and its affiliates against tax-
related liabilities, if any, caused by the failure of the spin-off to qualify as a tax-free transaction under Section 355 of the Code (including
as a result of Section 355(e) of the Code) if the failure to so qualify is attributable to actions, events or transactions relating to our stock,
assets or business, or a breach of the relevant representations or covenants made by us in the tax matters agreement. If the failure of the
spin-off to qualify under Section 355 of the Code is for any reason for which neither we nor Clear Channel Communications is responsible,
we and Clear Channel Communications have agreed in the tax matters agreement that we will each be responsible for 50% of the tax-
related liabilities arising from the failure to so qualify. See “Our Relationship with Clear
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Channel Communications After the Distribution — Tax Matters Agreement” for a more detailed discussion of the tax matters agreement
between Clear Channel Communications and us.

We could be liable for income taxes owed by Clear Channel Communications.

Each member of the Clear Channel Communications consolidated group, which includes Clear Channel Communications, our company
and Clear Channel Communications’ other subsidiaries, is jointly and severally liable for the U.S. federal income tax liability of each other
member of the consolidated group. Consequently, we could be liable in the event any such liability is incurred, and not discharged, by any
other member of the Clear Channel Communications consolidated group. Disputes or assessments could arise during future audits by the
IRS in amounts that we cannot quantify. In addition, Clear Channel Communications expects to recognize a capital loss for U.S. federal
income tax purposes (the “Holdco #3 Loss”) in connection with the distribution and the Holdco #3 Exchange. The amount of such loss is
not determinable prior to the Holdco #3 Exchange since it will depend upon Clear Channel Communications’ tax basis in the stock of
Holdco #3 under applicable income tax regulations as well as the fair market value of Holdco #3 stock, in each case, as of the time of the
Holdco #3 Exchange. If Clear Channel Communications is unable to deduct such capital loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a
result of any action we take following the spin-off or our breach of a relevant representation or covenant made by us in the tax matters
agreement, we have agreed in the tax matters agreement to indemnify Clear Channel Communications for the lost tax benefits that Clear
Channel Communications would have otherwise realized if it were able to deduct the Holdco #3 Loss. See “Our Relationship with Clear
Channel Communications After the Distribution — Tax Matters Agreement.”

Risks Related to Our Common Stock and the Distribution

There is no existing market for our common stock and a trading market that will provide you with adequate liquidity may not
develop for the common stock, and you could lose all or part of your investment.

Prior to the distribution, there has been no public market for our common stock. However, our common stock has been approved for
listing on the NYSE under the symbol “LYV.” We anticipate that trading will commence on a when-issued basis on or shortly before the
record date. On the first trading day following the distribution date, when-issued trading in respect of the common stock will end and
regular way trading will begin. We cannot predict the extent to which investor interest will lead to the development of an active and liquid
trading market in our common stock on the NYSE or otherwise. If an active trading market does not develop, you may have difficulty
selling any of your shares of common stock or receiving a price when you sell your shares of common stock that will be favorable.

We cannot predict the prices at which our common stock may trade after the spin-off.

The market price of our common stock may decline below the initial price on the distribution date. The market price of our common
stock may fluctuate significantly due to a number of factors, some of which may be beyond our control, including:

* our business profile and market capitalization may not fit the investment objectives of Clear Channel Communications’ stockholders,
causing them to sell our shares after the spin-off; this is particularly true of Clear Channel Communications stockholders who hold
Clear Channel Communications stock based on its inclusion in the S&P 500 Index, as our common stock would not be eligible to be
included in the S&P 500 Index;

* our quarterly or annual earnings, or those of other companies in our industry;

» actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results due to the seasonality of our business and other factors related to our business;

* our loss or inability to obtain significant popular artists or theatrical productions;
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* changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations or principles;

* announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts or acquisitions;

« the failure of securities analysts to cover our common stock after the distribution or changes in financial estimates by analysts;
» changes in earnings estimates by securities analysts or our ability to meet those estimates;

« the operating and stock price performance of other comparable companies;

« overall market fluctuations; and

* general economic conditions.

In particular, the realization of any of the risks described in these “Risk Factors” could have a significant and adverse impact on the
market price of our common stock. In addition, the stock market in general has experienced extreme price and volume volatility that has
often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. This volatility has had a significant impact on the market price
of securities issued by many companies, including companies in our industry. The changes frequently appear to occur without regard to the
operating performance of these companies. The price of our common stock could fluctuate based upon factors that have little or nothing to
do with our company, and these fluctuations could materially reduce our stock price.

The price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly, and you could lose all or part of the value of your common stock.

In recent years, the stock market has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations. This volatility has had a significant impact on
the market price of securities issued by many companies, including companies in our industry. The changes frequently appear to occur
without regard to the operating performance of these companies. The price of our common stock could fluctuate based upon factors that
have little or nothing to do with our company, and these fluctuations could materially reduce our stock price.

In the past, some companies that have had volatile market prices for their securities have been subject to securities class action suits
filed against them. If a suit were to be filed against us, regardless of the outcome, it could result in substantial legal costs and a diversion of
our management’s attention and resources. This could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Substantial sales of our common stock following the distribution may have an adverse impact on the trading price of our common
stock.

Clear Channel Communications expects that under the United States federal securities laws, all of our shares of common stock may be
resold immediately in the public market, except for shares held by our affiliates.

Some of the Clear Channel Communications stockholders who receive our shares of common stock may decide that their investment
objectives do not include ownership of shares in a small capitalization company, and may sell their shares of common stock following the
distribution. In particular, certain Clear Channel Communications stockholders that are institutional investors have investment parameters
that depend on their portfolio companies maintaining a minimum market capitalization that we may not achieve after the distribution or
paying dividends, which we do not currently intend to do. We cannot predict whether stockholders will resell large numbers of our shares
of common stock in the public market following the distribution or how quickly they may resell these shares. If our stockholders sell large
numbers of our shares of common stock over a short period of time, or if investors anticipate large sales of our shares of common stock over
a short period of time, this could adversely affect the trading price of our shares of common stock.
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If we are not able to grow our business as planned, we may not be able to pay the annual dividend on the Holdco #2 preferred
stock or redeem the Holdco #2 preferred stock, and our failure to make these payments could have a material adverse effect on our
business and results of operations.

In connection with our spin-off from Clear Channel Communications, third-party investors unrelated to Clear Channel Communications
are expected to acquire all of the voting and non-voting preferred stock of Holdco #2, one of our subsidiaries. The preferred stock will have
an aggregate liquidation preference of $40 million. We expect the voting and non-voting preferred stock will pay an annual dividend of
approximately 10% and will be mandatorily redeemable six years after issuance. The holders of Series A redeemable preferred stock will
have the right to appoint one out of four members to Holdco #2’s board of directors and to otherwise control 25% of the voting power of all
outstanding shares of Holdco #2. The Series B redeemable preferred stock will have no voting rights other than the right to vote as a class
with the Series A redeemable preferred stock to elect one additional member to the board of directors of Holdco #2 in the event the
subsidiary breaches certain terms of the designations of the preferred stock. Our ability to make scheduled payments of the dividend and
redeem the preferred stock will depend on our ability to grow our business as planned and generate sufficient cash flow to make these
payments, as well as our ability to dividend such funds to Holdco #2. If we fail to make these payments, such failure to pay could have a
material adverse effect on our business and results of operation. In addition, the board of directors of Holdco #2 may owe conflicting
fiduciary duties to the holders of the preferred stock and us, as the indirect sole common stockholder of Holdco #2.

We currently do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock.

We do not expect to pay dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. In addition, the terms of the credit agreement
governing our senior secured credit facility and the designations governing Holdco #2’s preferred stock will limit the amount of dividends
we may pay on our common stock. Moreover, if we could pay dividends, we would first have to pay dividends on the Series A redeemable
preferred stock and Series B redeemable preferred stock of Holdco #2 prior to the payment of dividends on our common stock.
Accordingly, if you receive shares of our common stock in the spin-off, the price of our common stock must appreciate in order to realize a
gain on your investment. This appreciation may not occur.

Our corporate governance documents, rights agreement and Delaware law may delay or prevent an acquisition of us that
stockholders may consider favorable, which could decrease the value of your shares.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws and Delaware law contain provisions that could
make it more difficult for a third-party to acquire us without the consent of our board of directors. These provisions include restrictions on
the ability of our stockholders to remove directors and supermajority voting requirements for stockholders to amend our organizational
documents, a classified board of directors and limitations on action by our stockholders by written consent. Three of our initial
nine directors will also be directors of Clear Channel Communications. In addition, our board of directors has the right to issue preferred
stock without stockholder approval, which could be used to dilute the stock ownership of a potential hostile acquiror. Delaware law, for
instance, also imposes some restrictions on mergers and other business combinations between any holder of 15% or more of our
outstanding common stock and us. Although we believe these provisions protect our stockholders from coercive or otherwise unfair
takeover tactics and thereby provide for an opportunity to receive a higher bid by requiring potential acquirers to negotiate with our board
of directors, these provisions apply even if the offer may be considered beneficial by some stockholders. See “Description of Our Capital
Stock.”

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, subject to any written agreement to the contrary, which agreement
does not currently exist, Clear Channel Communications will have no duty to refrain from engaging in the same or similar business
activities or lines of business as us or doing business with any of our customers or vendors or employing or otherwise engaging or
soliciting any of our officers, directors or employees. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that if Clear Channel
Communications acquires knowledge of a potential transaction or matter which may be a

38




Table of Contents

corporate opportunity for both us and Clear Channel Communications, we will generally renounce our interest in the corporate opportunity.
Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation renounces any interest or expectancy in such corporate opportunity that will belong to
Clear Channel Communications. Clear Channel Communications will, to the fullest extent permitted by law, have satisfied its fiduciary
duty with respect to such a corporate opportunity and will not be liable to us or our stockholders for breach of any fiduciary duty as our
stockholder by reason of the fact that it acquires or seeks the corporate opportunity for itself, directs that corporate opportunity to another
person or does not present that corporate opportunity to us. These provisions could make an acquisition of us less advantageous to a third-
party.

Our obligation to indemnify, under certain circumstances, Clear Channel Communications and its affiliates pursuant to the tax matters
agreement against tax-related liabilities, if any, caused by the failure of the spin-off to qualify as a tax-free transaction under Section 355 of
the Code (including as a result of Section 355(e) of the Code) could deter a change of control of us.

We have also adopted a stockholder rights plan intended to deter hostile or coercive attempts to acquire us. Under the plan, if any
person or group acquires, or begins a tender or exchange offer that could result in such person acquiring, 15% or more of our common
stock, and in the case of certain Schedule 13G filers, 20% or more of our common stock, without approval of our Board of Directors under
specified circumstances, our other stockholders have the right to purchase shares of our common stock, or shares of the acquiring company,
at a substantial discount to the public market price. Therefore, the plan makes an acquisition much more costly to a potential acquirer. See
“Description of Our Capital Stock — The Rights Agreement.”

Increased costs associated with corporate governance compliance may significantly affect our results of operations.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, will require changes in our corporate
governance and securities disclosure and compliance practices, and will require a review of our internal control procedures. We expect
these developments to increase our legal compliance and financial reporting costs. In addition, they could make it more difficult for us to
attract and retain qualified members of our board of directors, or qualified executive officers. Finally, director and officer liability insurance
for public companies like us has become more difficult and more expensive to obtain, and we may be required to accept reduced coverage
or incur higher costs to obtain coverage than what we paid under Clear Channel Communications’ policies that is satisfactory to us and our
officers or directors. We are presently evaluating and monitoring regulatory developments and cannot estimate the timing or magnitude or
additional costs we may incur as a result.

If, following the spin-off, we are unable to satisfy the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or our internal
control over financial reporting is not effective, the reliability of our financial statements may be questioned and our stock price may suffer.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires any company subject to the reporting requirements of the U.S. securities laws
to do a comprehensive evaluation of its and its consolidated subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting. To comply with this
statute, we will be required to document and test our internal control procedures; our management will be required to assess and issue a
report concerning our internal control over financial reporting; and our independent auditors will be required to issue an opinion on
management’s assessment of those matters. Our compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act will first be tested in connection
with the filing of our annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2006. The rules governing the standards that
must be met for management to assess our internal control over financial reporting are new and complex and require significant
documentation, testing and possible remediation to meet the detailed standards under the rules. During the course of its testing, our
management may identify material weaknesses or deficiencies which may not be remedied in time to meet the deadline imposed by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act. If our management cannot favorably assess the effectiveness of our internal control
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over financial reporting or our auditors identify material weaknesses in our internal control, investor confidence in our financial results may
weaken, and our stock price may suffer.

SPECIAL NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We have made forward-looking statements in this information statement, including the sections entitled “Summary,” “Risk Factors,”
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Business,” that are based on our
management’s beliefs and assumptions and on information currently available to our management. Forward-looking statements include, but
are not limited to, the information concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations, business strategies, financing plans,
competitive position, potential growth opportunities, potential operating performance improvements, benefits resulting from our spin-off
from Clear Channel Communications, the effects of competition and the effects of future legislation or regulations. Forward-looking
statements include all statements that are not historical facts and can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as the
words “believe,” “expect,” “plan,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” “continue,” “may,” “will,” “should” or the
negative of these terms or similar expressions.

99 ¢ 99 < 99 ¢ 99 ¢ 99 <

Forward-looking statements involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in
these forward-looking statements. The risk factors discussed in “Risk Factors” beginning on page 20 set forth many of the risks and
uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ from those expressed in the forward looking statements. There may be other risks and
uncertainties that could have a similar impact. Therefore, you should not put undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. We do not
have any intention or obligation to update forward-looking statements after we distribute this information statement.
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THE DISTRIBUTION

Reasons for the Spin-Off

In April 2005, Clear Channel Communications announced, among other things, that it had determined that the separation of CCE
Spinco from Clear Channel Communications is in the best interests of Clear Channel Communications, its stockholders and us, by
providing each company with certain opportunities and benefits, such as:

* The separation will allow us to develop incentive programs to better attract, retain and motivate current and future employees through
the use of equity-based compensation policies that more directly link employee compensation with our financial performance.
Similarly, the removal of our fundamentally different business from Clear Channel Communications will more closely correlate Clear
Channel Communications’ equity-based compensation with Clear Channel Communications’ financial performance.

* The separation will permit the independent management of each of us and Clear Channel Communications to focus its attention and its
company’s financial resources on its respective distinct business and business challenges and to lead each independent company to
adopt strategies and pursue objectives that are appropriate to its respective business. This is of particular importance given the
fundamental differences between our respective businesses: Clear Channel Communications’ other two synergistic businesses — radio
broadcasting and outdoor advertising — typically generate high cash flows on a relatively stable basis and have low capital expenditure
requirements while our business tends to be a more volatile, lower margin, capital intensive business.

» We anticipate that we may use our stock in the future in connection with acquisitions and financings. In this regard, we expect to have
better access to the equity capital markets after the separation as our investors will not be forced to understand and make investment
decisions with respect to Clear Channel Communications’ other two businesses that are fundamentally different from our business. At
the same time, Clear Channel Communications, which also expects to use its stock in the future in connection with acquisitions and
financings, will similarly benefit since its investors will not need to understand and make investment decisions with respect to our
business.

Clear Channel Communications announced a plan to strategically realign its businesses on April 29, 2005 through the initial public
offering, or IPO, of 10% of the common stock of Clear Channel Outdoor and a 100% spin-off of CCE Spinco. The strategic plan also
provided for a 50% increase to Clear Channel Communications’ regular dividend and the return of approximately $1.6 billion of capital to
stockholders in the form of dividends, share repurchase or both. After evaluating various alternatives, the board of directors of Clear
Channel Communications determined that this series of transactions represented the best course of action for stockholders. The timing of
the transactions was undertaken simultaneously as part of the April 29th announcement to effect the required internal reorganizations and
other activities in an efficient manner and, in part, to help fund the $1.6 billion return of capital to stockholders.

The decision to sell 10% of Clear Channel Outdoor’s shares in an IPO was based on several factors, including the ability to establish a
separately traded currency to highlight the value of the outdoor business and attract a stockholder base interested in this business while
permitting Clear Channel Communications stockholders to benefit from the retained interest in the business. Clear Channel
Communications believes that a tax-free distribution of shares in CCE Spinco offers Clear Channel Communications and its stockholders
the greatest long-term value as described above and is the most tax efficient way to separate the companies. On November 11, 2005, Clear
Channel Communications completed the IPO of 35,000,000 shares of Class A common stock of Clear Channel Outdoor at a price of
$18.00 per share. Clear Channel Communications retained 315,000,000 shares of Class B common stock of Clear Channel Outdoor, each of
which is entitled to 20 votes per share. After the IPO, Clear Channel Communications retained and owns 90% of the outstanding stock of
Clear Channel Outdoor, representing 99.4% of its total voting power.
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The Separation of CCE Spinco from Clear Channel Communications

We are currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of Clear Channel Communications. We were incorporated in Delaware on August 2, 2005,
in preparation for our spin-off from Clear Channel Communications. Prior to the distribution, Clear Channel Communications will
contribute or otherwise transfer to us generally all of the entertainment assets, and we will assume generally all of the liabilities,
comprising the CCE Spinco business. We call this transfer of assets and assumption of liabilities the “separation.” We and Clear Channel
Communications have agreed to transfer legal title to any remaining assets of the CCE Spinco business not transferred prior to the
distribution, most of which are foreign assets and liabilities subject to regulatory and other delays, as soon as practicable. In the interim, we
will operate and receive the economic benefits of (and bear the economic burdens of) these assets. These assets are not, individually or in
the aggregate, material to our business. The information included in this information statement, including our combined financial
statements, assumes the completion of all of these transfers.

Description of the Spin-Off

Clear Channel Communications will effect the spin-off by distributing on a pro rata basis 100% of our outstanding common stock to
Clear Channel Communications stockholders, which we refer to as the distribution, or the spin-off, on , 2005, the distribution
date. As a result of the distribution, each Clear Channel Communications stockholder will:

* receive one share of our common stock (and a related preferred stock purchase right) for every eight shares of Clear Channel
Communications common stock it owns; and

« retain its shares in Clear Channel Communications.

Manner of Effecting the Distribution

You will receive one share of our common stock (and a related preferred stock purchase right) for every eight shares of Clear Channel
Communications common stock held on the record date. The shares of our common stock will be validly issued, fully paid and
nonassessable.

Clear Channel Communications stockholders will not be required to pay for shares of our common stock received in the
distribution or to surrender or exchange shares of Clear Channel Communications common stock in order to receive our common
stock or to take any other action in connection with the distribution. No vote of Clear Channel Communications stockholders is
required or sought in connection with the distribution, and Clear Channel Communications stockholders have no appraisal rights
in connection with the distribution.

As part of the spin-off, we will be adopting a book-entry share transfer and registration system for our common stock. Instead of
receiving physical share certificates, registered holders of eight or more shares of Clear Channel Communications common stock on the
record date will have their shares of CCE Spinco common stock distributed on the date of the spin-off credited to book-entry accounts
established for them by the distribution agent. The distribution agent will mail an account statement to each such registered holder stating
the number of shares of our common stock credited to the holder’s account. After the spin-off, any holder may request:

» a transfer of all or a portion of their CCE Spinco shares to a brokerage or other account; and

* receipt of one or more physical share certificates representing their CCE Spinco shares.

Registered holders of fewer than eight shares of Clear Channel Communications common stock, or any multiple thereof, on the record
date, which would entitle them to receive less than one whole share of our common stock, will receive cash in lieu of fractional shares.
Fractional shares of our common stock will not be issued to Clear Channel Communications stockholders as part of the distribution nor
credited to book-entry accounts. Instead, the distribution agent will aggregate all of these fractional shares and sell them in the open market
at then prevailing prices on behalf of these holders. These holders will receive
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cash payments in the amount of their proportionate share of the net sale proceeds from the sale of the aggregated fractional shares, based
upon the average gross selling price per share of our common stock after making appropriate deductions for any required withholdings for
U.S. federal income tax purposes. See “— Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Distribution” for a discussion of the
U.S. federal income tax treatment of proceeds received from the sale of fractional shares. We will bear the cost of brokerage fees incurred
in connection with these sales. The amount of these brokerage fees is not expected to be material to us. We anticipate that these sales will
occur as soon after the date of the spin-off as practicable as determined by the distribution agent. None of Clear Channel Communications,
CCE Spinco or the distribution agent will guarantee any minimum sale price for the fractional shares of CCE Spinco common stock.
Neither we nor Clear Channel Communications will pay any interest on the proceeds from the sale of fractional shares. The distribution
agent will have the sole discretion to select the broker-dealer(s) through which to sell the shares and to determine when, how and at what
price to sell the shares. Further, neither the distribution agent nor the selected broker-dealer(s) will be our affiliates or affiliates of Clear
Channel Communications.

If you become a registered holder of our common stock in connection with the spin-off and you prefer to receive one or more physical
share certificates representing your shareholding of our common stock, you will receive one or more certificates for all whole shares of
CCE Spinco common stock and, if applicable, cash for any fractional interest. The distribution agent will mail you certificates representing
your proportionate number of whole shares of our common stock as soon after the date of request as practicable.

For those holders of Clear Channel Communications common stock who hold their shares through a broker, bank or other nominee, the
distribution agent will credit the shares of our common stock to the accounts of those nominees who are registered holders, who, in turn,
will credit their customers’ accounts with our common stock. We and Clear Channel Communications anticipate that brokers, banks and
other nominees will generally credit their customers’ accounts with CCE Spinco common stock on or shortly after , 2005.

Delivery of a share of our common stock in connection with the distribution also will constitute the delivery of the preferred stock
purchase right associated with the share. The existence of the preferred stock purchase rights may deter a potential acquirer from making a
hostile takeover proposal or a tender offer. For a more detailed discussion of these rights, see “Description of Our Capital Stock — The
Rights Agreement.”

Results of the Separation and the Distribution

After the separation and distribution, we will be a separate publicly-traded company. Immediately following the distribution, we expect
to have approximately beneficial holders of shares of our common stock, based on the number of beneficial stockholders of
Clear Channel Communications common stock on November 4, 2005, and approximately 67,565,591 shares of our common stock
outstanding. The actual number of shares to be distributed will be determined on the record date and will reflect any exercise of Clear
Channel Communications options between the date Clear Channel Communications’ board declares the dividend for the spin-off and the
record date for the spin-off.

We and Clear Channel Communications will be parties to a number of agreements that govern our spin-off from Clear Channel
Communications and our future relationship. For a more detailed description of these agreements, see “Our Relationship with Clear
Channel Communications After the Distribution.”

The distribution will not affect the number of outstanding shares of Clear Channel Communications common stock or any rights of
Clear Channel Communications stockholders.
Incurrence of Debt

In the past, our capital requirements have been funded by Clear Channel Communications. However, following the spin-off, Clear
Channel Communications will not provide funds to finance our working
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capital or other cash requirements. Therefore, we currently plan to enter into a senior secured credit facility with lenders to fund a portion of
our working capital or other cash requirements after the spin-off. We also intend to issue Series A and Series B redeemable preferred stock
of Holdco #2 as described below prior to or concurrently with the completion of the spin-off. We intend to use $200.0 million of
borrowings under the term loan portion of our senior secured credit facility and the $20 million of proceeds from the issuance of the

Series A redeemable preferred stock of Holdco #2 to repay a portion of the indebtedness we owe Clear Channel Communications. We
intend to use the remaining $125.0 million of borrowings under the term loan portion of our senior secured credit facility for general
corporate proposals, including working capital, potential acquisitions and stock repurchases.

Senior Secured Credit Facility. Prior to or concurrently with the completion of the distribution, one of our operating subsidiaries,
Holdco #3, which owns more than 95% of the gross value of our assets, will enter into a $575.0 million senior secured credit facility
consisting of:

* a $325.0 million 7!/2-year term loan; and

* a $250.0 million 6'/2-year revolving credit facility, of which up to $200.0 million will be available for the issuance of letters of credit
and up to $100.0 million will be available for borrowings in foreign currencies.

Subject to then market pricing and maturity extending longer than that of the senior secured credit facility, we will be able to add
additional term and revolving credit facilities in an aggregate amount not to exceed $250.0 million. We anticipate that the senior secured
credit facility will be secured by a first priority lien on substantially all of our domestic assets (other than real property and deposits
maintained by us in connection with promoting or producing live entertainment events) and a pledge of the capital stock of our domestic
subsidiaries and a portion of the capital stock of certain of our foreign subsidiaries. Borrowings in foreign currencies by our foreign
subsidiaries will, in addition, be secured by a first priority lien on substantially all of our foreign assets (other than real property and
deposits maintained by us in connection with promoting or producing live entertainment events) and a pledge of the capital stock of all
subsidiaries held by such borrowing subsidiary. We expect that approximately $200.0 million of the revolving credit facility will remain
available for working capital and general corporate purposes of Holdco #3 and its subsidiaries immediately following the completion of the
distribution, and after the transfer of approximately $50.0 million of letters of credit previously issued under Clear Channel
Communications’ credit facilities on behalf of certain Holdco #3 subsidiaries. The issuance of letters of credit will reduce this availability
by the notional amount of issued letters of credit. However, on or prior to the distribution date, we may draw advances under the senior
secured credit facility for working capital and other general corporate purposes. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources” and “Description of Indebtedness” for more information.

The agreements governing the senior secured credit facility are subject to ongoing negotiation. We cannot be certain the terms
described herein will not change or be supplemented. See “Description of Indebtedness.”

Preferred Stock Issuance

Prior to the completion of the distribution, third-party investors unrelated to Clear Channel Communications will acquire all of the
shares of Series A (voting) and Series B (non-voting) mandatorily redeemable preferred stock of Holdco #2, the parent company of
Holdco #3, one of our operating subsidiaries which owns more than 95% of the gross value of our assets. The preferred stock will have an
aggregate liquidation preference of $40 million. We expect the Series A redeemable preferred stock will have a liquidation preference of
$20 million and will be issued to a third-party investor for $20 million. We anticipate the Series B redeemable preferred stock will have a
liquidation preference of $20 million and will be issued to Clear Channel Communications in connection with the Holdco #3 Exchange for
no cash and immediately resold by Clear Channel Communications to a third-party purchaser for $20 million. See “Our Relationship with
Clear Channel Communications After the Distribution — Tax Matters Agree-
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ment — Holdco #3 Loss.” We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of the Series B redeemable preferred stock sold by Clear
Channel Communications. The issuance and sale of the Series A and Series B redeemable preferred stock together with the Holdco #3
Exchange are structured to raise desired financing and to facilitate the overall tax efficiency of the distribution.

The holders of Series A redeemable preferred stock will have the right to appoint one out of four members to Holdco #2’s board of
directors and to otherwise control 25% of the voting power of all outstanding shares of Holdco #2. The Series B redeemable preferred stock
will have no voting rights other than the right to vote as a class with the Series A redeemable preferred stock to elect one additional
member to the board of directors of Holdco #2 in the event Holdco #2 breaches certain terms of the designations of the preferred stock. The
holders of Holdco #2 preferred stock will not have the right to appoint or vote for any of our directors. Each of the Series A and Series B
preferred stock is expected to pay an annual cash dividend of approximately 10% and will be mandatorily redeemable upon the six year
anniversary of the date of issuance. Holdco #2 will be required to make an offer to purchase the Series A and Series B redeemable preferred
stock at 101% of each series’ liquidation preference in the event of a change of control. The terms of the preferred stock are subject to
ongoing negotiation. We cannot be certain the terms described in this information statement will not change or be supplemented.

We will use the $20 million from the issuance of the Series A preferred stock to repay a portion of our intercompany promissory note
to Clear Channel Communications. The issuance of the Series B redeemable preferred stock to Clear Channel Communications will be part
of the Holdco #3 Exchange, and the sale thereof to a third-party will raise $20 million for Clear Channel Communications, from which we
will not receive any proceeds. We intend to use all proceeds from borrowings under the term loan portion of our senior secured credit
facility and the $20 million of proceeds from the issuance of the Series A redeemable preferred stock of Holdco #2 to repay a portion of the
intercompany note.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Distribution

The following is a summary of certain material U.S. federal income tax consequences relating to our spin-off from Clear Channel
Communications. This summary is based on the Code, the Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder, and interpretations of the Code
and the Treasury regulations by the courts and the IRS, in effect as of the date hereof, and all of which are subject to change, possibly with
retroactive effect. This summary does not discuss all the tax considerations that may be relevant to Clear Channel Communications
stockholders in light of their particular circumstances, nor does it address the consequences to Clear Channel Communications stockholders
subject to special treatment under the U.S. federal income tax laws (such as non-U.S. persons, insurance companies, dealers or brokers in
securities or currencies, tax-exempt organizations, financial institutions, mutual funds, pass-through entities and investors in such entities,
holders who hold their shares as a hedge or as part of a hedging, straddle, conversion, synthetic security, integrated investment or other
risk-reduction transaction or who are subject to alternative minimum tax or holders who acquired their shares upon the exercise of
employee stock options or otherwise as compensation). In addition, this summary does not address the U.S. federal income tax
consequences to those Clear Channel Communications stockholders who do not hold their Clear Channel Communications common stock
as a capital asset. Finally, this summary does not address any state, local or foreign tax consequences. CLEAR CHANNEL
COMMUNICATIONS STOCKHOLDERS ARE URGED TO CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE
U.S. FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL AND NON-U.S. TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE SPIN-OFF TO THEM.

The spin-off is conditioned upon Clear Channel Communications’ receipt of a private letter ruling from the IRS and the opinion of
Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, in each case, to the effect that the spin-off will qualify as a tax-free distribution for
U.S. federal income tax purposes under Sections 355 and 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code. Assuming the spin-off so qualifies: (i) no gain or loss
will be recognized by (and no amount will be included in the income of) Clear Channel Communications common stockholders upon their
receipt of shares of CCE Spinco common stock in the spin-off; (ii) any cash received in lieu of fractional share interests in CCE Spinco will
give rise to gain or loss equal to the
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difference between the amount of cash received and the tax basis allocable to the fractional share interests (determined as described below),
and such gain or loss will be capital gain or loss if the Clear Channel Communications common stock on which the distribution is made is
held as a capital asset on the date of the spin-off; (iii) the aggregate basis of the Clear Channel Communications common stock and the
CCE Spinco common stock in the hands of each Clear Channel Communications common stockholder after the spin-off (including any
fractional interests to which the stockholder would be entitled) will equal the aggregate basis of Clear Channel Communications common
stock held by the stockholder immediately before the spin-off, allocated between the Clear Channel Communications common stock and
the CCE Spinco common stock in proportion to the relative fair market value of each on the date of the spin-off; and (iv) the holding period
of the CCE Spinco common stock received by each Clear Channel Communications common stockholder will include the holding period at
the time of the spin-off for the Clear Channel Communications common stock on which the distribution is made, provided that the Clear
Channel Communications common stock is held as a capital asset on the date of the spin-off.

Although a private letter ruling from the IRS generally is binding on the IRS, if the factual representations or assumptions made in the
letter ruling request are untrue or incomplete in any material respect, we will not be able to rely on the ruling. Furthermore, the IRS will not
rule on whether a distribution satisfies certain requirements necessary to obtain tax-free treatment under Section 355 of the Code. Rather,
the ruling will be based upon representations by Clear Channel Communications that these conditions have been satisfied, and any
inaccuracy in such representations could invalidate the ruling. Therefore, in addition to obtaining the ruling from the IRS, Clear Channel
Communications has made it a condition to the spin-off that Clear Channel Communications obtain an opinion of Skadden, Arps, Slate,
Meagher & Flom LLP that the distribution will qualify as a tax-free distribution for U.S. federal income tax purposes under Sections 355
and 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code. The opinion will rely on the ruling as to matters covered by the ruling. In addition, the opinion will be based
on, among other things, certain assumptions and representations as to factual matters made by Clear Channel Communications and us,
which if incorrect or inaccurate in any material respect would jeopardize the conclusions reached by counsel in its opinion. The opinion
will not be binding on the IRS or the courts, and the IRS or the courts may not agree with the opinion.

Notwithstanding receipt by Clear Channel Communications of the ruling and opinion of counsel, the IRS could assert that the
distribution does not qualify for tax-free treatment for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If the IRS were successful in taking this position,
our initial public stockholders and Clear Channel Communications could be subject to significant U.S. federal income tax liability. In
general, Clear Channel Communications would be subject to tax as if it had sold the common stock of our company in a taxable sale for its
fair market value and our initial public stockholders would be subject to tax as if they had received a taxable distribution equal to the fair
market value of our common stock that was distributed to them. In addition, even if the distribution otherwise were to qualify under
Section 355 of the Code, it may be taxable to Clear Channel Communications (but not to Clear Channel Communications’ stockholders)
under Section 355(e) of the Code, if the distribution were later deemed to be part of a plan (or series of related transactions) pursuant to
which one or more persons acquire directly or indirectly stock representing a 50% or greater interest in Clear Channel Communications or
us. For this purpose, any acquisitions of Clear Channel Communications stock or of our common stock within the period beginning two
years before the distribution and ending two years after the distribution are presumed to be part of such a plan, although we or Clear
Channel Communications may be able to rebut that presumption.

Although the taxes, if any, resulting from a taxable distribution generally would be imposed on Clear Channel Communications and our
initial public stockholders, we have agreed in the tax matters agreement to indemnify Clear Channel Communications and its affiliates
against all tax-related liabilities, if any, caused by the failure of the spin-off to qualify as a tax-free transaction under Section 355 of the
Code (including as a result of Section 355(e) of the Code) if the failure to so qualify is attributable to actions, events or transactions relating
to our stock, assets or business, or a breach of the relevant representations or covenants made by us in the tax matters agreement. If the
failure of the spin-off to qualify under
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Section 355 of the Code is for any reason for which neither we nor Clear Channel Communications is responsible, we and Clear Channel
Communications have agreed in the tax matters agreement that we will each be responsible for 50% of the tax related liabilities arising
from the failure to so qualify. See “Our Relationship with Clear Channel Communications After the Distribution — Tax Matters
Agreement” for a more detailed discussion of the tax matters agreement between Clear Channel Communications and us.

U.S. Treasury regulations require each stockholder that receives stock in a spin-off to attach to the stockholder’s U.S. federal income
tax return for the year in which the spin-off occurs a detailed statement setting forth certain information relating to the tax-free nature of
the spin-off. Shortly after the spin-off, Clear Channel Communications will provide stockholders who will receive CCE Spinco shares in
the spin-off with the information necessary to comply with that requirement.

YOU ARE URGED TO CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE U.S. FEDERAL, STATE AND
LOCAL AND NON-U.S. TAX CONSEQUENCES OF THE SPIN-OFF TO YOU.

For a description of the agreements under which we and Clear Channel Communications have provided for tax sharing and other tax
matters, see “Our Relationship with Clear Channel Communications After the Distribution — Tax Matters Agreement.”

Market for Our Common Stock

There is currently no public market for our common stock. A condition to the distribution is the listing on the New York Stock
Exchange of our common stock. Our common stock has been approved for listing on the NYSE under the symbol “LYV.” We anticipate
that trading of our common stock will commence trading on a when-issued basis on or shortly before the record date. “When-issued
trading” refers to a sale or purchase made conditionally because the security has been authorized but not yet issued. On the first trading day
following the distribution date, when-issued trading with respect to our common stock will end and regular way trading will begin.
“Regular way trading” refers to trading after a security has been issued and typically involves a transaction that settles on the third full
business day following the date of the transaction. We cannot predict what the trading prices for our common stock will be before or after
the distribution date. In addition, we cannot predict any change that may occur in the trading price of Clear Channel Communications’
common stock as a result of the distribution.

The shares of our common stock distributed to Clear Channel Communications stockholders will be freely transferable, except for
shares received by persons that may have a special relationship or affiliation with us.
Pre-Distribution Transactions and Distribution Conditions

We expect that the distribution will be effective on the distribution date, , 2005, provided that, among other conditions and
transactions described in this information statement:

« the SEC has declared effective our registration statement on Form 10, of which this information statement is a part, under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and no stop order relating to the registration statement is in effect;

» we and Clear Channel Communications have received all permits, registrations and consents required under the securities or blue sky
laws of states or other political subdivisions of the United States or of foreign jurisdictions in connection with the distribution;

* Clear Channel Communications has received a private letter ruling from the IRS and the opinion of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher &
Flom LLP, in each case, to the effect that the spin-off will qualify as a tax-free distribution for U.S. federal income tax purposes under
Sections 355 and 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code;

* Clear Channel Communications has contributed $383.0 million of our outstanding intercompany note to Clear Channel
Communications to our capital and we have repaid the remaining portion of
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the intercompany note to Clear Channel Communications, prior to or concurrently with the distribution date;

* no order, injunction or decree issued by any court of competent jurisdiction or other legal restraint or prohibition preventing
consummation of the distribution or any of the transactions related thereto, including the transfers of assets and liabilities
contemplated by the master separation and distribution agreement, is in effect;

» we and Clear Channel Communications have received an opinion that we will be solvent following the distribution and the concurrent
transactions described herein;

« the Series A redeemable preferred stock and the Series B redeemable preferred stock described under “The Distribution — Preferred
Stock Issuance” have been issued,

» we have entered into the senior secured credit facility described under “Description of Indebtedness;” and

» we have received any material government approvals and other consents necessary to consummate the distribution.

The fulfillment of the foregoing transactions and conditions will not create any obligations on Clear Channel Communications’ part to
effect the distribution, and Clear Channel Communications’ board of directors has reserved the right to amend, modify or abandon the
distribution and the related transactions at any time prior to the distribution date. Clear Channel Communications’ board of directors may,
in its sole discretion, also waive any of these conditions.

In addition, Clear Channel Communications has the right not to complete the distribution if, at any time, Clear Channel
Communications’ board of directors determines, in its sole discretion, that the distribution is not in the best interest of Clear Channel
Communications or its stockholders, or that market conditions are such that it is not advisable to spin-off the entertainment business.

Reason for Furnishing this Information Statement

This information statement is being furnished solely to provide information to Clear Channel Communications stockholders who will
receive shares of CCE Spinco common stock in the distribution. It is not and is not to be construed as an inducement or encouragement to
buy, hold or sell any of our securities. We believe that the information contained in this information statement is accurate as of the date set
forth on the cover. Changes may occur after that date and neither Clear Channel Communications nor we undertake any obligation to
update the information except in the normal course of our respective public disclosure obligations.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We presently intend to retain future earnings, if any, to finance the expansion of our business. Therefore, we do not expect to pay any
cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Moreover, the terms of our senior secured credit facility and the designations of Holdco #2’s
preferred stock limit the amount of funds which we will have available to declare and distribute as dividends on our common stock.
Payment of future cash dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of our board of directors in accordance with applicable law after taking
into account various factors, including our financial condition, operating results, current and anticipated cash needs, plans for expansion and
contractual restrictions with respect to the payment of dividends.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our capitalization (1) on an actual basis as of September 30, 2005 and (2) on pro forma basis as of
September 30, 2005 as adjusted to give effect to:

« the distribution of our common stock to the stockholders of Clear Channel Communications;

* the incurrence of debt and related debt issuance costs, comprised of a $325.0 million senior secured term loan under the $575.0 million
senior secured credit facility to be entered into prior to or concurrently with the completion of the distribution;

» the issuance of mandatorily redeemable Series A preferred stock by Holdco #2 having a liquidation preference of $20 million to a
third-party investor for $20 million;

» the issuance to Clear Channel Communications of mandatorily redeemable Series B preferred stock by Holdco #2 having a liquidation
preference of $20 million in connection with the Holdco #3 Exchange, for which we will not receive any cash;

* the contribution by Clear Channel Communications to our capital of $508.0 million of the intercompany debt owed to Clear Channel
Communications;

* the retention of $125.0 million of the proceeds from borrowings under the term loan portion of our senior secured credit facility to be
used for general corporate purposes, including working capital, potential acquisitions and stock repurchases; and

* the use of $200.0 million from borrowings under the term loan portion of our senior secured credit facility and $20 million of proceeds
from the sale of the Series A preferred stock offering to repay the remaining portion of intercompany debt owed to Clear Channel
Communications.

Each of the Series A and Series B preferred stock is expected to pay an annual cash dividend of approximately 10% and will be
mandatory redeemable upon the six year anniversary of the date of issuance.

This table should be read in conjunction with “Selected Combined Financial Data,” “Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined
Financial Data,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our combined financial
statements and the notes to our combined financial statements included elsewhere in this information statement.

As of September 30, 2005

Actual As Adjusted
(In thousands)
(unaudited)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 273,474 $ 398,474
Current portion of long-term debt $ 22,546 $ 25,796
Long-term debt, net of current portion:

Debt with Clear Channel Communications 725,495 —

Senior secured credit facility — 321,750

Other long-term debt 20,038 20,038
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock(1):

Holdco #2 Series A preferred stock — 20,000

Holdco #2 Series B preferred stock — 20,000

Total long-term debt and mandatorily redeemable preferred stock 745,533 381,788

Total owner’s equity 234,016 722,011
Total capitalization $ 1,002,095 $ 1,129,595
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(1) We classify the mandatorily redeemable preferred stock as other long-term obligations in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 150 “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.”
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL DATA

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is derived from our audited combined financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 and our unaudited combined interim financial statements for the nine months ended
September 30, 2005, each of which is included elsewhere in this information statement. The unaudited combined interim financial
statements are derived from our unaudited accounting records for that period and have been prepared on a basis consistent with the audited
combined financial statements and, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments,
necessary for a fair presentation of such data. The results for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 are not necessarily indicative of
the results to be expected for the full year. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared to reflect
adjustments to our historical financial information to give effect to the following transactions, each as described elsewhere in this
information statement, as if those transactions had been completed at earlier dates:

« the distribution of our common stock to the stockholders of Clear Channel Communications;

* the incurrence of debt and related debt issuance costs, comprised of a $325.0 million senior secured term loan under the $575.0 million
senior secured credit facility to be entered into prior to or concurrently with the completion of the distribution;

« the issuance of mandatorily redeemable Series A preferred stock by Holdco #2 having a liquidation preference of $20 million to a
third-party investor for $20 million;

» the issuance to Clear Channel Communications of mandatorily redeemable Series B preferred stock by Holdco #2 having a liquidation
preference of $20 million in connection with the Holdco #3 Exchange, for which we will not receive any cash;

* the contribution by Clear Channel Communications to our capital of $508.0 million of the intercompany debt owed to Clear Channel
Communications;

« the retention of $125.0 million of the proceeds from borrowings under the term loan portion of our senior secured credit facility to be
used for general corporate purposes, including working capital, potential acquisitions and stock repurchases; and

* the use of $200.0 million from borrowings under the term loan portion of our senior secured credit facility and $20 million of proceeds
from the sale of the Series A preferred stock offering to repay the remaining portion of intercompany debt owed to Clear Channel
Communications.

Each of the Series A and Series B preferred stock is expected to pay an annual cash dividend of approximately 10% and will be
mandatory redeemable upon the six year anniversary of the date of issuance.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of income assume that these transactions occurred as of January 1, 2004 and
the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet assumes that these transactions occurred as of September 30, 2005.

You should read the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information in conjunction with our audited and unaudited
combined financial statements and the notes to the audited and unaudited combined financial statements included elsewhere herein. You
should also read the sections “Selected Combined Financial Data” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.” The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is qualified by reference to these sections, the
audited and unaudited combined financial statements and the notes to the audited and unaudited combined financial statements, each of
which is included elsewhere in this information statement.

The historical financial and other data have been prepared on a combined basis from Clear Channel Communications’ consolidated
financial statements using the historical results of operations and bases of the assets and liabilities of Clear Channel Communications
businesses and give effect to allocations of expenses
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from Clear Channel Communications. The unaudited pro forma combined financial information is not indicative of our future performance
or what our results of operations and financial position would have been if we had operated as a separate company during the periods
presented or if the transactions reflected therein had actually occurred as of January 1, 2004 or September 30, 2005, as the case may be. The
unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of income does not reflect the complete impact of one-time and ongoing incremental
costs required to operate as a separate publicly-traded company. Clear Channel Communications allocated to us $8.5 million in 2002,

$9.2 million in 2003 and $9.8 million in 2004 of expenses incurred by it for providing us accounting, treasury, tax, legal, public affairs,
executive oversight, human resources and other services. Through September 30, 2005, Clear Channel Communications allocated to us
$6.9 million of expenses. By the end of 2005, we expect to have assumed responsibility for substantially all of these services and their
related expenses. We currently believe the estimate for the costs of these services could be approximately $11.0 million to $13.0 million in
2006, our first full year as a separate publicly-traded company. However, the actual total costs of these services associated with our
transition to, and operating as, a separate publicly-traded company could be significantly greater than our estimates.

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of Income

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005
Historical Adjustments Pro Forma Historical Adjustments Pro Forma
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)

Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues $ 2,806,128 §$ — $ 2,806,128 § 2,184,588 § — $ 2,184,588
Operating Expenses:

Divisional operating expenses 2,645,293 — 2,645,293 2,050,631 — 2,050,631

Depreciation and amortization 64,095 — 64,095 46,392 — 46,392

Loss (gain) on sale of operating

assets 6,371 — 6,371 (426) — (426)

Corporate expenses 31,386 — 31,386 38,391 — 38,391
Operating income 58,983 — 58,983 49,600 — 49,600
Interest expense 3,119 25,255(b) 28,374 2,671 18,941(b) 21,612
Intercompany interest expense 42,355 (42,355)(c) — 35,719 (35,719)(c) —
Equity in earnings of nonconsolidated

affiliates 2,906 — 2,906 157 — 157
Other income (expense) — net (1,690) — (1,690) (4,157) — (4,157)
Income before income taxes 14,725 17,100 31,825 7,210 16,778 23,988
Income tax benefit (expense):

Current 55,946 (6,840)(d) 49,106 11,975 (6,711)(d) 5,264

Deferred (54,411) — (54,411) (14,859) — (14,859)
Net income $§ 16,260 § 10,260 $ 26,520 $ 4,326 $ 10,067 $ 14,393
Basic and diluted pro forma net income

per common share(a) $ 0.24 $ 039 $ 0.06 $ 0.21

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of Income

(a) Basic and diluted net income per share is calculated by dividing net income available to common stockholders by 67,565,491 shares
(based upon the number of outstanding shares of Clear Channel Communications’ common stock at November 4, 2005).

(b) Includes estimated interest expense of $2.0 million and $2.0 million related to dividends associated with the Series A and Series B
Preferred Stock, respectively. Also includes estimated annual interest
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expense of $21.3 million related to $325.0 million of indebtedness that we expect to incur prior to or concurrently with the
completion of the distribution, at an estimated annual interest rate of 6.54%, which is based upon the current 12-month LIBOR plus
1.75. Several factors could change the annual interest rate, including but not limited to a change in our credit rating or a change in the
reference rates used under the credit facilities. A 25 basis point change to the annual interest rate would change our annual interest
expense by $0.8 million. We may incur additional interest expense if we draw down under the $250.0 million revolving credit that we
expect to enter into prior to or concurrently with the completion of the distribution.

(c) Represents the elimination of intercompany interest expense incurred pursuant to intercompany indebtedness between Clear Channel
Communications and us.

(d) Represents estimated tax (expense) benefit related to the estimated interest expense adjustments discussed in notes (b) and (c) above
at our combined statutory tax rate of 40% for the year ended December 31, 2004 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2005.
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

As of September 30, 2005

Historical Adjustments Pro Forma
(In thousands)
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 273,474 $ 125,000(a) $ 398,474
Accounts receivable, net 241,936 — 241,936
Prepaid expenses 218,293 — 218,293
Other current assets 48,617 — 48,617
Total Current Assets 782,320 125,000 907,320
Property, plant & equipment, net 815,270 — 815,270
Intangible Assets:
Definite-lived intangibles, net 12,787 — 12,787
Goodwill 143,170 — 143,170
Other Assets:
Notes receivable 6,436 — 6,436
Investments in, and advances to, nonconsolidated affiliates 25,281 — 25,281
Deferred tax asset 87,069 — 87,069
Other assets 19,900 2,500(b) 22,400
Total Assets $ 1,892,233 $ 127,500 $ 2,019,733
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As of September 30, 2005

(In thousands) Historical Adjustments Pro Forma

(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred income
Accrued expenses
Current portion of long-term debt

Total Current Liabilities

Long-term debt
Debt with Clear Channel Communications
Other long-term liabilities

Holdco #2 Series A and Series B Preferred Stock
Minority interest
Owner’s Equity:

Common Stock

Additional paid-in capital

Owner’s net investment

Retained deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total Owner’s Equity
Total Liabilities and Owner’s Equity

Liabilities and Owner’s Equity

$ 67,125 $ —
240,753 —
469,354 —
22,546 3,250(c)
799,778 3,250
20,038 321,750(c)
725,495 (725,495)(d)
84,399 —
— 40,000(e)
28,507 —
— 676(f)
— 4,896,622(g)
4,409,303 (4,409,303)(h)
(4,183,529) —
8,242 _
234,016 487,995
$ 1892233 $ 127,500

$ 67,125
240,753
469,354

25,796

803,028
341,788
84,399
40,000
28,507

676
4,896,622

(4,183,529)
8,242
722,011

s 2019733

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2005

(a) Represents $125.0 million of the net proceeds from borrowings under the term loan portion of our senior secured credit facility that
will be retained as cash to be used for general corporate purposes, including working capital, potential acquisitions and stock

repurchases.

(b) We expect to record approximately $2.5 million in debt issuance costs in connection with the incurrence of the debt described in

note (c) below.

(¢) Prior to or concurrently with the completion of the distribution, we intend to incur $325.0 million in long-term indebtedness, of which
$3.3 million represents the current portion. We may incur additional indebtedness if we draw down under the $250.0 million revolving
credit facility that we expect to enter into prior to or concurrently with the completion of the distribution.

(d) Our debt with Clear Channel Communications will be paid or otherwise contributed to our capital concurrently with or prior to the

distribution.

(e) Represents the redemption value of the 200,000 shares of Series A and the 200,000 shares of Series B preferred stock issued by Holdco

#2.

(f) Represents the par value of 67,565,491 shares of our common stock (based on the number of outstanding shares of Clear Channel
Communications common stock outstanding at November 4, 2005).

(g) Represents (i) the reclassification of “owner’s net investment” into “Additional paid-in capital,” (ii) the portion of our debt with Clear
Channel Communications that was contributed to our capital, and (iii) the balancing entry to set up the par value of our common stock.

(h) Represents a reclassification into additional paid-in capital.
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SELECTED COMBINED FINANCIAL DATA

The historical financial and other data have been prepared on a combined basis from Clear Channel Communications consolidated
financial statements using the historical results of operations and bases of the assets and liabilities of Clear Channel Communications’
businesses and give effect to allocations of expenses from Clear Channel Communications. The historical combined statement of income
data set forth below does not reflect changes that will occur in the operations and funding of our company as a result of our spin-off from
Clear Channel Communications. The historical combined balance sheet data set forth below reflect the assets and liabilities that were or are
expected to be transferred to our company in accordance with the master agreement.

The selected combined financial data should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified by reference to, “Unaudited Pro Forma
Condensed Combined Financial Data,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the
historical audited and interim unaudited financial statements and the accompanying notes thereto of us and our consolidated subsidiaries
included elsewhere in this information statement. The combined statements of operations set forth below for the period from August 1,
2000 through December 31, 2000 and the year ended December 31, 2001 and the combined balance sheet data as of December 31, 2000
and 2001 are derived from our unaudited financial statements. The combined balance sheet data for the year ended December 31, 2002 is
derived from our audited financial statements. The combined statements of operations and cash flow data for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2004, and the combined balance sheet data for each of the periods as of December 31, 2003 and 2004, are
derived from the audited combined financial statements included elsewhere in this information statement, and should be read in conjunction
with those combined financial statements and the accompanying notes. The combined statement of operations and cash flow data set forth
below for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and 2004, and the consolidated balance sheet data for the nine months ended
September 30, 2005, are derived from the unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this information statement. In
management’s opinion, these unaudited combined financial statements have been prepared on substantially the same basis as the audited
financial statements and include all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the
financial data for the periods presented. The results of operations for the interim period are not necessarily indicative of the operating
results for the entire year or any future period.

We have not presented cash flow data for the five months ended December 31, 2000 because this was our first partial year of operations
as a subsidiary of Clear Channel Communications and this period is not comparable to the annual periods presented. We also have not
presented cash flow data for the year ended December 31, 2001 because we believe it is not comparable to the three subsequent years,
which are presented, because 2001 was the first full year after the acquisition of our business by Clear Channel Communications and
during 2002, 2003 and 2004 Clear Channel Communications significantly expanded our operations. Therefore, the cash flow statements for
these periods are not otherwise available and we believe that the cost associated with creating the cash flow statement for these periods
would outweigh the benefits that the data would provide to our stockholders.

The financial information presented below may not reflect what our results of operations, financial position and cash flows would have
been had we operated as a separate, stand-alone entity during the periods presented or what our results of operations, financial position and
cash flows will be in the future.
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The following table presents a non-GAAP financial measure, OIBDAN, which we use to evaluate segment and consolidated
performance of our business. OIBDAN is not calculated or presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, or
GAAP. In Note 4 and “— Non-GAAP Financial Measure” below, we explain OIBDAN and reconcile it to operating income (loss), its most
directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP.

Five Months Nine Months Ended
Ended Year Ended December 31, Sef ber 30,
December 31,
(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2000(1) 2001 2002 2003 2004 2004 2005
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)

Results of Operations Data:
Revenue $ 984,048 $ 2,543,668 $§ 2,473,319 $ 2,707,902 $ 2,806,128 $ 2,261,879 $ 2,184,588
Operating Expenses:

Divisional operating expenses 904,442 2,386,504 2,302,707 2,506,635 2,645,293 2,107,785 2,050,631

Depreciation and amortization 118,040 299,343 64,836 63,436 64,095 47,499 46,392

Loss (gain) on sale of operating

assets (369) (1,278) (15,241) (978) 6,371 7,400 (426)

Corporate expenses 14,422 49,294 26,101 30,820 31,386 19,977 38,391
Operating income (loss) (52,487) (190,195) 94,916 107,989 58,983 79,218 49,600
Interest expense 17,758 9,476 3,998 2,788 3,119 2,198 2,671
Intercompany interest expense 17,643 65,501 58,608 41,415 42,355 32,550 35,719
Equity in earnings (loss) of

nonconsolidated affiliates 1,958 6,690 (212) 1,357 2,906 3,231 157
Other income (expense) — net 1,985 3,213 332 3,224 (1,690) (1,437) (4,157)
Income (loss) before income taxes

and cumulative effect of a change

in accounting principle (83,945) (255,269) 32,430 68,367 14,725 46,264 7,210
Income tax benefit (expense):

Current 213,056 44,112 (40,102) 68,272 55,946 42,633 11,975

Deferred (206,942) (43,581) 11,103 (79,607) (54,411) (37,808) (14,859)

Income (loss) before cumulative

effect of a change in accounting

principle (77,831) (254,738) 3,431 57,032 16,260 51,089 4,326
Cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle, net of tax of

$198,640(2) — — (3,932,007) — — — —
Net income (loss) § (77.831) § (254,738) $ (3,928,576) § 57,032 § 16260 § 51,089 § 4,326

Basic and diluted pro forma income
(loss) before cumulative effect of
a change in accounting principle

per common share(3) $ (1.15) $ (3.77) $ 005 $ 084 § 024 § 076 $ 0.06
Segment Data:
Revenue:
Global Music $ 695,162 $ 1,847,731 § 1,821,215 $ 2,069,857 $ 2,201,007 $ 1,793,072 $ 1,708,369
Global Theater 137,547 316,159 296,460 318,219 313,974 222,871 233,265
Other 151,339 379,778 355,644 319,826 291,147 245,936 242,954
Total Revenue $ 984,048 $ 2,543,668 $§ 2473319 $ 2,707,902 $ 2,806,128 $ 2,261,879 $ 2,184,588
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Five Months Nine Months Ended
Ended Year Ended December 31, September 30,
December 31,
2000(1) 2001 2002 2003 2004 2004 2005
(In thousands)
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(unaudited)

Operating income (loss):

Global Music $  (26,407) $ (102,037) $ 97,731 $ 111,326 $ 85457 $ 94,269 $ 85,604
Global Theater (11,879) (26,155) 30,352 22,714 20,996 12,973 2,742
Other 3,804 (4,817) (1,342) 10,156 (11,147 (4,281) 2,923
Corporate (18,005) (57,186) (31,825) (36,207) (36,323) (23,743) (41,669)
Total operating income
(loss) $  (52,487) $  (190,195) $§ 94916 $ 107,989 $ 58,983 $ 79,218 $ 49,600
Cash Flow Data:
Cash flows provided by
(used in):
Operating activities $ 142,237 $ 138,713 $ 119,898 $ 88,557 $ 2,203
Investing activities $ (31,329) $ (51,960) $ (84,076) $ (64,662) S (72,603)
Financing activities $ (112,281) $ (56,894) § 23254 $ 44331 $ 156,618

Capital expenditures $ 68,185 $ 69,936 $ 73435 $ 56,516 $ 71,997

Other Data:

OIBDAN(4)

Global Music $ 57,124 $ 108,765 $ 127,881 $ 145,725 $ 119,062 $ 118,412 $ 112,935
Global Theater 12,060 36,648 41,489 35,899 35,647 23,929 14,133
Other 10,422 11,751 1,242 19,643 6,126 11,753 6,889
Corporate (14,422) (45,343) (24,700) (29,518) (30,302) (19,216) (36,656)
Total OIBDAN(4) $ 65,184 $ 111,821 $ 145912 $ 171,749 $ 130,533 $ 134,878 $ 97,301
As of December 31, As of
September 30,
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Balance Sheet Data:

Total assets $ 5,188,500 $ 5,391,088 $ 1,518,644 $ 1,495,715 $ 1,478,706 $ 1,892,233

Long-term debt, including

current maturities $ 829,649 $ 1,112,842 $ 622,831 $ 617,838 $ 650,675 $ 768,079

Owner’s equity $ 3,768,934 $ 3,701,975 $ 230914 $ 188,283 $ 156,976 $ 234,016

(1) Represents our operations commencing on August 1, 2000 (when Clear Channel Communications acquired our live entertainment
business) to December 31, 2000.

(2) Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for the year ended December 31, 2002, related to impairment of goodwill
recognized in accordance with the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets.”

(3) Basic and diluted income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle per share is calculated by dividing income
(loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding.
The historic basic and diluted income (loss) before cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles is based on shares outstanding
and the pro forma basic and diluted income (loss) before cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles is based on
67,565,491 shares outstanding (based on the number of outstanding shares of Clear Channel Communications’ common stock at
November 4, 2005.)

(4) We evaluate segment and consolidated performance based on several factors, one of the primary measures of which is operating

income (loss) before depreciation, amortization, loss (gain) on sale of operating assets and non-cash compensation expense, which we
refer to as OIBDAN. See “— Non-GAAP Financial Measure” below, “Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Data”
and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — OIBDAN"".
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Non-GAAP Financial Measure

In addition to operating income, we evaluate segment and combined performance based on other factors, one primary measure of which
is operating income (loss) before depreciation, amortization, loss (gain) on sale of operating assets and non-cash compensation expense,
which we refer to as OIBDAN. We use OIBDAN as a measure of the operational strengths and performance of our business and not as a
measure of liquidity. However, a limitation of the use of OIBDAN as a performance measure is that it does not reflect the periodic costs of
certain capitalized tangible and intangible assets used in generating revenues in our business. Accordingly, OIBDAN should be considered
in addition to, and not as a substitute for, operating income (loss), net income (loss) and other measures of financial performance reported in
accordance with U.S. GAAP. Furthermore, this measure may vary among other companies; thus, OIBDAN as presented below may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies.

We believe OIBDAN is useful to investors and other external users of our financial statements in evaluating our operating performance
because it helps investors more meaningfully evaluate and compare the results of our operations from period to period and with those of
other companies in the entertainment industry (to the extent the same components of OIBDAN are used), in each case without regard to
items such as non-cash depreciation and amortization and non-cash compensation expense, which can vary depending upon the accounting
method used and the book value of assets.

Our management uses OIBDAN (i) as a measure for planning and forecasting overall and individual expectations and for evaluating
actual results against such expectations, (ii) as a basis for incentive bonuses paid to certain employees and (iii) in presentations to our board
of directors to enable them to have the same consistent measurement basis of operating performance used by management.

The following table presents a reconciliation of OIBDAN to operating income, which is a GAAP measure of our operating results:

Five Months Nine Months Ended
Ended Year Ended December 31, September 30,
December 31,
2000(1) 2001 2002 2003 2004 2004 2005
(In thousands)
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
Reconciliation of OIBDAN to
Operating Income (loss):
OIBDAN $ 65,184 $ 111,821 $ 145912 $ 171,749 $ 130,533 $ 134,878 $ 97,301
Depreciation and amortization 118,040 299,343 64,836 63,436 64,095 47,499 46,392
Loss (gain) on sale of
operating assets (369) (1,278) (15,241) (978) 6,371 7,400 (426)
Non-cash compensation
expense* — 3,951 1,401 1,302 1,084 761 1,735
Operating income (loss) $ (52,487) $  (190,195) $ 94916 $ 107,989 $ 58,983 $ 79,218 $ 49,600

* Non-cash compensation expense, which is based on an allocation from Clear Channel Communications and is related to issuance of Clear
Channel Communications stock awards, is included in corporate expenses in our statement of operations.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations together with the audited and unaudited
combined financial statements and notes to the financial statements included elsewhere in this information statement. This discussion
contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The forward-looking statements are not historical facts, but
rather are based on current expectations, estimates, assumptions and projections about our industry, business and future financial results.
Our actual results could differ materially from the results contemplated by these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors,
including those discussed in the sections of this information statement entitled “Risk Factors,” “Special Note About Forward-Looking
Statements” and other sections in this information statement.

Overview

On April 29, 2005, Clear Channel Communications announced its intention to separate its entertainment business into a separate
publicly-traded company. We were incorporated in Delaware on August 2, 2005 to effect the separation, and currently are a wholly owned
subsidiary of Clear Channel Communications. We will have no material assets or activities as a separate corporate entity until the
contribution to us by Clear Channel Communications, prior to the completion of the spin-off, of the business described in this information
statement. Clear Channel Communications conducted such business through various subsidiaries, principally representing the entertainment
segment. Clear Channel Communications will distribute all of our common stock to the stockholders of Clear Channel Communications.

Basis of Presentation

The combined financial statements are comprised of entities included in the consolidated financial statements and accounting records of
Clear Channel Communications, principally representing the live entertainment segment, using the historical results of operations and the
historical basis of assets and liabilities of our business. The combined statements of operations include expense allocations for certain
corporate functions historically provided to us by Clear Channel Communications, including general corporate expenses, employee benefits
and incentives, and interest expense. These allocations were made on a specifically identifiable basis or using the relative percentages, as
compared to Clear Channel Communications’ other businesses, of net sales, payroll, fixed assets, inventory and other assets, headcount or
other reasonable methods. We and Clear Channel Communications consider these allocations to be a reasonable reflection of the utilization
of services provided. We expect that our expenses as a separate publicly-traded company may be significantly higher than the amounts
reflected in the combined statements of operations.

We will incur increased costs as a result of becoming an independent publicly traded company, primarily from audit fees paid to our
independent public accounting firm, Public Company Accounting Oversight Board fees, the hiring of additional staff to fulfill reporting
requirements of a public company, NYSE listing fees, legal fees and stockholder communications fees. We will bear the costs of certain
services currently provided to us by Clear Channel Communications. We believe cash flow from operations will be sufficient to fund these
additional corporate expenses.

We do not anticipate that increased costs solely from becoming an independent publicly traded company will have an adverse effect on
our growth rates in the future because we will be substantially the same entity as the entertainment segment of Clear Channel
Communications. Our success will continue to be highly dependent on the overall health of the local and national economies in which we
operate and the availability of affordable and desirable content. We anticipate that being an independent publicly traded company will
(1) provide a stock-based currency that could potentially be used for incentive programs to better attract, retain and motivate current and
future employees through the use of equity-based compensation policies that more directly link employee compensation with our financial
performance, (2) permit our management to focus its attention and our financial resources on our distinct business and
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business challenges and to lead us to adopt strategies and pursue objectives that are appropriate to our respective business and (3) allow us
to have better access to the capital markets in connection with acquisitions and financings after the separation as our investors will not be
forced to understand and make investment decisions with respect to Clear Channel Communications’ business.

We believe the assumptions underlying the combined financial statements are reasonable. However, the combined financial statements
included herein may not necessarily reflect our results of operations, financial position and cash flows in the future or what our results of
operations, financial position and cash flows would have been had we been a separate, stand-alone company during the periods presented.

Introduction

Management’s discussion and analysis, or MD&A, of our results of operations and financial condition is provided as a supplement to
the audited annual financial statements and unaudited interim financial statements and footnotes thereto included elsewhere herein to help
provide an understanding of our financial condition, changes in financial condition and results of our operations. The information included
in MD&A should be read in conjunction with the annual and interim financial statements. MD&A is organized as follows:

* Business overview. This section provides a general description of our business, as well as other matters that we believe are important in
understanding our results of operations and financial condition and in anticipating future trends.

» Combined results of operations. This section provides an analysis of our results of operations for the nine months ended September 30,
2005 and 2004, and the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. Our discussion is presented on both a combined and segment
basis. Our reportable operating segments are global music, global theater and other. Approximately 70% of our revenue is derived in
North America, with the remainder being derived internationally, primarily in the United Kingdom, Sweden and Holland. We manage
our operating segments primarily on their operating income (loss) before depreciation, amortization, loss (gain) on sale of assets and
non-cash compensation expense, which we refer to as OIBDAN. Since a significant portion of our business is conducted in foreign
markets, principally Europe, management looks at the operating results from our foreign operations on a constant dollar basis, which
allows for comparison of operations independent of foreign exchange movements. Corporate expenses, interest expense, equity in
earnings (loss) of nonconsolidated affiliates, other income (expense) — net, income taxes and cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle are managed on a total company basis and are, therefore, included only in our discussion of combined results.

In addition to operating income, we evaluate segment and combined performance based on other factors, one primary measure of
which is operating income (loss) before depreciation, amortization, loss (gain) on sale of assets and non-cash compensation expense,
which we refer to as OIBDAN. While we use OIBDAN as a measure of the operational strengths and performance of our business,
we do not use it as a measure of liquidity. However, a limitation of the use of OIBDAN as a performance measure is that it does not
reflect the periodic costs of certain capitalized tangible and intangible assets used in generating revenues in our business.
Accordingly, OIBDAN should be considered in addition to, not as a substitute for, operating income (loss), net income (loss) and
other measures of financial performance reported in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Furthermore, this measure may vary among other
companies; thus, OIBDAN as presented below may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies.

We believe OIBDAN is useful to an investor in evaluating our operating performance because it helps investors more
meaningfully evaluate and compare the results of our operations from period to period without regard to items such as non-cash
depreciation and amortization and non-cash compensation expense, which can vary depending upon the accounting method used and
the book value of assets. This measure also excludes loss (gain) on sale of assets, which we exclude when measuring segment
performance.
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Our management uses OIBDAN (i) as a measure for planning and forecasting overall and individual expectations and for
evaluating actual results against such expectations, (ii) as a basis for incentive bonuses paid to certain employees and (iii) in
presentations to our board of directors to enable them to have the same consistent measurement basis of operating performance used
by management.

* Liquidity and capital resources. This section provides a discussion of our financial condition as of December 31, 2004 and
September 30, 2005, as well as an analysis of our cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 and 2004 and the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. The discussion of our financial condition and liquidity includes summaries of (i) our primary
sources of liquidity and (ii) our outstanding debt and commitments (both firm and contingent) that existed at December 31, 2004 and
on a pro forma basis to reflect the term loans under our new senior secured credit facility and Holdco #2’s issuance of mandatorily
redeemable preferred stock.

* Seasonality. This section discusses the seasonal performance of our global music, global theater and other segments. Because of the
seasonality of our business, the results for the nine months ended September 30 are not necessarily indicative of full-year performance.

* Market risk management. This section discusses how we manage exposure to potential losses arising from adverse changes in foreign
currency exchange and interest rates.

* Recent accounting pronouncements and critical accounting policies. This section discusses accounting policies considered to be
important to our financial condition and results of operations, which require significant judgment and estimates on the part of
management in their application. In addition, all of our significant accounting policies, including our critical accounting policies, are
summarized in Note A to our combined financial statements included elsewhere in this information statement.

Business Overview

We believe we are one of the world’s largest diversified promoters and producers of, and venue operators for, live entertainment
events. For the year ended December 31, 2004, we promoted or produced over 28,500 events, including music concerts, theatrical
performances, specialized motor sports and other events, with total attendance exceeding 61 million. In addition, we believe we operate one
of the largest networks of venues used principally for music concerts and theatrical performances in the United States and Europe. As of
September 30, 2005, we owned or operated 117 venues, consisting of 75 domestic and 42 international venues. These venues include
39 amphitheaters, 58 theaters, 14 clubs, four arenas and two festival sites. In addition, through equity, booking or similar arrangements we
have the right to book events at 33 additional venues. Approximately 90% of our total revenues for 2004 resulted from our promotion or
production of music concerts and theatrical performances and from revenues related to our owned or operated venues.

Our Business Segments

We operate in two reportable business segments: global music and global theater. In addition, we operate in the specialized motor
sports, sport representation and other businesses, which are included under “other.”

Global Music. Our global music business principally involves the promotion or production of live music shows and tours by music
artists in our owned and operated venues and in rented third-party venues. For the year ended December 31, 2004, our global music
business generated approximately $2.2 billion, or 78%, of our total revenues. We promoted or produced over 10,000 events in 2004,
including tours for artists such as Madonna, Sting, Dave Matthews Band and Toby Keith. In addition, we produced several large festivals in
Europe, including Rock Werchter in Belgium and the North Sea Jazz Festival in Holland. Part of our growth strategy is to expand our
promotion and production of festivals, particularly in
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Europe. While our global music business operates year-round, we experience higher revenues during the second and third quarters due to
the seasonal nature of our amphitheaters and international festivals, which are primarily used during or occur in May through September.

Global Theater. Our global theater business presents and produces touring and other theatrical performances. Our touring theatrical
performances consist primarily of revivals of previous commercial successes and new productions of theatrical performances playing on
Broadway in New York City or the West End in London. For the year ended December 31, 2004, our global theater business generated
approximately $314.0 million, or 11%, of our total revenues. In 2004, we presented or produced over 12,000 theatrical performances of
productions such as The Producers, The Lion King, Mamma Mia! and Chicago. We pre-sell tickets for our touring shows through one of
the largest subscription series in the United States and Canada in approximately 45 touring markets. While our global theater business
operates year-round, we experience higher revenues during September through April, which coincides with the theatrical touring season.

Other. We believe we are one of the largest promoters and producers of specialized motor sports events, primarily in North America. In
2004, we held over 600 events in stadiums, arenas and other venues, including monster truck shows, supercross races, motocross races,
freestyle motocross events and motorcycle road racing. In addition, we own numerous trademarked properties, including monster trucks
such as Grave Diggertm and Blue Thundertm, which generate additional licensing revenues. While our specialized motor sports business
operates year-round, we experience higher revenues during January through March, which is the period when a larger number of
specialized motor sports events occur.

We also provide integrated sports marketing and management services, primarily for professional athletes. Our marketing and
management services generally involve our negotiation of player contracts with professional sports teams and of endorsement contracts
with major brands. As of September 30, 2005, we had approximately 600 clients, including Tracy McGrady (basketball), David Ortiz
(baseball), Tom Lehman (golf), Andy Roddick (tennis), Roy E. Williams (football) and Steven Gerrard (soccer).

We also promote and produce other live entertainment events, including family shows, such as Dora the Explorer and Blue’s Clues, as
well as museum and other exhibitions, such as Saint Peter and The Vatican: The Legacy of the Popes. In addition, we produce and
distribute television shows and DVDs, including programs such as A&E Biographies: Rod Stewart and HBO Sports’ The Curse of the
Bambino.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, businesses included under “other” generated approximately $291.1 million, or 11%, of our total
revenues.

Our Business Activities
We principally act in the following capacities, performing one, some or all of these roles in connection with our events and tours:

Promotion. As a promoter, we typically book performers, arrange performances and tours, secure venues, provide for third-party
production services, sell tickets and advertise events to attract audiences. We earn revenues primarily from the sale of tickets and pay
performers under one of several formulas, including a fixed guaranteed amount and/or a percentage of ticket sales. For each event, we
either use a venue we own or operate, or rent a third-party venue. In our global theater business, we generally refer to promotion as
presentation. Revenues related to promotion activities represent the majority of our combined revenues. These revenues are generally
related to the volume of ticket sales and ticket prices. Event costs, included in divisional operating expenses, such as artist and production
service expenses, are typically substantial in relation to the revenues. As a result, significant increases or decreases in promotion revenue do
not typically result in comparable changes to operating income.

Production. As a producer, we generally develop event content, hire directors and artistic talent, develop sets and costumes, and
coordinate the actual performances of the events. We produce tours on a global, national and regional basis. We generate revenues from
fixed producer fees and by sharing in a percentage of event or tour profits primarily related to the sale of tickets, merchandise and event and
tour
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sponsorships. These production revenues are generally related to the size and profitability of the production. Production costs, included in
divisional operating expenses, are typically substantial in relation to the revenues. As a result, significant increases or decreases in
production revenue do not typically result in comparable changes to operating income.

Venue Operation. As a venue operator, we contract with promoters to rent our venues for events and provide related services such as
concessions, merchandising, parking, security, ushering and ticket-taking. We generate revenues primarily from rental income, ticket
service charges, premium seating and venue sponsorships, as well as sharing in percentages of concessions, merchandise and parking. Our
outdoor entertainment venues are primarily used, and our international festivals occur, during May through September. As a result, we
experience higher revenues during the second and third quarters. Revenues generated from venue operations, which are partially driven by
attendance, typically have a significantly higher margin than promotion or production revenues and therefore typically have a more direct
relationship to operating income.

Sponsorships and Advertising. We actively pursue the sale of national and local sponsorships and placement of advertising, including
signage, promotional programs, naming of subscription series and tour sponsorships. Many of our venues also have name-in-title
sponsorship programs. We believe national sponsorships allow us to maximize our network of venues and to arrange multi-venue branding
opportunities for advertisers. Our national sponsorship programs have included companies such as American Express, Anheuser Busch and
Coca-Cola. Our local and venue-focused sponsorships include venue signage, promotional programs, on-site activation, hospitality and
tickets, and are derived from a variety of companies across various industry categories. Revenues generated from sponsorships and
advertising typically have a significantly higher margin than promotion or production revenues and therefore typically have a more direct
relationship to operating income.
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Combined Results of Operations

Nine Months Ended
September 30, Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2005 2004 2004 2003 2002
(unaudited)
Revenue $ 2,184,588 $ 2,261,879 $ 2,806,128 $ 2,707,902 $ 2,473,319
Operating expenses:
Divisional operating expenses 2,050,631 2,107,785 2,645,293 2,506,635 2,302,707
Depreciation and amortization 46,392 47,499 64,095 63,436 64,836
Loss (gain) on sale of operating
assets (426) 7,400 6,371 978) (15,241)
Corporate expenses 38,391 19,977 31,386 30,820 26,101
Operating income 49,600 79,218 58,983 107,989 94,916
Interest expense 2,671 2,198 3,119 2,788 3,998
Intercompany interest expense 35,719 32,550 42,355 41,415 58,608
Equity in earnings (loss) of
nonconsolidated affiliates 157 3,231 2,906 1,357 (212)
Other income (expense) — net (4,157) (1,437) (1,690) 3,224 332
Income before income taxes and
cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle 7,210 46,264 14,725 68,367 32,430
Income tax (expense) benefit:
Current 11,975 42,633 55,946 68,272 (40,102)
Deferred (14,859) (37,808) (54,411) (79,607) 11,103
Income before cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle 4,326 51,089 16,260 57,032 3,431
Cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle, net of tax of,
$198,640 — — — — (3,932,007)
Net income (loss) $ 4,326 $ 51,089 $ 16,260 $ 57,032 $  (3,928,576)
Nine Months Ended
September 30, Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
(unaudited)
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 2,203 $ 88,557 $ 119,898 $ 138,713 $ 142,237
Investing activities $ (72,603) $ (64,662) $ (84,076) $ (51,960) $ (31,329)
Financing activities $ 156,618 $ 44331 $ 23,254 $  (56,894) $  (112,281)
OIBDAN Reconciliation to Operating Income
Nine Months Ended
September 30, Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2005 2004 2004 2003 2002
(unaudited)
Operating income $ 49,600 $ 79,218 $ 58,983 $ 107,989 $ 94916
Depreciation and amortization 46,392 47,499 64,095 63,436 64,836
Loss (gain) on sale of operating assets (426) 7,400 6,371 (978) (15,241)
Non-cash compensation expense* 1,735 761 1,084 1,302 1,401
OIBDAN $ 97,301 $ 134,878 $ 130,533 $ 171,749 $ 145912

* Non-cash compensation expense, which is based on an allocation from Clear Channel Communications and is related to issuance of Clear
Channel Communications stock awards, is included in corporate expenses in our statement of operations.
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Revenue

Our combined revenue decreased $77.3 million, or 3%, during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as compared to the same
period in 2004 primarily due to a decrease in our global music and other operations of $84.7 million and $3.0 million, respectively. These
decreases were partially offset by a $10.4 million increase in global theater revenue. Included in the nine months ended September 30, 2005
is approximately $11.2 million from increases in foreign exchange rates as compared to the same period of 2004.

Our combined revenue increased $98.2 million, or 4%, in fiscal year 2004 as compared to fiscal year 2003 due to an increase in global
music revenue of $131.2 million. Partially offsetting this increase were declines in revenue from our other operations and global theater of
$28.7 million and $4.2 million, respectively. Included in the fiscal year 2004 results is approximately $74.3 million, or 76% of the total
increase in combined revenues, from increases in foreign exchange rates as compared to the same period of 2003.

Our combined revenue increased $234.6 million, or 10%, during fiscal year 2003 as compared to fiscal year 2002 due to an increase in
global music and global theater revenue of $248.6 million and $21.8 million, respectively. Partially offsetting these increases was a decline
in revenue for other operations of $35.8 million. Included in the fiscal year 2003 results is approximately $88.9 million, or 38% of the total
increase in combined revenues, from increases in foreign exchange rates as compared to the same period of 2002.

Divisional Operating Expenses

Our combined divisional operating expenses decreased $57.2 million, or 3%, during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as
compared to the same period in 2004 due to a decrease in our global music segment of $79.2 million. Partially offsetting this decrease were
increases in global theater and other operations of $20.2 million and $1.9 million, respectively. Divisional operating expenses for 2005
include $8.4 million in expenses related to a reorganization and reductions in personnel. This reorganization and recording of additional
expenses not yet incurred related to the reorganization are expected to be complete by year end. Included in the nine months ended
September 30, 2005 results is approximately $10.9 million from increases in foreign exchange rates as compared to the same period of
2004.

Our combined divisional operating expenses increased $138.7 million, or 6%, in fiscal year 2004 as compared to fiscal year 2003 due to
a $157.8 million increase in global music divisional operating expenses, partially offset by a decrease in divisional operating expenses from
our other operations and global theater of $15.2 million and $4.0 million, respectively. Included in the fiscal year 2004 results is
approximately $68.0 million from increases in foreign exchange rates as compared to the same period of 2003.

Our combined divisional operating expenses increased $203.9 million, or 9%, in fiscal year 2003 as compared to fiscal year 2002 due to
an increase in our global music and global theater divisional operating expenses of $230.8 million and $27.3 million, respectively. Partially
offsetting these increases was a $54.2 million decline in divisional operating expenses for other operations. Included in the fiscal year 2003
results is approximately $81.3 million from increases in foreign exchange rates as compared to the same period of 2002.

Loss (Gain) on sale of operating assets

Our gain on sale of operating assets increased $7.8 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as compared to the same
period in 2004 due primarily to the divestiture of our international leisure center operations during the second quarter of 2004.

Our loss on sale of operating assets increased $7.3 million during 2004 as compared to 2003 primarily due to the sale of our
international leisure center operations during the second quarter of 2004.
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Our gain on sale of operating assets decreased $14.3 million during 2003 as compared to 2002 primarily due to the sale of our
international cinema and bingo operations during 2002.

Corporate Expenses

Corporate expenses increased $18.4 million, or 92%, during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as compared to the nine months
ended September 30, 2004 as the result of a $12.5 million increase in litigation contingencies and expenses as well as $3.7 million related
to severance payments during 2005. Additional litigation contingencies and expenses are reflected in divisional operating expenses within
our other operations.

Corporate expenses increased $0.6 million, or 2%, in the fiscal year ended 2004 as compared to 2003, primarily due to increases in
litigation and rent expenses, partially offset by declines in performance-based bonus expense for the period.

Corporate expenses increased $4.7 million, or 18%, in the fiscal year ended 2003 as compared to 2002 primarily due to a $4.1 million
royalty fee that Clear Channel Communications began charging on January 1, 2003.

OIBDAN

Our combined OIBDAN decreased $37.6 million, or 28%, during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as compared to the same
period in 2004. Global music OIBDAN decreased $5.5 million primarily as a result of a reduction in the number of domestic events,
attendance and ticket prices. Global theater OIBDAN decreased $9.8 million during this period primarily due to a reduction in the
investment value of several domestic productions. During the nine months ended September 30, 2005, we experienced an increase of
approximately $37.1 million related to litigation reserves and expenses, as well as severance and other costs related to our reorganization,
which contributed to the OIBDAN decline as compared to the same period of 2004. For 2005 we estimate that we will incur severance
expenses of approximately $14.0 million, approximately $6.1 million of which is included above, and approximately $7.9 million will be
incurred in the fourth quarter, which we expect to result in savings of approximately $20.0 million in employee expenses during 2006. This
forecast reflects our judgment as of the date of the information statement of conditions we believe will exist and the course of action we
expect to take in the fourth quarter of 2005; however, we can give no assurance that we will be able to achieve cost savings of $20.0 million
in 2006.

Our combined OIBDAN decreased $41.2 million, or 24%, in fiscal year 2004 as compared to fiscal year 2003 primarily due to a
decrease in global music of $26.7 million. This decrease resulted primarily from higher talent costs in relation to related revenues as well as
a reduction in the number of domestic amphitheater events and attendance. In addition, other operations decreased $13.5 million during the
period principally as a result of a $3.5 million increase in litigation reserves and expenses, and $2.4 million related to the divestiture of a
television production business during 2003.

Our combined OIBDAN increased $25.8 million, or 18%, in fiscal year 2003 as compared to fiscal year 2002 due to an increase in other
operations and global music of $18.4 million and $17.8 million, respectively. The increase in other operations is largely due to a
$6.9 million increase in television production results and an $8.3 million increase in sponsorship income. The global music increase in
OIBDAN is primarily due to an increase in attendance as well as an increase in sponsorship and premium seat revenues.

Intercompany Interest Expense

The increases and decreases in intercompany interest expense are directly related to the respective increase or decrease in average debt
outstanding as the rate charged remained relatively consistent throughout the periods.
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Our weighted average cost of debt during all periods was 7.0%. Our intercompany debt balances owed to Clear Channel
Communications as of September 30, 2005 and December 31, 2004 and 2003 were:

As of December 31,

As of
September 30, 2005 2004 2003
(In millions) (unaudited)

$725.5 $ 628.9 $ 595.2

Equity in Earnings (Loss) of Nonconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings (loss) of nonconsolidated affiliates decreased $3.1 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as
compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2004 primarily as a result of impairments and losses in several of our nonconsolidated
other operations affiliates during 2005.

For the fiscal year ended 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003, equity in earnings of nonconsolidated affiliates increased $1.5 million
primarily as a result of no impairments and fewer losses during 2004 in our nonconsolidated other operations affiliates as compared to the
same period of 2003.

For the fiscal year ended 2003 as compared to 2002, equity in earnings of nonconsolidated affiliates increased $1.6 million primarily
due to an increase in earnings from our nonconsolidated global theater affiliates.
Other Income (Expense) — Net

The principal components of other income (expense) — net, for the applicable periods, were:

Nine Months
Ended

September 30, Year Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2005 2004 2004 2003 2002
(unaudited)

Interest income $ 15 $ 15 $ 32 $ 6.9 $ 2.1
Minority interest expense (5.5 2.7) 3.3) (3.3) 3.8)
Other, net (0.2) (0.2) (1.6) (0.4) 2.0
Other income (expense) — net $ 4.2 $ (1.4 $ 1.7 $§ 32 $ 0.3

Income Taxes

Current tax benefit for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 decreased $30.7 million as compared to the nine months ended
September 30, 2004. For the nine months ended September 30, 2005, the recorded current tax benefit was reduced due to an increase in
litigation reserve and expenses, which is not deductible for tax purposes until the related amounts are paid. In addition, the current tax
benefit for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 was increased by taxable losses associated with the disposition of certain assets and
higher tax depreciation related to favorable bonus depreciation rules in place during 2004.

Deferred tax expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 decreased $22.9 million as compared to the nine months ended
September 30, 2004. This decrease is primarily related to the increase in litigation reserve and expenses recorded during the current period
that are not deductible for tax purposes. As a result, a deferred tax benefit was recorded for this item. In addition, deferred tax expense for
the nine months ended September 30, 2004 includes amounts associated with the disposition of certain non-core business operations.

Current tax benefit decreased $12.3 million in 2004 as compared to 2003. As a result of the favorable resolution of certain tax
contingencies, current tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2004 was reduced approximately $11.0 million. The decrease in
deferred tax expense of $25.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to December 31, 2003 was due primarily to
additional depreciation
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expense deductions taken for tax purposes associated with a change in our tax lives of certain assets. The additional depreciation expense
resulted in an increase in deferred tax expense in 2003.

Current tax benefit increased $108.4 million and deferred tax expense increased $90.7 million in 2003 as compared to 2002. In 2002,
approximately $313.0 million of taxable income was recognized that had been deferred in a prior year. As such, current tax expense for the
year ended December 31, 2002 increased approximately $123.6 million. In addition, as the deferred tax liability was reversed, a deferred
tax benefit of approximately $123.6 million was recorded for the year ended December 31, 2002. These amounts were offset by the
utilization of net operating losses of approximately $59.8 million that decreased current tax expense and increased deferred tax expense for
the year ended December 31, 2002.

Cumaulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle

The loss recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle during 2002 relates to our adoption of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, on January 1, 2002. Statement No. 142 required that we test
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles for impairment using a fair value approach. As a result of the goodwill test, we recorded a non-
cash impairment charge, net of tax, of approximately $3.9 billion. The non-cash impairment of our goodwill was generally caused by
unfavorable economic conditions which persisted in the entertainment industry throughout 2001. This weakness contributed to our
customers reducing the number of dollars they spent on live entertainment events. These conditions adversely impacted the cash flow
projections used to determine the fair value of our goodwill at January 1, 2002, and resulted in the non-cash impairment charge of a portion
of our goodwill.

Global Music Results of Operations

Our global music operating results were as follows:

Nine Months Ended
September 30, Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2005 2004 2004 2003 2002
(unaudited)
Revenue $ 1,708,369 $ 1,793,072 $ 2,201,007 $ 2,069,857 $ 1,821,215
Divisional operating expenses 1,595,434 1,674,660 2,081,945 1,924,132 1,693,334
Depreciation and amortization 27,363 27,064 37,043 35,262 35,285
Loss (gain) on sale of operating
assets (32) (2,921) (3,438) (863) (5,135)

Operating income $ 85,604 $ 94,269 $ 85,457 $ 111,326 $ 97,731

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005 to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2004

Global music revenue decreased $84.7 million, or 5%, during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as compared to the nine
months ended September 30, 2004. Included in the nine months ended September 30, 2005 results is approximately $8.7 million of foreign
exchange rate increases. These foreign exchange rate increases were offset by a $182.2 million decrease in our domestic music operations.
The decline in our domestic music revenue was primarily the result of a reduction in the number of domestic events, which reduced
attendance, and lower ticket prices. The reduction in ticket prices was partially a result of a ticket charge reduction program aimed at
improving the value proposition of our concert tickets to the consumer. Pollstar reported that through September 2005, total industry sales
volume decreased approximately 11% compared to the same period in 2004. We believe the decline in events is in part due to a reduction in
the number of artists currently interested in touring, and the decline in ticket prices is in part the result of efforts being made by artists and
promoters to make the concert experience more affordable to the customer.

68




Table of Contents

Our domestic music revenue decline was partially offset by a $97.5 million increase in international revenues for the nine months
ended September 30, 2005 as compared to the same period of 2004. This increase is primarily due to the acquisition of international
promotion companies during the second half of 2004, the acquisition of a festival promoter and venue operator in 2005, an increase in
promotion revenue related to shows with higher ticket prices and an increase in the attendance at our international festivals.

Global music divisional operating expenses decreased $79.2 million, or 5%, during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as
compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2004 primarily due to the decrease in domestic music events. The decrease in domestic
divisional operating expenses of $164.0 million was partially offset by a $84.8 million increase in international divisional expenses related
to the acquisition of international promotion companies during the second half of 2004, the acquisition of a festival promoter and venue
operator in 2005, and an increase in promotion activity, as well as an increase in foreign exchange rates of $8.7 million during the period.

Fiscal Year 2004 Compared to Fiscal Year 2003

Global music revenue increased $131.2 million, or 6%, during 2004 as compared to 2003. Approximately $57.6 million, or 44% of the
increase, was attributable to foreign exchange rate increases. The increase was also driven by an increased number of events and attendance
in our international operations. Significant acts for 2004 included Madonna and the Italian tour of Vasco Rossi. In addition, revenue from
global music sponsorships and premium seat sales increased in 2004 by $15.9 million, or 12%, over 2003. We had fewer domestic
amphitheater events in 2004 as compared to 2003 primarily due to an unusually high number of show cancellations in 2004 as compared to
2003. Attendance for 2004 in our owned and operated amphitheaters was lower than 2003, partially due to these cancellations. In general,
the domestic music industry suffered a setback in 2004 and according to Pollstar experienced a decline of approximately 3%, as compared
to 2003, in the number of tickets sold for the top 100 tours.

Global music divisional operating expenses increased $157.8 million, or 8%, during 2004 as compared to 2003. Approximately
$53.3 million, or 34% of the increase, was attributable to foreign exchange rate increases. The increase also relates to variable promotion,
production and venue costs associated with the number and type of events in 2004 as compared to 2003. In addition, domestic music
experienced higher talent and production costs primarily due to higher artist guarantees without a proportional increase in revenue.
Domestic music also completed a restructuring of operations in the fourth quarter of 2004, resulting in a staff reduction and an increase in
severance costs.

Depreciation and amortization increased by $1.8 million, or 5%, in 2004 as compared to 2003 primarily due to the completion of new
venues placed in service in late 2003 and in 2004.

Fiscal Year 2003 Compared to Fiscal Year 2002

Global music revenue increased $248.6 million, or 14%, during 2003 as compared to 2002. Approximately $74.6 million, or 30% of the
increase, was attributable to foreign exchange rate increases. The increase was also driven by an increased number of events and attendance
in our international promotions as well as an increase in the attendance at our international festivals. Significant acts in Europe during 2003
included the Rolling Stones and the Italian tours of Ramazotti and Vasco Rossi. Although domestically we had fewer amphitheater events
in 2003 as compared to 2002, we experienced an increase in overall attendance, sponsorship and premium seat revenue. In addition, we had
more domestic stadium events in 2003 as compared to 2002, including Bruce Springsteen and Bon Jovi.

Global music divisional operating expenses increased $230.8 million, or 14%, during 2003 as compared to 2002. Approximately
$68.6 million, or 30% of the increase, was attributable to foreign exchange rate increases. The remaining increase primarily relates to
variable promotion and production costs associated with the increased number of our international events in 2003 as compared to 2002.
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Global Theater Results of Operations

Our global theater operating results were as follows:

Nine Months Ended
September 30, Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
(unaudited)

Revenue $ 233,265 $ 222,871 $ 313,974 $ 318,219 $ 296,460
Divisional operating expenses 219,132 198,942 278,327 282,320 254,971
Depreciation and amortization 11,389 11,014 14,709 13,161 11,133
Loss (gain) on sale of operating assets 2 (58) (58) 24 4
Operating income $ 2,742 $ 12,973 $ 20,996 $ 22,714 $ 30,352

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005 to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2004

Global theater revenue increased $10.4 million, or 5%, during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as compared to the nine
months ended September 30, 2004. Approximately $1.3 million, or 13% of the increase, was attributable to foreign exchange rate
increases. Additional domestic event dates, the opening of our renovated Boston Opera House in the third quarter of 2004, and a greater
number of international productions, including Starlight Express and Chicago, were primarily responsible for the increase. Operationally,
global theater expanded its venue network during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 with the acquisition of four theaters in Spain.

Global theater divisional operating expenses grew $20.2 million, or 10%, during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as
compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2004. Approximately $1.1 million, or 5% of the increase, was attributable to foreign
exchange rate increases. The remaining increase primarily relates to additional domestic event dates, the opening of our renovated Boston
Opera House in the third quarter of 2004, and the greater number of international productions.

Fiscal Year 2004 Compared to Fiscal Year 2003

Global theater revenues decreased $4.2 million, or 1%, during 2004 as compared to 2003 primarily due to fewer domestic event dates
and the replacement of a number of significant international production investments in 2003 with smaller interests in international
productions in 2004 where we receive only investment earnings rather than consolidated production results. These declines were partially
offset by an increase in foreign exchange rates of approximately $10.4 million in 2004 as compared to 2003, as well as the positive impact
to revenues associated with our opening of the renovated France-Merrick Center for Performing Arts and the Boston Opera House during
2004.

Global theater divisional operating expenses declined $4.0 million, or 1%, during 2004 as compared to 2003 primarily due to a decrease
in global theater revenues during 2004 as compared to 2003. Included in this variance are foreign exchange rate increases of approximately
$8.9 million.

Global theater depreciation and amortization expense increased $1.5 million, or 12%, during 2004 as compared to 2003 primarily due to
foreign exchange rate increases of $1.0 million and the completion and opening of the Boston Opera House during 2004.
Fiscal Year 2003 Compared to Fiscal Year 2002

Global theater revenues increased $21.8 million, or 7%, during 2003 as compared to 2002. Approximately $8.6 million, or 39% of the
increase, was attributable to foreign exchange rate increases. The remaining increase primarily relates to an increase in the number of
domestic event dates, which included tours of The Lion King, The Producers and Mamma Mia!, as well as Cats in the United Kingdom, in
2003 as compared to 2002.
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Global theater divisional operating expenses increased $27.3 million, or 11%, during 2003 as compared to 2002. Approximately
$7.0 million, or 26% of the increase, was attributable to foreign exchange rate increases. The remaining increase primarily relates to an
increase in the number of domestic event dates. Operating expenses increased greater than revenues principally due to reduced show
profitability and a high number of show cancellations resulting from severe weather in some areas.

Global theater depreciation and amortization expense increased $2.0 million, or 18%, during 2003 as compared to 2002 primarily due to
foreign exchange rate increases of $0.7 million and capital improvements to existing venues.
Other Results of Operations

Our other operating results were as follows:

Nine Months Ended

September 30, Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands) 2005 2004 2004 2003 2002
(unaudited)

Revenue $ 242,954 $ 245936 $ 291,147 $ 319,826 $ 355,644
Divisional operating expenses 236,065 234,183 285,021 300,183 354,402
Depreciation and amortization 4,362 5,655 7,406 9,626 12,694
Loss (gain) on sale of operating assets (396) 10,379 9,867 (139) (10,110)
Operating income (loss) $ 2,923 $  (4,281) $ (11,147) $ 10,156 $  (1,342)

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005 to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2004

Other revenues decreased $3.0 million, or 1%, during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as compared to the nine months
ended September 30, 2004. Foreign exchange rate increases of approximately $1.2 million were offset by decreases related to the sale of
the international leisure center business during the second quarter of 2004 as well as the popular Titanic: The Artifact Exhibit completing
its run during the second quarter of 2004. These revenue decreases were partially offset by revenue growth from Dora the Explorer as
compared to the same period last year and Blue’s Clues, which did not tour in 2004. Growth in the revenue from our specialized motor
sports events resulted from a slight increase in attendance and ticket prices. Also, our sports representation business increased during the
nine months ended September 30, 2005 as compared to the same period in 2004 primarily from improved hospitality and sponsorship
revenue.

Other divisional operating expenses increased $1.9 million, or 1%, during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as compared to
the nine months ended September 30, 2004. Foreign exchange rate increases of approximately $1.1 million were offset by decreases related
to the sale of the international leisure center business during the second quarter of 2004 as well as the popular Titanic: The Artifact Exhibit
completing its run during the second quarter of 2004. These expense decreases were partially offset by expense increases related to the
growth in our specialized motor sports events, family shows and sports representation businesses as well as a $12.5 million increase in
litigation contingencies and expenses during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as compared to the same period in 2004.
Additional litigation contingencies and expenses are reflected in corporate expenses.

Other divisional depreciation and amortization expense decreased $1.3 million, or 23%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2005
as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2004 primarily as a result of the sale of the international leisure center business
during the second quarter of 2004.
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Other gain on sale of operating assets increased $10.8 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2005 as compared to the
same period in 2004 due primarily to the divestiture of our international leisure center operations during the second quarter of 2004.

Fiscal Year 2004 Compared to Fiscal Year 2003

Other revenues decreased $28.7 million, or 9%, during 2004 as compared to 2003. Foreign exchange rate increase